
HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD

Meeting to be held in Hunslet Room, Voluntary Action Leeds, 
Stringer House, 34 Lupton Street, Leeds LS10 2QW on

Tuesday, 20th June, 2017 at 2.30 pm

There will be a pre-meeting for Board Members at 1.30pm

MEMBERSHIP

Councillors
R Charlwood (Chair) S Golton G Latty
D Coupar
L Mulherin

Representatives of Clinical Commissioning Groups
Dr Jason Broch NHS Leeds North CCG
Dr Alistair Walling NHS Leeds South and East CCG
Dr Gordon Sinclair NHS Leeds West CCG
Nigel Gray NHS Leeds North CCG
Phil Corrigan NHS Leeds West CCG

Directors of Leeds City Council
Dr Ian Cameron – Director of Public Health
Cath Roff – Director of Adult Social Services
Nigel Richardson – Director of Children’s Services

Representative of NHS (England)
Moira Dumma - NHS England 

Third Sector Representative
Kerry Jackson – St Gemma’s Hospice

Representative of Local Health Watch Organisation
Lesley Sterling-Baxter – Healthwatch Leeds 
Tanya Matilainen – Healthwatch Leeds

Representatives of NHS providers
Sara Munro - Leeds and York Partnership NHS Foundation Trust
Julian Hartley - Leeds Teaching Hospitals NHS Trust 
Thea Stein - Leeds Community Healthcare NHS Trust

Agenda compiled by:
Governance Services – 0113 3788657

Public Document Pack



B

A G E N D A

Item
No

Ward/Equal 
Opportunities

Item Not
Open

Page
No

 WELCOME AND INTRODUCTIONS

2  APPEALS AGAINST REFUSAL OF INSPECTION 
OF DOCUMENTS

To consider any appeals in accordance with 
Procedure Rule 15.2 of the Access to Information 
Rules (in the event of an Appeal the press and 
public will be excluded)

(*In accordance with Procedure Rule 15.2, written 
notice of an appeal must be received by the Head 
of Governance Services at least 24 hours before 
the meeting)

3  EXEMPT INFORMATION - POSSIBLE 
EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC

1 To highlight reports or appendices which 
officers have identified as containing exempt 
information, and where officers consider that 
the public interest in maintaining the 
exemption outweighs the public interest in 
disclosing the information, for the reasons 
outlined in the report.

2 To consider whether or not to accept the 
officers recommendation in respect of the 
above information.

3 If so, to formally pass the following 
resolution:-

RESOLVED – That the press and public be 
excluded from the meeting during 
consideration of the following parts of the 
agenda designated as containing exempt 
information on the grounds that it is likely, in 
view of the nature of the business to be 
transacted or the nature of the proceedings, 
that if members of the press and public were 
present there would be disclosure to them of 
exempt information, as follows:-



C

4  LATE ITEMS

To identify items which have been admitted to the 
agenda by the Chair for consideration

(The special circumstances shall be specified in 
the minutes)

5  DECLARATIONS OF DISCLOSABLE 
PECUNIARY INTERESTS

To disclose or draw attention to any disclosable 
pecuniary interests for the purposes of Section 31 
of the Localism Act 2011 and paragraphs 13-16 of 
the Members’ Code of Conduct.
 

6  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

To receive any apologies for absence

7  OPEN FORUM

At the discretion of the Chair, a period of up to 10 
minutes may be allocated at each ordinary meeting 
for members of the public to make representations 
or to ask questions on matters within the terms of 
reference of the Health and Wellbeing Board.  No 
member of the public shall speak for more than 
three minutes in the Open Forum, except by 
permission of the Chair.

8  MINUTES

To approve the minutes of the previous Health and 
Wellbeing Board meeting held 20th April 2017 as a 
correct record.

1 - 4

9  LEEDS HEALTH AND CARE PLAN: 
PROGRESSING A CONVERSATION WITH 
CITIZENS

To consider the report of the Executive Lead, 
Leeds Health and Care Plan which provides an 
overview of the emerging Leeds Health and Care 
Plan; and the next phase on the continued 
conversation with citizens.

5 - 48



D

10 LEEDS HEALTH AND CARE PLAN 
QUARTERLY FINANCIAL REPORTING

To consider the report of the Leeds Health and 
Care Partnership Executive Group (PEG) which 
provides an overview of the financial positions of 
the health and care organisations in Leeds, 
brought together as one single citywide quarterly 
financial report 

49 - 
56

11 BEING THE BEST CITY FOR HEALTH 
REQUIRES THE BEST WORKFORCE

To consider a report summarising the city’s 
challenges relating to workforce. The report 
presents information on three potential and 
developing solutions, seeking the Boards 
consideration of it’s’ role in progressing, steering 
and directing future work to address the 
challenges.

57 - 
70

12 FOR INFORMATION: BETTER CARE FUND 
QUARTERLY REPORTS

To receive and note the Better Care Fund 2016-17 
reports for Quarters 2, 3 and 4

71 - 
112

13 DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING

To note that the next formal Board meeting will be 
held on Thursday 28th September 2017

Third Party Recording 

Recording of this meeting is allowed to enable those not 
present to see or hear the proceedings either as they take 
place (or later) and to enable the reporting of those 
proceedings.  A copy of the recording protocol is available 
from the contacts named on the front of this agenda.

Use of Recordings by Third Parties– code of practice

a) Any published recording should be accompanied by 
a statement of when and where the recording was 
made, the context of the discussion that took place, 
and a clear identification of the main speakers and 
their role or title.

b) Those making recordings must not edit the recording 
in a way that could lead to misinterpretation or 
misrepresentation of the proceedings or comments 
made by attendees.  In particular there should be no 
internal editing of published extracts; recordings may 
start at any point and end at any point but the 
material between those points must be complete.



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on 20th June 2017 
 

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD 
 

THURSDAY, 20TH APRIL, 2017 
 

PRESENT: 
 

Councillor R Charlwood in the Chair 

 Councillors Broch, Cameron, S Golton, 
Jackson, G Latty, L Mulherin, Roff, Sterling-
Baxter and Walker 

 
 
 
Representatives of Clinical Commissioning Groups 
Dr Jason Broch  NHS Leeds North CCG 
Sue Robins   NHS Leeds West CCG 
Dr Alistair Walling  NHS Leeds South & East CCG 
Nigel Gray   NHS Leeds North CCG 
 
Directors of Leeds City Council 
Dr Ian Cameron – Director of Public Health 
Cath Roff – Director of Adult Social Services 
Steve Walker – Director of Children’s Services 
 
Representative of NHS (England) 
Gillian Laurence - NHS England  
 
Third Sector Representative 
Kerry Jackson – St Gemma’s Hospice 
 
Representative of Local Health Watch Organisation 
Lesley Sterling-Baxter – Healthwatch Leeds  
Tanya Matilainen – Healthwatch Leeds 
 
Representatives of NHS providers 
Sara Munro - Leeds and York Partnership NHS Foundation Trust 
Phil Ayres - Leeds Teaching Hospitals NHS Trust  
Bryan Machin - Leeds Community Healthcare NHS Trust 
 
Tony Cooke – Chief Officer Health Partnerships 
Ann Akers – Interim Head of Communications, Engagement, Equality and 
Diversity, NHS Leeds CCGs 
 
Paul Bollam – Chief Officer, Leeds Plan 
 

55 Welcome and introductions  
 

The Chair welcomed all present and brief introductions were made. 
 
The Chair also welcomed Doctor Alistair Walling – Clinical Director of Primary 
Care, Leeds South and East CCG who had taken over from Andrew Harris. 

56 Appeals against refusal of inspection of documents  

Page 1

Agenda Item 8



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on 20th June 2017 
 

 
There were no appeals against refusal of inspection of documents. 

57 Exempt Information - Possible Exclusion of the Press and Public  
 

The agenda contained no exempt information. 
58 Late Items  
 

No formal late items of business were added to the agenda. 
59 Declarations of Disclosable Pecuniary Interests  
 

There were no declarations of disclosable pecuniary interest. 
60 Apologies for Absence  
 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor D Coupar; Dr Gordon 
Sinclair; Phil Corrigan; Julian Hartley; Moira Dumma; Thea Stein and 
Councillor E Taylor. Sue Robins; Phil Ayres; Brian Hughes; Gillian Laurence 
and Bryan Machin were welcomed as substitute members. 

61 Open Forum  
 

No matters were raised by members of the public under the Open Forum. 
62 Minutes  
 

RESOLVED – The minutes of the meeting held 20th February 2017 were 
approved as a correct record. 

63 Draft NHS Leeds Clinical Commissioning Groups (CCGs) Annual 
Reports 2016-2017  

 
The Interim Head of Communications, Engagement, Equality & Diversity for 
NHS Leeds South & East Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) submitted a 
report on behalf of all three Leeds CCGs which highlighted the relevant 
sections from the draft Annual Reports of all 3 CCGs, seeking comments on 
the extent of their input into the Leeds Health and Wellbeing Strategy 2016-
21.  
 
Anne Akers presented the report along with Sue Robins and Nigel Gray 
highlighting the partnership working undertaken between the 3 Leeds CCGs 
and the Leeds Health & Wellbeing Board and wider partners to help deliver 
the Leeds Health and Wellbeing Strategy 2016-21. 
 
Excerpts from the Draft Annual Reports were attached to the report as  
Appendix 1 NHS Leeds South & East CCG; Appendix 2 NHS Leeds West and 
Appendix 3 NHS Leeds North. 
 
The report highlighted the timescale for submission of the Annual Reports to 
NHS England by 21st April 2017, which had curtailed longer consultation with 
the Board, however next year, with the move to the One Voice approach 
working together as three CCGS, an earlier discussion with members was 
anticipated to help shape the content and consider the wider context of 
alignment with the Leeds Health & Wellbeing Strategy 2016-2021  
 

Page 2



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on 20th June 2017 
 

The Board discussed the draft reports and made the following comments: 
 The need for a report which was user friendly. 
 To produce a one city report rather than separate reports. 
 The challenges of rolling out the strategies and engagement schemes 

across a city as diverse as Leeds.  
 The work of the Board in progressing the Health and Wellbeing 

Strategy 2016-2021 and the need to capture this in the report. 
 The need to capture the work of the third sector including the work of 

palliative care teams. 
 To engage with communities to assess the pressures on the services. 

and to check how the service is making a difference. 
 The need to have more input from communities. 
 The approach to integrated NHS services in other core cities. 
 That CCGs use their Annual General Meetings as an opportunity to 

engage and tell ‘our city’ story. This could be used along with feedback 
in the annual report. 

 
Members were informed that it was a statutory duty to produce a report for 
NHS England which required a number of mandatory fields to be completed.  
 
The Board welcomed a suggestion that a magazine rather than 3 reports 
could be produced which would be able to focus on the work undertaken 
across the city of integrated services and show the positives of partnership 
working.   
 
It was noted for action that the Chair asked for a timetable to be provided to 
enable the Board to contribute to future annual reports. The Chair also 
requested timescales from the CCGs in relation to next year’s report along 
with proposals for involving the Board in its development and agreement. 
 
The Chair was grateful that the report had been presented to the Board but 
expressed her regret that the report had not been brought sooner to enable 
the Board to contribute. 
 
RESOLVED 

a) To note the contents of the report and the comments made during 
discussions. 

b) That, having reviewed the information contained within the Appendices; 
the Board noted the comments made in respect of the extent of the 
NHS Leeds CCG’s input in the Leeds Health and Wellbeing Strategy 
2016-2902.  

c) To acknowledge the extent to which the NHS Leeds CCGs have 
contributed to the delivery of the Leeds Health & Wellbeing Strategy 
2016-2021. 

d) To agree to the formal recording of this acknowledgement in the LHS 
Leeds CCGs annual reports according to statutory requirements. 

 
 
Cllr. L Mulherin joined the meeting during this item. 

64 Date and Time of Next Meeting  

Page 3



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on 20th June 2017 
 

 
To note the proposed date and time of the next Board meeting as 20th June 
2017 at 2.00 pm (with a pre-meeting for board members at 1.30pm) 
 
Cllr. S Golton joined the meeting during this item. 
 
 

Page 4



 

 

 

 

Report of: Paul Bollom (Executive Lead, Leeds Health and Care Plan) 

Report to: Leeds Health and Wellbeing Board 

Date:         20 June 2017 

Subject:    Leeds Health and Care Plan: Progressing a conversation with citizens 

Are specific geographical areas affected?    Yes   No 

If relevant, name(s) of area(s):   

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion and 
integration? 

  Yes   No 

Is the decision eligible for call-In?   Yes   No 

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?   Yes   No 

If relevant, access to information procedure rule number: 

Appendix number: 

Summary of main issues  
The Leeds Health and Care Plan (Leeds Plan) is the Leeds description of what it 
envisages health and care will look like in the future and how it will contribute to the 
delivery of the vision and objectives of the Leeds Health and Wellbeing Strategy 2016-21.  
 
The Leeds Plan is the city’s collective plan for addressing the three gaps that have been 
identified by health, care and civic leaders. These are gaps in: health inequalities; quality 
of services; and, financial sustainability. 
 
The Leeds Plan provides the content for a discussion with citizens to help progress the 
planning that will be required to develop a citizen-centred approach to delivering the 
desired health improvements for Leeds to be the best city for health in 2030.  

Recommendations 

The Health and Wellbeing Board is asked to: 
 
 Consider the contents of the draft narrative for the ‘Leeds Plan’ and provide feedback 

as to whether it provides appropriate information to progress our conversation with 
citizens about the future of health and care in Leeds. 

 Approve plans to progress a conversation with the public, based around the content of 
the summary report, and delivered in conjunction with the ‘Changing Leeds’ 
discussion. 

Report author(s): Stuart Barnes 

 

Page 5

Agenda Item 9



 

 

1 Purpose of this report 

1.1 The purpose of this report is to provide the Health and Wellbeing Board with an 
overview of: 

 The draft ‘Leeds Health and Care Plan’ narrative document (Appendix A) and 
the approach taken to engage citizens in the future development and delivery 
of our plans 

 Proposals to begin the next phase of our conversation with citizens, in 
partnership with the ‘Changing Leeds’  (Appendix B) 

1.2 Seek assurance from the Board that it supports: 

 The draft narrative to published and engaged on 

 Proposals for officers within the Health Partnerships team to undertake a 
conversation with citizens, delivered through the ‘Changing Leeds’ platform. 

2 Background information 

Local picture 

2.1 Leeds has an ambition to be the Best City in the UK by 2030.  A key part of this is 
being the Best City for Health and Wellbeing and Leeds has the people, 
partnerships and placed-based values to succeed. The vision of the Leeds Health 
and Wellbeing Strategy is: ‘Leeds will be a healthy and caring city for all ages, 
where people who are the poorest will improve their health the fastest’.  A strong 
economy is also key: Leeds will be the place of choice in the UK to live, for people 
to study, for businesses to invest in, for people to come and work in and the 
regional hub for specialist health care.  Services will provide a minimum universal 
offer but will tailor specific offers to the areas that need it the most.  These are 
bold statements, in one of the most challenging environments for health and care 
in living memory.   

2.2 Since the first Leeds Health and Wellbeing Strategy in 2013, there have been 
many positive changes in Leeds and the health and wellbeing of local people 
continues to improve. Health and care partners have been working collectively 
towards an integrated system that seeks to wrap care and support around the 
needs of the individual, their family and carers, and helps to deliver the Leeds 
vision for health and wellbeing.  Leeds has seen a reduction in infant mortality as 
a result of a more preventative approach; it has been recognised for 
improvements in services for children; it became the first major city to successfully 
roll out an integrated, electronic patient care record, and early deaths from 
avoidable causes have decreased at the fastest rate in the most deprived wards. 

2.3 These are achievements of which to be proud, but they are only the start.  The 
health and care system in Leeds continues to face significant challenges: the 
ongoing impact of the global recession and national austerity measures, together 
with significant increases in demand for services brought about by both an ageing 
population and the increased longevity of people living with one or more long term 

Page 6



 

 

conditions.  Leeds also has a key strategic role to play at West Yorkshire level, 
with the sustainability of the local system intrinsically linked to the sustainability of 
other areas in the region.   

2.4 Leeds needs to do more to change conversations across the city and to develop 
the necessary infrastructure and workforce to respond to the challenges ahead.  
As a city, we will only meet the needs of individuals and communities if health and 
care workers and their organisations work together in partnership. The needs of 
patients and citizens are changing; the way in which people want to receive care 
is changing, and people expect more flexible approaches which fit in with their 
lives and families. 

2.5 Further, Leeds will continue to change the way it works, becoming more 
enterprising, bringing in new service delivery models and working more closely 
with partners, public and the workforce locally and across the region to deliver 
shared priorities. However, this will not be enough to address the sustainability 
challenge. Future years are likely to see a reduction in provision with regard to 
services which provide fewer outcomes for local people and offer less value for 
the ’Leeds £’. 

2.6 Much will depend on changing the relationship between the public, workforce and 
services.  There is a need to encourage greater resilience in communities so that 
more people are able to do more themselves. This will reduce the demands on 
public services and help to prioritise resources to support those most at need. The 
views of people in Leeds are continuously sought through public consultation and 
engagement, and prioritisation of essential services will continue, especially those 
that support vulnerable adults, children and young people. 

National picture 

2.7 In October 2014, the NHS published the Five Year Forward View, a wide-ranging 
strategy providing direction to health and partner care services to improve 
outcomes and become financially sustainable.  On 22/12/15, NHS England 
(NHSE) published the ‘Delivering the Forward View: NHS planning guidance 
2016/17 – 2020/21’, which is accessible at the following link: 

2.8 https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2015/12/planning-guid-16-17-20-
21.pdf   

2.9 The planning guidance asked every health and care system to come together to 
create their own ambitious local blueprint – Sustainability and Transformation Plan 
(STP) - for accelerating implementation of the Five Year Forward View and for 
addressing the challenges within their areas. STPs are place-based, multi-year 
plans built around the needs of local populations (‘footprints’) and should set out a 
genuine and sustainable transformation in service user experience and health 
outcomes over the longer term. 

 

 

Page 7



 

 

3 Main issues 

3.1 The Leeds Plan narrative sets out ideas about how we will improve health 
outcomes, care quality and financial sustainability of the health and care system in 
the city. 

3.2 The plan recognises the Leeds Health and Wellbeing Strategy 2016-2021, its 
vision and its objectives, and begins to set out a plan to achieve its aims. 

3.3 The plan recognises and references the collaborative work done by partners 
across the region to develop the West Yorkshire and Harrogate Sustainability and 
Transformation Plan (WYH STP). 

3.4 The development of the Leeds Plan has been supported by partners and 
stakeholders from across various health and care providers and commissioners, 
as well as Healthwatch Leeds, 3rd sector and Local Area Committees 

3.5 The Leeds Plan narrative presents information for a public and wider staff 
audience about the plan in a way that that citizens and staff can relate to and 
which is accessible and understandable. 

3.6 The Leeds Plan narrative (when published) will be designed so that the visual 
style and branding is consistent with that of the Leeds Health and Wellbeing 
Strategy 2016-21 and will be part of a suite of material used to engage citizens 
and staff with 

3.7 The Leeds Plan narrative is clear that Leeds starts from a very strong position, 
with many unique characteristics. 

3.8 The narrative contains information about: 

 The strengths of our city, including health and care 

 The reasons we must change 

 How the health and care system in Leeds works now 

 How we are working with partners across West Yorkshire 

 The role of citizens in Leeds 

 What changes we are likely to see 

 Next steps and how you can stay informed and involved. 

3.9 The plan seeks to present an honest representation of the reasons we must 
change, including the need to improve health outcomes, reduce health 
inequalities and ensure that services are financially sustainable in future. 

4 Health and Wellbeing Board governance 

4.1 Consultation, engagement and hearing citizen voice 

4.1.1 A significant amount of engagement activity has taken place when the Leeds 
Health and Wellbeing Strategy was being refreshed. This is alongside ongoing 

Page 8



 

 

engagement activity on strategic decision making which occurs across the activity 
of the Health and Wellbeing Board and its constituent members. All of this has 
helped shape the Leeds plan since 2016. 

4.1.2 Conversations have also taken place over the last year about how best to align 
the citizen conversation about health and care in Leeds with ‘Changing Leeds’. 
See Appendix B for a briefing about ‘Changing Leeds’. 

4.1.3 Changing Leeds is an engagement with the whole city on issues arising from the 
changing ‘social contract’, civic enterprise approach, and the future role of the 
council.  

4.1.4 The overall purpose of ‘Changing Leeds’ is to help people who live, work and 
study in the city think differently about their relationship with local public services, 
and ultimately do things differently as well.  

4.1.5 By working with colleagues from LCC, it is hoped that we will be able to deliver a 
better quality of conversation with the public through the ‘Changing Leeds’ 
platform.  

4.1.6 It will enable us to engage people in a way that will encourage them to think more 
holistically about themselves, others and places rather than thinking about NHS or 
Council services. Citizen and stakeholder engagement on the Leeds Plan has 
already begun in the form of Community Committee discussions across Leeds in 
February and March. 

4.1.7 In order to progress the thinking and partnership working that has been done to 
help inform the Leeds Plan to date, the next stage for the Leeds Plan is to begin a 
broader conversation with citizens. 

4.1.8 The conversation we would like to have with citizens will be focussed on the ideas 
and general direction of travel outlined in the Leeds Plan. It will ask citizens what 
they think about the Plan and will invite them to comment and provide their 
thoughts. 

4.1.9 When the work of the Leeds Plan begins to develop proposals for service 
changes, then, plans would be developed for formal engagement and/or 
consultation in line with existing guidance and best practice.  

4.1.10 A detailed communication and engagement plan is currently being developed and 
will be shared with the Health and Wellbeing Board for comment. 

4.2 Equality and diversity /cohesion and integration 

4.2.1 Our preparation for delivering a conversation with citizens about plans for the 
future of health and care in Leeds will be reflective of the rich diversity of the city, 
and mindful of the need to engage with all communities. 
 

4.2.2 Any future changes in service provision arising from this work will be subject to 
equality impact assessment. 
 

Page 9



 

 

4.3 Resources and value for money  

4.3.1 The final Leeds Plan will have to describe the financial and sustainability gap in 
Leeds, the plan Leeds will be undertaking to address this and demonstrate that 
the proposed changes will ensure that we are operating within our likely 
resources.  In order to make these changes, we will require national support in 
terms of local flexibility around the setting of targets, financial flows and non-
recurrent investment. 

4.3.2 As part of the development of the West Yorkshire and Harrogate  STP, the 
financial and sustainability impact of any changes at a West Yorkshire level and 
the impact on Leeds will need to be carefully considered and analysis is currently 
underway to delineate this.   

4.3.3 It is envisaged that Leeds may be able to capitalise on the regional role of our 
hospitals using capacity released by delivering our solutions to support the 
sustainability of services of other hospitals in West Yorkshire and to grow our offer 
for specialist care for the region. 

4.4 Legal Implications, access to information and call In 

4.4.1 There are no access to information and call-in implications arising from this report. 
 

4.5 Risk management 

4.5.1 Failure to have robust plans in place to address the gaps identified as part of the 
Leeds Plan development will impact the sustainability of the health and care in the 
city. 

4.5.2 Two key overarching risks present themselves, given the scale and proximity of 
the challenge and the size and complexity of both the West Yorkshire and 
Harrogate footprint and Leeds itself: 

4.5.3 Potential unintended and negative consequences of any proposals as a result of 
the complex nature of the local and regional health and social care systems and 
their interdependencies.  Each of the partners has their own internal pressures 
and governance processes they need to follow. 

4.5.4 Ability to release expenditure from existing commitments without de-stabilising the 
system in the short-term will be extremely challenging as well as the risk that any 
proposals to address the gaps do not deliver the sustainability required over the 
longer-term. 

4.5.5 Whilst the in Leeds the health and care partnership has undertaken a review of 
non-statutory governance to ensure it is efficient and effective, the bigger West 
Yorkshire footprint upon which we have been asked to develop an STP will 
present much more of a challenge. 

4.5.6 The effective management of these risks can only be achieved through the full 
commitment of all system leaders within the city to focus their full energies on the 

Page 10



 

 

developing a robust Leeds Plan and then delivering the STP within an effective 
governance framework.  

5 Conclusions 

5.1 As statutory organisations across the city working with our thriving volunteer and 
third sectors and academic partners, we have come together to develop, for the 
first time, a system-wide plan for a sustainable, high-quality health and social care 
system.  We want to ensure that services in Leeds can continue to provide high-
quality support that meets, or exceeds, the expectations of adults, children and 
young people across the city: the patients and carers of today and tomorrow. 

5.2 Our Leeds STP will be built on taking our asset-based approach to the next level 
to help deliver the health and care aspects of the Leeds Health and Wellbeing 
Strategy.  This is enshrined in a set of values and principles and a way of thinking 
about our city, which: 

 Identifies and makes visible the health and care-enhancing assets in a 
community; 

 Sees citizens and communities as the co-producers of health and well-being 
rather than the passive recipients of services; 

 Promotes community networks, relationships and friendships that can provide 
caring, mutual help and empowerment; 

 Values what works well in an area; 

 Identifies what has the potential to improve health and well-being the fastest; 

 Supports individuals’ health and well-being through self-esteem, coping 
strategies, resilience skills, relationships, friendships, knowledge and 
personal resources; 

 Empowers communities to control their futures and create tangible resources 
such as services, funds and buildings; 

 Values and empowers the workforce and involves them in the coproduction of 
any changes. 

6 Recommendations 

The Health and Wellbeing Board is asked to: 
 Consider the contents of the draft narrative for the ‘Leeds Plan’ and provide 

feedback as to whether it provides appropriate information to progress our 
conversation with citizens about the future of health and care in Leeds. 
 

 Approve plans to progress a conversation with the public, based around the 
content of the summary report, and delivered in conjunction with the ‘Changing 
Leeds’ discussion. 

Page 11



 

 

7 Background documents  

7.1 None 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
  

Page 12



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE IS LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK 
  

Page 13



 

 

 

 
Implementing the Leeds Health 
and Wellbeing Strategy 2016-21 

 
How does this help reduce health inequalities in Leeds?  
The Leeds Health and Care Plan (Leeds Plan) is the city’s collective plan for addressing 
the three gaps that have been identified by health, care and civic leaders. These are gaps 
in: health inequalities; quality; and, financial sustainability. 
The Leeds Plan builds on the vision and objectives of the Leeds Health and Wellbeing 
Strategy 2016-21, and begins to develop the thinking about how these will be achieved.  
The Leeds Plan will provide the content for a discussion with citizens to help progress the 
planning that will be required to develop a citizen-centred approach to delivering the 
changes required for Leeds to be the best city for health in 2030.  
 
How does this help create a high quality health and care system? 
See above 
 
How does this help to have a financially sustainable health and care system?  
See above 
 
Future challenges or opportunities 
By working with colleagues from Leeds City Council’s communications team, it is hoped 
that we will be able to undertake a wide ranging and open conversation with the public as 
part of the ‘Changing Leeds’ programme. This will enable us to engage people in a way 
that encourages them to think more holistically about themselves, others and places rather 
than thinking just about NHS or Council services in isolation. 

The conversation will help to inform the next phase of changing, improving and 
implementing the Leeds Plan.  

Priorities of the Leeds Health and Wellbeing Strategy 2016-21 

A Child Friendly City and the best start in life X 

An Age Friendly City where people age well X 

Strong, engaged and well-connected communities X 

Housing and the environment enable all people of Leeds to be healthy  

A strong economy with quality, local jobs   

Get more people, more physically active, more often  X 

Maximise the benefits of information and technology X 

A stronger focus on prevention X 

Support self-care, with more people managing their own conditions X 

Promote mental and physical health equally X 

A valued, well trained and supported workforce X 

The best care, in the right place, at the right time X 

 

Page 14



Leeds
The best city for 

health and wellbeing

Version 0.9 Jun 2017 

DRAFTeedseeds
e best cie best 

ealth andealth and

Page 15



In
 L

e
e
d
s
, 
a
s
 w

e
 g

ro
w

u
p

 a
n

d
 a

s
 w

e
 g

ro
w

o
ld

, 
  

  
  
th

e
 p

eo
p
le

 a
ro

und u
s, t

he places we live in, the work we do, the way we move and the    

      type of supp
o
rt w

e
 re

c
e
ive

, w
ill k

e
e
p

u
s
 h

e
a
lth

ie
r fo

r lo
n

g
e
r. W

e
 w

ill b
u
ild

 resilience, live happier, healthier lives, do the best for one another and provide the best c
are poss

ib
le

.

P
ro

m
o

te
 m

e
n

ta
l 

a
n

d
 p

h
y
s
ic

a
l 

h
e
a
lt

h
 e

q
u

a
ll
y

=

1
0

L
e

e
d

s
 H

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 W

e
ll
b

e
in

g
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 2

0
1
6
-2

0
2
1

W
e 

ha
ve

 a
 b

ol
d 

am
bi

tio
n:

 

‘L
ee

ds
 w

ill 
be

 th
e 

be
st

 c
ity

 
fo

r h
ea

lth
 a

nd
 w

el
lb

ei
ng

’.

A
nd

 a
 c

le
ar

 v
is

io
n:

‘L
e

e
d

s
 w

il
l 
b

e
 a

 h
e

a
lt

h
y
 a

n
d

 

c
a

ri
n

g
 c

it
y
 f

o
r 

a
ll
 a

g
e

s
, 
 

w
h

e
re

 p
e

o
p

le
 w

h
o

 a
re

 t
h

e
  

p
o

o
re

s
t 

im
p

ro
v
e

 t
h

e
ir

  

h
e

a
lt

h
 t

h
e

 f
a

s
te

s
t’

.

In
d

ic
a
to

rs
A

 C
h

il
d

 F
ri

e
n

d
ly

 

C
it

y
 a

n
d

  

th
e
 b

e
s
t 

 

s
ta

rt
 

in
 l
if
e

1
1

A
 v

a
lu

e
d

, 
w

e
ll
 

tr
a
in

e
d

 a
n

d
 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

e
d

 

w
o

rk
fo

rc
e

1

T
h

e
 b

e
s
t 

c
a
re

,  

in
 t

h
e
 r

ig
h

t 
p

la
c
e
, 

a
t 

th
e
 r

ig
h

t 
ti

m
e

1
2

P
e
o

p
le

’s
 q

u
a
li
ty

 o
f 

li
fe

 w
il
l 

b
e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d

 b
y
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 

q
u

a
li
ty

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s

P
e
o

p
le

 w
il
l 
li
v
e

 

lo
n

g
e
r 

a
n

d
 h

a
v
e

 

h
e
a
lt

h
ie

r 
li
v
e
s
 

P
e
o

p
le

 w
il
l 
li
v
e

 

fu
ll
, 
a
c
ti

v
e
 a

n
d

 

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e
n

t 
li
v
e
s

P
e
o

p
le

 w
il
l 
b

e
 a

c
ti

v
e
ly

 

in
v
o

lv
e
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
ir

 h
e
a
lt

h
 

a
n

d
 t

h
e
ir

 c
a
re

P
e
o

p
le

 w
il
l 
li
v
e
 i
n

 h
e
a
lt

h
y,

 

s
a
fe

 a
n

d
 s

u
s
ta

in
a
b

le
 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s

5
  
  
  
O

u
tc

o
m

e
s

1
.

2
.

3
.

4
. 

5
.

12
 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
  

a
re

a
s

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 s
e
lf
-c

a
re

, 

w
it

h
 m

o
re

 p
e
o

p
le

 

m
a
n

a
g

in
g

 t
h

e
ir

 

o
w

n
 c

o
n

d
it

io
n

s

9

S
tr

o
n

g
, 

e
n

g
a
g

e
d

 a
n

d
 

w
e
ll
-c

o
n

n
e
c
te

d
 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s

3

A
 s

tr
o

n
g

 

e
c
o

n
o

m
y
 w

it
h

 

q
u

a
li
ty

, 
lo

c
a
l 
jo

b
s

5

G
e
t 

m
o

re
 

p
e
o

p
le

, 
m

o
re

 

p
h

y
s
ic

a
ll
y
 

a
c
ti

v
e
, 

m
o

re
  

o
ft

e
n

6

In
 o

ur
 c

ity
…

w
el

lb
ei

ng
 s

ta
rts

 
w

ith
 p

eo
pl

e 
an

d 
ev

er
yt

hi
ng

 is
 

co
nn

ec
te

d 

A
n

 A
g

e
 F

ri
e
n

d
ly

 

C
it

y
 w

h
e
re

 

p
e
o

p
le

 a
g

e
 w

e
ll

A
 s

tr
o

n
g

e
r 

fo
c
u

s
 

o
n

 p
re

v
e
n

ti
o

n

8

M
a
x
im

is
e
 t

h
e

 

b
e
n

e
fi

ts
 f

ro
m

 

in
fo

rm
a
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 

te
c
h

n
o

lo
g

y

7

4

H
o

u
s
in

g
  

a
n

d
 t

h
e

  

e
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t  

e
n

a
b

le
 a

ll
  

p
e
o

p
le

 o
f 

L
e
e
d

s
 

to
 b

e
 h

e
a
lt
h

y

2

• 
In

fa
nt

 m
or

ta
lit

y

• 
G

oo
d 

ed
uc

at
io

na
l 

at
ta

in
m

en
t a

t 1
6

• 
P

eo
pl

e 
ea

rn
in

g 
a 

Li
vi

ng
 W

ag
e 

• 
In

ci
de

nt
s 

of
 d

om
es

tic
 v

io
le

nc
e

• 
In

ci
de

nt
s 

of
 h

at
e 

cr
im

e

• 
P

eo
pl

e 
af

fo
rd

in
g 

to
 h

ea
t 

th
ei

r h
om

e

• 
Yo

un
g 

pe
op

le
 in

 e
m

pl
oy

m
en

t, 
ed

uc
at

io
n 

or
 tr

ai
ni

ng

• 
A

du
lts

 in
 e

m
pl

oy
m

en
t 

• 
P

hy
si

ca
lly

 a
ct

iv
e 

ad
ul

ts

• 
C

hi
ld

re
n 

ab
ov

e 
a 

he
al

th
y 

w
ei

gh
t

• 
A

vo
id

ab
le

 y
ea

rs
 o

f l
ife

 lo
st

• 
A

du
lts

 w
ho

 s
m

ok
e

• 
P

eo
pl

e 
su

pp
or

te
d 

to
 m

an
ag

e 
th

ei
r h

ea
lth

 c
on

di
tio

n

• 
C

hi
ld

re
n’

s 
po

si
tiv

e 
vi

ew
 

of
 th

ei
r w

el
lb

ei
ng

• 
E

ar
ly

 d
ea

th
 fo

r p
eo

pl
e 

w
ith

 
a 

se
rio

us
 m

en
ta

l i
lln

es
s

• 
E

m
pl

oy
m

en
t o

f p
eo

pl
e 

w
ith

 
a 

m
en

ta
l i

lln
es

s

• 
U

nn
ec

es
sa

ry
 ti

m
e 

pa
tie

nt
s 

sp
en

d 
in

 h
os

pi
ta

l

• 
Ti

m
e 

ol
de

r p
eo

pl
e 

sp
en

d 
in

 c
ar

e 
ho

m
es

• 
P

re
ve

nt
ab

le
 h

os
pi

ta
l 

ad
m

is
si

on
s

• 
R

ep
ea

t e
m

er
ge

nc
y 

vi
si

ts
to

 h
os

pi
ta

l

• 
C

ar
er

s 
su

pp
or

te
d

1
DRA
DRAFTT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRAFT

DRDRDRDDRDDDDDD
y
s
ic

a
l 

th
 e

q
u

a
ll
y

DDDDDDDDDDDDDD
0

DDRDRDDR
u

p
p

o
rt

 

w
it

h
 m

m DRAFT

DRAFTF
RDRAFTFTFTFTFTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTT

S

e
n

g
a

w
e
ll
-c

o
n

n

m
m

u
n

i

In
 o

ur
 c

it
w

el
lb

ei
ng

 s
ta

rts
 

w
ith

 p
eo

pl
e 

an
d

er
yt

h
ne

c

TTTTFFFF
DRDRDRDRDRDRDDDRDRDRDRDRDR

TTTFTTFTFTFTFTFTFTFTFTTTTTTTTTTFTTFTFTFTFTFTFTFTTTFTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTT

Page 16



Le
ed

s 
H

ea
lth

 a
nd

 C
ar

e 
Pl

an
Vi

si
on

“L
ee

ds
 w

ill 
be

 a
 h

ea
lth

y 
an

d 
ca

rin
g 

ci
ty

 fo
r a

ll 
ag

es
, w

he
re

 p
eo

pl
e 

w
ho

 a
re

 th
e 

po
or

es
t i

m
pr

ov
e 

th
ei

r h
ea

lth
 th

e 
fa

st
es

t”

W
ha

t t
hi

s 
m

ea
ns

 fo
r m

e
“L

iv
in

g 
a 

he
al

th
y 

lif
e 

to
 k

ee
p 

m
ys

el
f w

el
l”

“H
ea

lth
 a

nd
 c

ar
e 

se
rv

ic
es

 w
or

ki
ng

 
w

ith
 m

e 
in

 m
y 

co
m

m
un

ity
”

“H
os

pi
ta

l c
ar

e 
on

ly
 w

he
n 

I 
ne

ed
 it

”
“I 

ge
t r

ap
id

 h
el

p 
w

he
n 

ne
ed

ed
 to

 
al

lo
w

 m
e 

to
 re

tu
rn

 to
 m

an
ag

in
g 

m
y 

ow
n 

he
al

th
 in

 a
 p

la
nn

ed
 w

ay
”

W
ha

t a
re

as
 a

re
 

pr
of

es
si

on
al

s 
w

or
ki

ng
 o

n?

Pr
ev

en
tio

n
Pr

oa
ct

iv
e 

C
ar

e 
&

 S
el

f-
M

an
ag

em
en

t
O

pt
im

is
in

g 
Se

co
nd

ar
y 

C
ar

e
U

rg
en

t C
ar

e 
an

d 
R

ap
id

 R
es

po
ns

e

Ac
tio

ns
1.

W
e 

w
ill 

pr
om

ot
e 

aw
ar

en
es

s 
an

d
de

ve
lo

p 
se

rv
ic

es
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
e 

B
es

t
S

ta
rt 

(c
on

ce
pt

io
n 

to
 a

ge
 2

) f
or

 e
ve

ry
ba

by
, w

ith
 e

ar
ly

 id
en

tif
ic

at
io

n 
an

d
ta

rg
et

ed
 s

up
po

rt 
ea

rly
 in

 th
e 

lif
e 

of
 th

e
ch

ild
.

2.
W

e 
w

ill 
pr

om
ot

e 
th

e 
be

ne
fit

s 
of

ph
ys

ic
al

 a
ct

iv
ity

 a
nd

 im
pr

ov
e 

th
e

en
vi

ro
nm

en
ts

 th
at

 e
nc

ou
ra

ge
 p

hy
si

ca
l

ac
tiv

ity
 to

 b
ec

om
e 

pa
rt 

of
 e

ve
ry

da
y

lif
e.

3.
W

e 
w

ill 
m

ax
im

is
e 

ev
er

y 
op

po
rtu

ni
ty

 to
re

du
ce

 th
e 

ha
rm

 fr
om

 to
ba

cc
o 

an
d

al
co

ho
l, 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
en

ha
nc

in
g 

th
e

co
nt

rib
ut

io
n 

by
 h

ea
lth

 a
nd

 c
ar

e 
st

af
f.

4.
W

e 
w

ill
 h

av
e 

ne
w

 a
cc

es
si

bl
e,

in
te

gr
at

ed
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

th
at

 s
up

po
rt

pe
op

le
 to

 li
ve

 h
ea

lth
ie

r l
ife

st
yl

es
 a

nd
pr

om
ot

e 
em

ot
io

na
l h

ea
lth

 a
nd

w
el

lb
ei

ng
 fo

r a
ll 

ag
es

, w
ith

 a
 s

pe
ci

fic
fo

cu
s 

on
 th

os
e 

at
 h

ig
h 

ris
k 

of
de

ve
lo

pi
ng

 re
sp

ira
to

ry
, c

ar
di

o-
va

sc
ul

ar
co

nd
iti

on
s.

5.
W

e 
w

ill 
ha

ve
 a

 n
ew

, l
oc

al
ly

-b
as

ed
co

m
m

un
ity

 s
er

vi
ce

, ‘
B

et
te

r T
og

et
he

r’,
th

at
 c

an
 b

et
te

r b
ui

ld
 e

ve
ry

da
y

re
si

lie
nc

e 
an

d 
sk

ill
s 

in
 o

ur
 m

os
t

vu
ln

er
ab

le
 p

op
ul

at
io

ns
.

1.
P

eo
pl

e 
liv

in
g 

w
ith

 s
ev

er
e 

br
ea

th
in

g
di

ffi
cu

lti
es

 w
ill

 k
no

w
 h

ow
 to

 m
an

ag
e

an
xi

et
y 

is
su

es
 d

ue
 to

 th
ei

r i
lln

es
s 

an
d

ha
ve

 a
 s

up
po

rti
ve

 p
la

n 
ab

ou
t w

ha
t’s

im
po

rta
nt

 to
 th

em
 b

y 
D

ec
em

be
r 2

01
7.

2.
P

eo
pl

e 
liv

in
g 

w
ith

 s
ev

er
e 

fra
ilt

y 
w

ill
 b

e
su

pp
or

te
d 

to
 li

ve
 in

de
pe

nd
en

tly
 a

t h
om

e
w

he
ne

ve
r p

os
si

bl
e,

 in
st

ea
d 

of
 h

av
in

g 
to

go
 in

 a
nd

 o
ut

 o
f h

os
pi

ta
l.

3.
P

eo
pl

e 
at

 h
ig

h 
ris

k 
of

 d
ev

el
op

in
g

di
ab

et
es

 a
nd

 th
os

e 
liv

in
g 

w
ith

 d
ia

be
te

s
w

ill
 h

av
e 

ac
ce

ss
 to

 s
up

po
rt 

pr
og

ra
m

m
es

to
 g

iv
e 

th
em

 th
e 

co
nf

id
en

ce
 a

nd
 s

ki
lls

 to
m

an
ag

e 
th

ei
r c

on
di

tio
n 

by
 D

ec
em

be
r

20
17

.

4.
W

e 
w

ill 
ta

ke
 th

e 
be

st
 e

xa
m

pl
es

 w
he

re
he

al
th

 a
nd

 c
ar

e 
se

rv
ic

es
 a

re
 w

or
ki

ng
to

ge
th

er
 o

ut
si

de
 o

f h
os

pi
ta

l a
nd

 m
ak

e
th

em
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

ac
ro

ss
 L

ee
ds

 –
 fo

r
ex

am
pl

e 
w

he
re

 p
eo

pl
e 

ha
ve

 m
us

cl
e 

an
d

jo
in

t p
ro

bl
em

s 
th

at
 a

ffe
ct

 th
ei

r d
ay

 to
 d

ay
 

ab
ilit

y 
to

 li
ve

 th
ei

r l
iv

es
, w

e 
w

ill
 w

or
k 

w
ith

th
em

 to
 h

el
p 

re
du

ce
 th

ei
r p

ai
n 

an
d

re
co

ve
r t

he
 a

bi
lit

y 
to

 m
ov

e 
by

S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

01
8.

1.
P

at
ie

nt
s 

w
ill

 s
ta

y 
th

e 
rig

ht
 ti

m
e

in
 h

os
pi

ta
l.

2.
P

at
ie

nt
s 

w
ith

 a
 m

en
ta

l h
ea

lth
ne

ed
 w

ill
 h

av
e 

th
ei

r n
ee

ds
m

et
 in

 L
ee

ds
 m

or
e 

of
te

n
ra

th
er

 th
an

 b
ei

ng
 s

en
t

el
se

w
he

re
 to

 re
ce

iv
e 

he
lp

.

3.
W

e 
w

ill 
m

ee
t m

or
e 

of
 p

at
ie

nt
s’

ne
ed

s 
lo

ca
lly

 b
y 

en
su

rin
g 

th
ei

r
G

P
s 

ca
n 

ea
si

ly
 g

et
 a

dv
ic

e
fro

m
 th

e 
rig

ht
 h

os
pi

ta
l

sp
ec

ia
lis

t.

4.
W

e 
w

ill 
en

su
re

 th
at

 p
at

ie
nt

s
ge

t t
he

 ri
gh

t t
es

ts
 fo

r t
he

ir
co

nd
iti

on
s.

5.
W

e 
w

ill 
re

du
ce

 th
e 

vi
si

ts
pa

tie
nt

s 
ne

ed
 to

 ta
ke

 to
ho

sp
ita

l b
ef

or
e

an
d 

af
te

r
tre

at
m

en
t.

6.
W

e 
w

ill 
en

su
re

 th
at

 p
at

ie
nt

s
ge

t t
he

 b
es

t v
al

ue
 m

ed
ic

in
es

.

1.
W

e 
w

ill 
re

vi
ew

 th
e 

w
ay

s 
th

at
 p

eo
pl

e
cu

rr
en

tly
 a

cc
es

s 
ur

ge
nt

 h
ea

lth
 a

nd
 s

oc
ia

l
ca

re
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
th

e 
ra

ng
e 

of
si

ng
le

 p
oi

nt
s 

of
 a

cc
es

s.
 T

he
 a

im
 w

ill
 b

e
to

 m
ak

e 
th

e 
sy

st
em

le
ss

 c
on

fu
si

ng
al

lo
w

in
g 

a 
m

or
e 

tim
el

y 
an

d 
co

ns
is

te
nt

re
sp

on
se

 a
nd

 w
he

n 
ne

ce
ss

ar
y

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 re

fe
rra

l i
nt

o 
ot

he
r s

er
vi

ce
s.

2.
W

e 
w

ill 
lo

ok
 a

t w
he

re
 a

nd
 h

ow
 p

eo
pl

e’
s

ne
ed

s 
ar

e 
as

se
ss

ed
 a

nd
 h

ow
em

er
ge

nc
y 

ca
re

 p
la

nn
in

g 
is

 d
el

iv
er

ed
(in

cl
ud

in
g 

en
d 

of
 li

fe
)  

w
ith

 th
e 

ai
m

 to
 jo

in
up

 s
er

vi
ce

s,
 fo

cu
s 

on
 th

e 
ne

ed
s 

of
pe

op
le

 a
nd

 w
he

re
 p

os
si

bl
e 

m
ai

nt
ai

n
th

ei
r i

nd
ep

en
de

nc
e.

3.
W

e 
w

ill 
m

ak
e 

su
re

 th
at

 w
he

n 
pe

op
le

re
qu

ire
 u

rg
en

t c
ar

e,
 th

ei
r j

ou
rn

ey
th

ro
ug

h 
ur

ge
nt

 c
ar

e 
se

rv
ic

es
 is

 s
m

oo
th

an
d 

th
at

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
ca

n 
re

sp
on

d 
to

in
cr

ea
se

s 
in

 d
em

an
d 

as
 s

ee
n 

in
 w

in
te

r.

4.
W

e 
w

ill
 c

ha
ng

e 
th

e 
w

ay
 w

e 
or

ga
ni

se
se

rv
ic

es
 b

y 
co

nn
ec

tin
g 

al
l u

rg
en

t h
ea

lth
an

d 
ca

re
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

to
ge

th
er

 to
 m

ee
t t

he
m

en
ta

l, 
ph

ys
ic

al
 a

nd
 s

oc
ia

l n
ee

ds
 o

f
pe

op
le

 to
 h

el
p 

en
su

re
 p

eo
pl

e 
ar

e 
us

in
g

th
e 

rig
ht

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
at

 th
e 

rig
ht

 ti
m

e.

2
DDRAFTTT

ca
re

T
ne

e FFTT
O

pt
im

is
in

g 
S FT

C
ar

e TTF
DRAFF

in
g

F
na

ge AF
es

s 
an

d AFAFAFAF
ev

er
e 

fra
ilt

y 
w

ill
 AF

nd
ep

en
de

nt
ly

 a
t h

om
e

RAF
in

st
ea

d 
of

 h
av

in
g 

to

RA
ut

 o
f h

os
pi

ta
l. RARA

op
le

 a
t h

ig
h 

ris
k 

of
 d

ev
el

op
in RA

di
ab

et
es

 a
nd

 th
os

e 
liv

in
g 

w
ith

 d RA
w

ill
 h

av
e 

ac
ce

ss
 to

 s
up

po
rt 

pr
og

r RA
to

 g
iv

e 
th

em
 th

e 
co

nf
id

en
ce

 a
nd

 s

DRA
m

an
ag

e 
th

ei
r c

on
di

tio
n 

by
 D

ec
e

DR
20

17
. DRDR

4.
W

e 
w

ill
 ta

ke
 DR

he
al

th
 a

nd
 c

ar
e DR

to
ge

th
er

 o
ut

si
de

 DR
th

em
 a

va
ila

bl
e Dam

p Dnt
 p

r Dab
ilit

y Dth
em Dre
c D
AFTFT

P
at

ie
nt

s 
w

ill
 s

ta
y 

th
e 

r FT
in

 h AFT
AF

2. AFAFAFra
t AFelse AFA
DDDDDD

or
t

D
st

yl
es

 a

D
h 

an
d

D
a 

sp
ec

DD
as

cu
la

DD

3. AFFFFTFT

D
AF

Page 17



Contents

Chapters Page No. 

Chapter 1: Introduction

Chapter 2: Working with you: the role of citizens and communities in Leeds 

Chapter 3: This is us: Leeds, a compassionate city with a strong economy 

Chapter 4: The Leeds Health and Care Plan: what will change and how will it  
       affect me? 

Chapter 5: So why do we want change in Leeds? 

Chapter 6: How do health and care services work for you in Leeds now? 

Chapter 7: Working with partners across West Yorkshire 

Chapter 8: Making the change happen 

Chapter 9: How the future could look… 

Chapter 10: What happens next? 

Chapter 11: Getting involved 

3

DRAFT
ong ecoong e

ange aange and how wn

work for you in Leeds nowwork for you in

s West Yorkshire orkshir

pen n 

uld look… 

s next? s next? 

nvolved volv

Page 18



Chapter 1 
Introduction
Leeds is a city that is growing and changing. As the city and its 
people change, so will the need of those who live here.

Leeds is an attractive place to live, over the next 25 years 
the number of people is predicted to grow by over 15 per 
cent. We also live longer in Leeds than ever before. The 
number of people aged over 65 is estimated to rise by 
almost a third to over 150,000 by 2030. This is an 
incredible achievement but also means the city is going to 
need to provide more complex care for more people. 

At the same time as the shift in the age of the population, 
more and more people (young and old) are developing long 
term conditions such as diabetes and other conditions related to 
lifestyle factors such as smoking, eating an unhealthy diet or being 
physically in active. 

These long-term conditions can lead to a reduced quality of life and premature death but are 
often preventable. Figure 1 (below) shows the causes of preventable death in England. 

Figure 1 

“When the NHS was set up in 
1948, half of us died before the 

age of 65. 

Now, two thirds of the patients 
hospitals are looking after are 

over the age of 65……life
expectancy is going up by five 

hours a day”

Simon Stevens, Chief 
Executive NHS England

4

RAFTFTFTulation, ulatio
eloping long eloping long 

ditions related to ditions related to
unhealthy diet or being ealthy diet o

o a reduced quality of lia reduced quality of life andfe 
shows ts the causes of preventahe causes of preventa

ow, tw
hospi

o
expec

mon St
tive NH

Page 19



Last year we set out the wide range of things we need to do to improve health in our city. 
This was presented in the Leeds Health and Wellbeing Strategy 2016-2021. 

We now want to begin a conversation about the improvement we want to see in the health of 
Leeds citizens, and ask if we should all take greater responsibility for our health and 
wellbeing and the health and wellbeing of those around us. All organisations need to work 
together to achieve this.

Improving the health of the city needs to happen alongside delivering more efficient, 
affordable services that offer better value for tax payers. 

The NHS in England has also said what it thinks needs to change for our health services 
when it presented the Five Year Forward View for the NHS. As well as talking about the role 
of citizens in improving the health of Leeds, we must also plan what health and care services 
need to do to meet these changes: 

We believe that too often care is organised around single illnesses rather than all of an
individual’s needs and that this should change.
We also believe many people are treated in hospitals when being cared for in their
own homes and communities would give better results.
Services can sometimes be hard to access and difficult to navigate. Leeds will make
health and care services more person-centred, joined-up and focussed on prevention.

Improving the health of the city needs to happen alongside delivering better value for tax 
payers and more efficient services. This is a major challenge.

What is clear is that nationally and locally the cost of our health and care system is rising 
faster than the money we give to health and care services to pay for them. Rising costs are 
partly because of extra demand (such as greater numbers of older people with health needs) 
and partly because of the high costs of delivering modern treatments and medicines. 

If the city carries on without making changes to the way we manage health and care 
services, it would be facing a financial gap. If we added up the difference each year between 
the money available and the money needed, by 2021 the total shortfall would be around £700 
million across Leeds.

As residents, health care professionals, elected leaders, patients and carers, we all want to 
see the already high standards of care that we have achieved in our city further improved to 
meet the current and future needs of the population. 

This document, the Leeds Health and Care Plan, sets out ideas about how we will improve 
health outcomes, care quality and financial sustainability of the health and care system in the 
city. The ideas have come from those who whose job it is to lead health and care planning for 
Leeds, but also from voluntary organisations, public meetings, young people and older 
residents.

5

DRAFT
for our hefor ou

well as talkingwell a
n what health and cn what hea

ound single illound s nesses rather thrathe
ge.ge.

d in hospitals when being caren hospitals whe
ve better results.er results.

access and difficult to navigadifficu
erson-centrerson-cent d, joined-up and fned-up

eds to happen alongside delivappen alongside deliv
ces. This is a major challenge. This is a major challenge

ally and locally tally and local he cost of oucost
we give we give to health and care servalth and care se

ra demand (such as greater demand (such as greater nn
e of the high costs of dehigh costs of deliverinliverin

ies on without making changeies on without making c
would be facing a financial gawould be facing a financial g

y available ay avai nd the money ne money n
ss Leeds.ss Lee

alth care profealth care prof
h standah standa

utuutu

Page 20



You will find information about: 

A Plan on a page – summary of the Leeds Health and Care Plan.
The role we can all have as citizens of Leeds
The strengths of our city, including health and care
The reasons we must change
What changes we are likely to see
How the health and care system in Leeds works now
How we are working with partners across West Yorkshire
Next steps and how you can stay informed and involved.

The Leeds Health and Care Plan on a Page captures some of the key changes that health 
and care professionals hope to prioritise in the short term to improve the health of all citizens 
and change the way that services are delivered in Leeds.

This report contains a lot more information about the work of health and care professionals, 
your role as a citizen and the reasons for changing and improving the health of our city. Once 
you have taken a look we want to hear from you.  

If we begin a conversation together as people who live and work in Leeds we can begin 
creating the future of health and care services we want to see in the city, and ensure people 
are at the centre of developing this. 

Chapters 10 & 11 is where we set out what happens next, and includes information about 
how you can stay informed and involved with planning for a healthier Leeds.

We hope that you will want to take part and contribute to making Leeds a healthier city for us 
all. 

6

DRAFT
e key change key 

mprove the healthmprove t

work of health and care profeswork of health and care p
and improving the health of ouand improving the health of o

le who live and work in Leedsve and w
vices vices we want to see in the citto see

t out whatt happens next, and  happens next, and
d involved involv with planning for a h planning for a 

nt to take part and contrint to take part and contribute tb

Page 21



The NHS Constitution 

Patients and the public: your responsibilities

The NHS belongs to all of us. There are things that we can all do for 
ourselves and for one another to help it work effectively, and to 
ensure resources are used responsibly. 

Please recognise that you can make a significant contribution to 
your own, and your family’s, good health and wellbeing, and take 
personal responsibility for it. 

Chapter 2 
Working with you: the role of citizens and 
communities in Leeds

Working with people 

We have a clear understanding that we must work with people 
rather than doing things for or to them. 

This makes a lot of sense. After all, if you think about the fact 
that even people with complex health needs might only see a 
health or care worker (such as a doctor, nurse or care 
worker) for a small percentage of the time, it’s important that 
all of us, as individuals, have a good understanding of how to 
stay healthy when the doctor isn’t around.

This is a common sense approach that many of us take 
already but can we do more? We all need to understand how we 
can take the best care of ourselves and each other during times 
when we’re at home, near to our friends, neighbours and loved ones. 

Figure 2 on the next page, gives an indication of the new way in which health and care 
services will have better conversations with people and work with people.

Work health and care leaders 
have done together in Leeds 
has helped us to understand 

where we could be better.  

What we need to do now is 
work with the people of Leeds 
to jointly figure out how best to 
make the changes needed to 
improve, and the roles we will 

all have in improving the health 
of the city.

7

DRAFTFTFT
The NHS Constitutiohe NHS Cons

Patients and the public: yoatients and the public: yo

DRNHS belongs to all

DRurselves and for one ano

DRensure resources are used DR
Please recognise thDur own, and your Dnal responsib

hat at 
how to ow to

us take s take
understand how we tand how w

ch other during times ch other during tim
, neighbours and loved ones.neighbours and loved

Wor
ha

What
rk with 

tly figu
he ch

Page 22



8

Page 23



Joining things up 

We all know good health for all of us is affected by the houses we live in, the air we breathe, 
the transport we use and the food that we eat.

We know good health starts at birth and if we set 
good patterns early they continue for a life time. 
We know that physical and mental health are 
often closely linked and we need to treat them 
as one. 

We need to recognise the connections between 
our environment and our health. This will mean 
ensuring that the physical environment, our 
employment and the community support around 
us are set up in a way that makes staying 
healthy the easiest thing to do.

It will mean working with teams in the city who 
are responsible for work targeted at children and 
families, planning and providing housing and the 
built environment, transport and others. It will 
also involve us working with charities, faith 
groups, volunteer organisations and businesses 
to look at what we can all do differently to make 
Leeds a healthier place in terms of physical, 
mental and social wellbeing.

Taking responsibility for our health 

If we’re going to achieve our ambition to be a healthier happier city, then each of us as 
citizens will have a role to play too. 

In some cases this might mean taking simple steps to stay 
healthy, such as taking regular exercise, stopping smoking, 
reducing the amount of alcohol we drink and eating well.

As well as doing more to prevent ill health, we will all be 
asked to do more to manage our own health better and, 
where it is safe and sensible to do so, for us all to 
provide more care for ourselves. These changes would 
mean that people working in health and care services 
would take more time to listen, to discuss things and to 
plan with you so that you know what steps you and your 
family might need to take to ensure that you are able to 
remain as healthy and happy as possible, even if living with 
an ongoing condition or illness.  

This wouldn’t be something that would happen overnight, and would mean that all of us 
would need to be given the information, skills, advice and support to be able to better 
manage our own health when the doctor, nurse or care worker isn’t around. 

Cycling just 30 miles a
week could reduce your risk

of cancer by 45%

That’s the same as riding to 
work from Headingley to the 
Railway Station each day.

9

DRAFThe 
l 

h h 
sinesses nesses 

ntly to make make 
of physical, l, 

for our health for our health 

chieve our ambition to be ur ambitio a hea he
ve a role to play too. e a role to play too. 

ases this might mean ases this might mean taking sking s
uch as taking regularuch as taking regular exerc rr

amount of alcohol weamount of alcohol 

more to prevmore to prev
manamana

Page 24



By better managing our own health, it will enable us all to live more independent and fulfilled 
lives, safe in the understanding that world class, advanced health and care services are there 
for us when required.

This won’t be simple, and it doesn’t mean that health and care professionals won’t be there 
when you need them. Instead it’s about empowering us all as people living in Leeds to live 
lives that are longer, healthier, more independent and happier.

Working together, as professionals and citizens we will develop an approach to health and 
wellbeing that is centred on individuals and helping people to live healthy and independent 
lives. 

10

DRAFT

Page 25



Chapter 3 
This is us: Leeds, a compassionate city with a 
strong economy

We are a city that is thriving economically and socially. We have the fastest growing city 
economy outside London with fast growing digital and technology industries. 

Leeds City Council has been recognised as Council of the Year as part of an annual 
awards in which it competed with councils from across the country. 

The NHS is a big part of our city, not only the hospitals we use but because lots of national 
bodies within the NHS have their home in Leeds, such as NHS England. We have one of 
Europe’s largest teaching hospitals (Leeds Teaching Hospitals NHS Trust) which in 
2016 was rated as good in a quality inspection. The NHS in the city provides strong 
services in the community and for those needing mental health services.

Leeds has a great history of successes in supporting communities and neighbourhoods to be 
more self-supporting of older adults and children, leading to better wellbeing for older citizens 
and children, whilst using resources wisely to ensure that help will always be there for those 
who cannot be supported by their community.

The city is developing innovative general practice (GP / family doctor) services that are 
among the best in the country. These innovative approaches include new partnerships and 
ways of organising community and hospital skills to be delivered in partnership with your local 
GPs and closer to your home. This is happening at the same time as patients are being given 
access to extended opening hours with areas of the city having GPs open 7 days per week. 

Leeds is also the first major UK city where every GP, healthcare and social worker can 
electronically access the information they need about patients through a joined-up health and 
social care record for every patient registered with a Leeds GP. 

Leeds has three leading universities, enabling us to work with academics to gain their 
expertise, help and support to improve the health of people in the city.

Leeds is the third largest city in the UK and home to several of the world’s leading health 
technology and information companies who are carrying out research, development and 
manufacturing right here in the city.

We are working with companies like Samsung to test new ‘assistive technologies’ that will 
support citizens to stay active and to live independently and safely in their own homes. 
The city is a hub for investment and innovation in using health data so we can better improve 
our health in a cost effective way. We are encouraging even more of this type of work in 
Leeds through a city-centre based “Innovation District” in Leeds.

Leeds has worked hard to achieve a thriving ‘third sector’, made up of charities, 
community, faith and volunteer groups offering support, advice, services and guidance to a 
diverse range of people and communities from all walks of life. 

11

ut because ut bec
S England. S Englan We ha

ospitals NHS Trust) wospitals NHS
NHS in the city provides stroNHS in the city prov

tal health services.tal hea

rting communities and neighbting communities and neighb
en, leading to better wellbeieading to bet ng

to ensure that help will athat hel lways
unity.unity.

eneral practicel practice (GP / family (GP / family 
hese innovativvative approaches inapproaches i

and hospital skills toand hospital skills to be delivb d li
e. This is happening e. This is happening at the sa

ing houring ho s with areas of the citwith areas of th

st major UK city where ajor UK city where every Gevery G
ess the information they needss the information they need

ord for every patord for every patient registereient r

s s three leading universitiesthree leading universities
help and support to improhelp and support to im

rd largest city inrd largest city in
nformationformatio

ere iere i

Page 26



The Reginald Centre in Chapeltown is a good example of how
health, care and other council services are able to work jointly, in one place for the 

benefit of improving community health and wellbeing. 

The centre hosts exercise classes, a jobshop, access to education, various medical 
and dental services, a café, a bike library, and many standard council services such 

as housing and benefits advice. 

12

DR

Page 27



Chapter 4 
The Leeds Health and Care Plan: what will 
change and how will it affect me? 

Areas for change and improvement 

To help the health and care leaders in Leeds work together on finding solutions to the city’s 
challenges, they have identified four main priority areas of health and care on which to focus.

Prevention – helping people to stay well and avoid illness and poor health.
Some illnesses can’t be prevented 
but many can. We want to reduce 
avoidable illnesses caused by 
unhealthy lifestyles as far as 
possible by supporting Leeds 
residents to live healthier lives. 

By continuing to promote the 
benefits of healthy lifestyles and 
reducing the harm done by 
tobacco and alcohol, we will keep 
people healthier and reduce the 
health inequalities that exist 
between different parts of the city.

Our support will go much further than just offering advice to people. We will focus on 
improving things in the areas of greatest need, often our most deprived communities, by 
providing practical support to people. The offer of support and services available will 
increase, and will include new services such as support to everyday skills in communities 
where people find it difficult to be physically active, eat well or manage their finances for 
example.

We will make links between healthcare professionals, people and services to make sure that 
everyone has access to healthy living support such as opportunities for support with taking 
part in physical activity. 

Self-management – providing help and 
support to people who are ill, or those who 
have ongoing conditions, to do as much as 
they have the skills and knowledge to look 
after themselves and manage their condition 
to remain healthy and independent while living 
normal lives at home with their loved ones. 

People will be given more information, time 
and support from their GP (or family doctor) so 
that they can plan their approach to caring for 
themselves and managing their condition, with 
particular support available to those who have 

long-term health conditions, and people living with frailty. 

13

DRAF
city.city.

further than just offering advifurther than just offering 
areas of greatest areas of greatest need, oftenneed, ofte

upport to people. The ort to people. The offer ofoffer of
include new services such asclude new services such as

ind it difficult toind it difficult  be physically be ph

ake links between healthcaake links between hea
s access to healthy livs access to healthy

T
r healthr hea

activity. activity

Page 28



Making the best use of hospital care and facilities – access to hospital treatment when 
we need it is an important and limited resource, with limited numbers of skilled staff and 
beds.

More care will be provided out of 
hospital, with greater support 
available in communities where there 
is particular need, such as additional 
clinics or other types of support for 
managing things like muscle or joint 
problems that don’t really need to be 
looked at in hospital. Similarly there 
will be more testing, screening and 
post-surgery follow-up services made 
available locally to people, rather than 
them having to unnecessarily visit 
hospital for basic services as is often 
the case now. 

Working together, we will ensure that people staying in hospital will be there only for as long 
as they need to be to receive help that only a hospital can provide. 

Reducing the length of time people stay in hospital will mean that people can return to their 
homes and loved ones as soon as it is safe to do so, or that they are moved to other places 
of care sooner if that is what they need, rather than being stuck in hospitals unnecessarily.

Staff, beds, medicines and equipment will be used more efficiently to improve the quality of 
care that people receive and ensure that nothing is wasted. 

Urgent and Emergency Care – making sure that people with an urgent health or care need 
are supported and seen by the right team of professionals, in the right place for them first 
time. It will be much easier for people to know what to do when they need help straight away.  
Currently there are lots of options for people and it can be confusing for patients. As a result, 
not all patients are seen by the right medical professional in the right place. 

For example, if a young child fell off their scooter and had a swollen wrist, what would you 
do? You could call your GP, dial 999 ring NHS111, drive to one of the two A&E units, visit the 
walk-in centre, drive to one of the two minor injuries units, visit your local pharmacy or even 
just care for them at home and see how they feel after having some rest, a bag of frozen 
peas and some calpol. 

Given the huge range of options and choices available, it’s no wonder that people struggle to 
know what to do when they or their loved ones have an urgent care need. 

We want to make this much simpler, and ensure that people know where to go and what to 
do so that they’re always seen by the right people first time.  

Getting all of this right will help people be healthier and happier. It will mean we reduce 
duplication and waste in the way that we spend money on care. Figure 3 shows how our use 
of the money available for heath and care in Leeds might change. Note the shift towards 
more investment in Public Health investment where money will be used to encourage and 
support healthier lives for people in Leeds. 

14

DRAFTtaying in hospital will be thereng in hospital 
a hospital can provide. al can pro

y in hosin hospital will mean tpital will mean that peha
is safe to fe to do so, or that they do so, or that they 

need, rather than being stuckher than being stuc

quipment will be used moquipment will be used re e
nd ensure that nothing is wasnd ensure that nothing is

ency Carey Care – making sure thatmaking sure that
d seen by the righy the right team of prot team of pro

much easier for people to knowmuch easier for peop
re are lots of options for peopre are lots of options for p

ents are seen by the right ments are seen by the right mee

, if a young child, if a young child fell o fe
call your GP, diacall your GP, dia

ve to one ove to one o
homehome

Page 29



Fi
gu

re
 3

 –
 A

n 
in

di
ca

tiv
e 

vi
ew

 o
f t

he
 w

ay
 th

at
 s

pe
nd

in
g 

on
 th

e 
he

al
th

 a
nd

 c
ar

e 
sy

st
em

 in
 L

ee
ds

 m
ay

 c
ha

ng
e 

15

pe
nd

in
g 

on
 th

e 
he

al
th

 a
nd

 c
ar

en
di

ng
 o

n 
th

e 
he

al
th

 a
nd

 c
ar

Page 30



Chapter 5 
So why do we want change in Leeds? 

Improving health and wellbeing 

Most of us want the best health and care.

Most health and care services in Leeds are good. 
However we want to make sure we are honest about 
where we can improve and like any other service or 
business, we have to look at how we can improve things 
for citizens. Working together with the public, with 
professionals working in health and care and with the 
help of data about our health and our health and care 
organisations in the city, we have set out a list of things 
that could be done better and lead to better results for 
people living in Leeds.

This will mean improving the quality of services, and 
improving the way that existing health and care services 
work with each other, and the way that they work with 
individuals and communities. 

The work that health and care leaders have done together has helped us to understand the 
areas for improvement.  

What we need to do now is work with people in the city to jointly figure out how best to make 
the changes and the roles we will all have in improving the health of the city. 

Three gaps between the Leeds we have, and the Leeds we want

1. Reducing health inequalities (the difference between the health of one group of
people compared with another)

Reducing the number of early deaths from cancer and heart disease, both of which
are higher in Leeds than the average in England
Closing the life expectancy gap that exists between people in some parts of Leeds and
the national average
Reducing the numbers of people taking their own lives. The number of suicides is
increasing in the city.

2. Improving the quality of health and care services in Leeds
Improving the quality of mental health care, including how quickly people are able to
access psychological therapy when they need it
Improving the reported figures for patient satisfaction with health and care services
Making  access to urgent care services easier and quicker
Reducing the number of people needing to go into hospital
Reducing the number of people waiting in hospital after they’ve been told they’re
medically fit to leave hospital

10 years: 
The difference in life 

expectancy between people in 
Hunslet and Harewood 

16

DRAFTs, and nd
care services ces 

ey work with ey wo

ders have done together hase done together has

is work with people in tis work with people in the cityhe
oles we will all have es we will all have in improviin improv

etween the Leeds we have, aetween the Leeds we

ng health inequalities (the dng health inequalities (the d
mpared with another)mpared with anothe

g the number ofg the number o
n Leeds thn Leeds th

e expe exp

AFT
AFT10 ye

ferenc
expectancy betwe

Page 31



Ensuring that enough health and care staff can be recruited in Leeds, and that staff
continue working in Leeds for longer (therefore making sure that health and care
services are delivered by more experienced staff who understand the needs of the
population)
Improving people’s access to services outside normal office hours

3. Ensuring health and care services are affordable in the long-term
If we want the best value health services for the city then we need to question how our
money can best be spent in the health and care system. Hospital care is expensive for each
person treated compared to spending on health improvement and prevention. We need to
make sure that we get the balance right to ensure we improve people’s health in a much
more cost effective way.

We believe the health and care of Leeds will be improved through more efficient services 
investing more thought, time, money and effort into preventing illness and helping people to 
manage ongoing conditions themselves. This will prevent more serious illnesses like those 
that result in expensive hospital treatment. 

We think we can also save money by doing things differently. We will make better use of our 
buildings by sharing sites between health and care and releasing or redeveloping underused 
buildings. A good example of this is the Reginald Centre in Chapeltown. 

Better joint working will need better, secure technology to ensure people get their health and 
care needs met. This might be through better advice or management of conditions remotely 
to ensure the time of health and care professionals is used effectively. For example having 
video consultations may allow a GP to consult with many elderly care home patients and their 
carers in a single afternoon rather than spending lots of time travelling to and from different 
parts of the city. 

We plan to deliver better value services for tax payers in Leeds by making improvements to 
the way that we do things, preventing more illness, providing more early support, reducing 
the need for expensive hospital care and increasing efficiency.  

This will be important in the coming years, as failure to 
deliver services in a more cost effective way would mean 
that the difference between the money available and the 
money spent on health and care services in Leeds would 
be around £700 million.

Preventable Diabetes
costs taxpayers in Leeds 

£11,700 every hour

17

DDRAFT
h more effich mor

 illness  illness and helpi
more serious illnesses lore serious il

differently. We will make bettedifferently. We will make bett
re and releasing or redevelope and releasing or redevelop

ald Centre in Chapeltown. Centre in Cha

re technology to ensre technology to ensure peop
 better advetter advice or managemenice or managem

e professionals is used effectiessionals is used effect
GP to consult sult with many elderth many elde

her than spending loher than spending lots of timets of time

er value services for er value services for tax payetax paye
hings, preventing more ills, preventing more illnessness

nsive hospital care and increaive hospital care and increa

This wilThis
delivedelive
thaDRDR

etes

Page 32



This means that doing nothing is not an option. If we ignored the problem then the longer 
term consequences could lead to: 

A shortage of money and staff
shortages

Not enough hospital beds

Longer waiting times to see specialists

Longer waiting times for surgery

Higher levels of cancelled surgeries
Longer waiting times for GP
appointments

Longer waiting times in A&E

Poorer outcomes for patients

None of us wants these things to happen to services in Leeds which is why we’re working 
now to plan and deliver the changes needed to improve the health of people in the city and 
ensure that we have the health and care services we need for the future. 

This is why we are asking citizens of Leeds, along with people who work in health and care 
services and voluntary or community organisations in the city to help us redesign the way we 
all plan to become a healthier city, with high quality support and services. 

18

DRAFTentsents

rvices in Leeds which is why es in Leeds w
d to improve the health of peove the h

services we need for the futuservices we need for

of Leedsds, along with people wh, along with people wh
nity organisations isations in the city tin the city 

city, with high quality support city, with high quality 

Page 33



Chapter 6 
How do health and care services work for you 
in Leeds now?

Our health and care service in Leeds are delivered by lots of different people and different 
organisations working together as a partnership. This partnership includes not only services 
controlled directly by the government, such as the NHS, but also services which are 
controlled by the city council, commercial and voluntary sector services. 

The government, the Department of Health and the NHS 
The department responsible for NHS spending is the Department of Health. Between the 
Department of Health and the Prime Minister there is a Secretary of State for Health. Many of 
the day to day decisions on NHS spending are made by GPs. GPs were chosen by 
Government to manage NHS budgets because they’re the people that see patients on a day-
to-day basis and arguably have the greatest all-round understanding of what those patients 
need.

Who decides on health services in Leeds? The role of ‘Commissioners’ 
About £72 billion of the NHS £120 billion budget is going to organisations called clinical 
commissioning groups, or CCGS. They’re made up of GPs, but there are also 
representatives from nursing, the public and hospital doctors.  

The role of the CCGs in Leeds is to improve the health of the 800,000 people who live in the 
city. Part of the way they do it is by choosing and buying – or commissioning - services for 
people in Leeds. 

They are responsible for making spending decisions for a budget of £1.2bn.

CCGs can commission services from hospitals, community health services, and the private 
and voluntary sectors. Leeds has a thriving third sector (voluntary, faith and community 
groups) and commissioners have been able to undertake huge amounts of work with 
communities by working with and commissioning services with the third sector.  

As well as local Leeds commissioning organisations, the NHS has a nationwide body, NHS 
England, which commissions ‘specialist services. This helps ensure there is the right care for 
health conditions which affect a small number of people such as certain cancers, major 
injuries or inherited diseases. 

Caring for patients – where is the health and care money spent on your behalf in 
Leeds? 
Most of the money spent by the local NHS commissioners in Leeds, and by NHS England as 
part of their specialist commissioning for people in Leeds is used to buy services provided by 
four organisations or types of ‘providers’, these include: 

GPs (or family doctor) in Leeds 
GPs are organised into groups of independent organisations working across Leeds. Most 
people are registered with a GP and they are the route through which most of us access help 
from the NHS. CCGs are responsible for planning and buying services from GPs across 
Leeds.

19

t of Health. Bt of H
ary of State for Hary of St

Ps. GPs were chosen bs. GPs were c
he people that see patients ohe people that see p

understanding of under what those what th

The role of ‘Commissionersrole of ‘Com
dget is going to oing to organisationso

e e made up of GPs, but there amade up of GPs, bu
c and hospiand hospital doctors.  tal doctors.  

to improve e the health of the 8the health of the 
s by chooss by ch ing and buying – og and buying – o

or making spendir making spending decisionsng decision

ssion services from hospitalssion services from hospitals
sectors. Leeds has a thriving tsectors. Leeds has a 

commissioners have been abcommissioners have been
ies by working with and commies by working with and comm

cal Leeds commissiocal Leeds commiss
commissions ‘scommissions ‘s

which affecwhich affec
iseasiseas

Page 34



Mental Health Services in Leeds 
Leeds and York Partnership NHS Foundation Trust 
(LYPFT) provides mental health and learning 
disability services to people in Leeds, including care 
for people living in the community and mental health 
hospital care. 

Hospital in Leeds 
Our hospitals are managed by an organisation called 
Leeds Teaching Hospitals NHS Trust which runs 
Leeds General Infirmary (the LGI), St James’s 
Hospital and several smaller sites such as the 
hospitals in Wharfedale, Seacroft and Chapel 
Allerton. 

Providing health services in the community for residents in Leeds 
There are lots of people in Leeds who need some support to keep them healthy, but who 
don’t need to be seen by a GP or in one of the city’s large, hospitals such as the LGI or St 
James.

Leeds Community Healthcare NHS Trust provides many community services to support 
people’s health at home. They deliver services such as the health visitor service for babies 
and young children, community nurse visits to some housebound patients who need 
dressings changed and many others. 

Providing health services in the community for residents in Leeds
There are lots of people in Leeds who need some support to keep them healthy, but who 
don’t need to be seen by a GP or in one of the city’s large, hospitals such as the LGI or St 
James.

Leeds Community Healthcare NHS Trust provides many community services to support 
people’s health at home. They deliver services such as the health visitor service for babies 
and young children, community nurse visits to some housebound patients who need 
dressings changed and many others. 

Who else is involved in keeping Leeds healthy and caring for citizens? 
As well as the money spent by local NHS commissioners, Leeds City Council also spends 
money on trying to prevent ill health, as well as providing care to people who aren’t 
necessarily ill, but who need support to help them with day to day living.

Public health – keeping people well and preventing ill health 
Public health, or how we keep the public healthy, is the responsibility of Leeds City Council 
working together with the NHS, Third Sector and other organisations with support and 
guidance from Public Health England. 

Public Health and its partners ensure there are services that promote healthy eating, weight 
loss, immunisation, cancer screening and smoking cessation campaigns.  

Social care - supporting people who need help and support 
Social care means help and support - both personal and practical - which can help people to 
lead fulfilled and independent lives as far as possible. 

Mental Health affects many 
people over their lifetime. It is 
estimated that 20% of all days 
of work lost are through mental 

health, and 1 in 6 adults is 
estimated to have a common 

mental health condition.

20

ts in Leeds s in Leeds 
rt to keep them healthy, butrt to keep them hea

rge, hospitals such as the LGrge, hospitals such as t

des many community servicemany commu
es such as the health visitor sas the he

ts to some housebound patiets to some housebo

e community for residents innity for residents 
ds who need someds who need some support to support to

GP or in one of the cityGP or in one of the city’s large

ealthcare NHS Trust provihcare NHS Trust providesdes
home. They deliver services hey deliver services 

dren, community nurse visidren, community nur ts t
anged and many others. anged and many others. 

involved in keepinginvolved in keepi
money spent by lmoney spent by 

o prevent illo prevent ill
ho neeho nee

TT

Page 35



Social care covers a 
wide range of 
services, and can 
include anything from 
help getting out of 
bed and washing, 
through to providing 
or commissioning 
residential care 
homes, day service 
and other services 
that support and 
maintain people’s 
safety and dignity. 

It also includes 
ensuring people’s 
rights to 
independence and 
ensuring that choice and control over their own lives is maintained, protecting (or 
safeguarding) adults in the community and those in care services.

Adult social care also has responsibility for ensuring the provision of good quality care to 
meet the long-term and short-term needs of people in the community, the provision of 
telecare, providing technology to support independent living, occupational therapy and 
equipment services. 

Lots of questions have been asked about whether the government has given enough money 
for social care, and how it should be paid for. 

During 2016/17 Leeds City Council paid for long term packages of support to around 11,000 
people.

Approximately 4,230 assessments of new people were undertaken during the 2016/17 with 
around 81.5% or 3,446 of these being found to be eligible to receive help.

Leeds City Council commissions permanent care home placements to around 3,000 people 
at any time, and around 8,000 people are supported by Leeds Adult Social Care to continue 
living in their communities with ongoing help from carers.

Figure 4, below, shows how the local decision makers (NHS Commissioners and Leeds City 
council) spend health and care funding on behalf of citizens in Leeds. 

21

DRAFTves is maintained, protecting (ves is maintained, protecting (
se in care services.n care service

or or ensuring the provision of goensuring the provi
ds of people in the communitys of people in the comm

pport inindependent living, occudependent living, occu

asked about whether asked about whether the gov
should be paid for. should be pa

ds City Council paid for lCity Council paid for long teong te

ly 4,230 assessments of new ly 4,230 assessments of 
.5% or 3,446 of t.5% or 3,446 of these being fohese being f

Council commissions pCouncil commission
d around 8,000 pd around 8,000 

munities witmunities wit

Page 36



Figure 4 – Indicative spending of health and care funding in Leeds 

Best Start – the health of children in Leeds 
Leeds understands the importance of focussing on the earliest period in a child’s life, from 
pre-conception to age 2 years, in order to maximise the potential of every child.

The Leeds Best Start Plan describes a broad collection of preventative work which aims to 
ensure a good start for every baby.

Under the Best Start work in Leeds, babies and parents benefit from early identification and 
targeted support for vulnerable families early in the life of the child. In the longer term, this will 
promote social and emotional capacity of the baby and cognitive growth (or the development 
of the child’s brain).

By supporting vulnerable families early in a child’s life, the aim is to break the cycles of 
neglect, abuse and violence that can pass from one generation to another.

The Plan has five high-level outcomes: 

Healthy mothers and healthy babies
Parents experiencing stress will be identified early and supported
Well prepared parents
Good attachment and bonding between parent and child
Development of early language and communication

Achieving these outcomes requires action by partners in the NHS, Leeds City Council and 
the third sector. A partnership group has been established to progress this important work. 

Leeds Health and Wellbeing Board
The Leeds Health and Wellbeing Board brings the partnership of health and care together to 
improve care in a joined-up way. Its members include local councillors as well as partners 
from health, social care and other public services, such as schools, housing and 
environmental services, all of which have an effect on the physical and mental health and 
wellbeing of people in Leeds. The Health and Wellbeing Board is chaired by an elected 
Councillor. 

Amount (£m)

Hospital Care

Mental Health

Public Health

GPs

Community HealthCare

Social Care

Other

22

DRAFTnding in Leeds nding in Leed

sing on the earliest period in ae earlie
maximisema  the potential of evpoten

s a broad collection of prevenoad collection of preven
y.

 Leeds, babies  Leeds, bab and parents bnd p
erable familieerable families early in the life s early in the

otional capacity of the otional capacity of the baby aaby 

vulnerable families early in a cvulnerable families ea
se and violence that can pase and violence that can p ss

has five high-level outcomehas five high-level out

mothers and hemothers and he
eriencingeriencing

parepare

FT
Socia

T
O

Page 37



The Board has developed an overall approach for improving health and wellbeing in Leeds – 
a Health and Wellbeing Strategy. The strategy was developed by speaking with residents, 
listening to them and drawing on the best information available from professionals working in 
health, care and other services across Leeds. Our Leeds plan now looks to outline the steps 
that we will need to take to deliver the aims of the Leeds Health & Wellbeing Strategy 2016-
2021.

Healthwatch Leeds 
People and patients are at the heart of our improvement in health. This means their views are 
at the heart of how staff and organisations work and that they are at the heart of our strategy.

Healthwatch Leeds is an organisation that’s there to help us get this right by supporting 
people’s voices and views to be heard and acted on by those who plan and deliver services 
in Leeds. 

23

DRAFT
s right s righ

o plan and o plan

Page 38



Chapter 7 
Working with partners across West Yorkshire

Leeds will make the most difference to improving our health by working together as a city, for 
the benefit of people in Leeds.

There are some services that are specialist, and where the best way to reduce inequalities, 
improve the quality of services and ensure their financial sustainability is to work across a 
larger area. In this way we are able to plan jointly for a larger population and make sure that 
the right services are available for when people need them but without any duplication or 
waste.

NHS organisations and the council in Leeds are working with their colleagues from the other 
councils and NHS organisations from across West Yorkshire to jointly plan for those things 
that can best be done by collaborating across West Yorkshire. 

This joint working is captured in the West Yorkshire and Harrogate Sustainability and 
Transformation Plan (STP).

The West Yorkshire and Harrogate STP has identified nine priorities for which it will work 
across West Yorkshire to develop ideas and plan for change, these are: 

Prevention
Primary and community services
Mental health
Stroke
Cancer
Urgent and emergency care
Specialised services
Hospitals working together
Standardisation of commissioning policies

The West Yorkshire and Harrogate STP is built from six local area plans: Bradford 
District & Craven; Calderdale; Harrogate & Rural District; Kirklees; Leeds and 

Wakefield. This is based around the established relationships of the six Health and 
Wellbeing Boards and builds on their local health and wellbeing strategies. These six 

local plans are where the majority of the work happens. 

We have then supplemented the plan with work done that can only take place at a 
West Yorkshire and Harrogate level. This keeps us focused on an important principle 

of our STP - that we deal with issues as locally as possible 

24

DRAFT
ut aut a

ttheir colleagues froheir colle
re to jointly e to jointly plan for thosplan

kshire. kshire

e and Harrogate Sustainabe and Harrogate SustainabFT
orkshire and Harrogate STP isand Harrogate STP is

& Craven; Calderdale; Harrog& Craven; Calderda
ld. This is based around the eld. This is based around

eing Boards and builds on theeing Boards and builds on the
local plans are whns are wh

then supplementthen supplemen
re and Harrore and Harro

our STour ST

Page 39



Chapter 8 
Making the change happen 

The work to make some changes has already started. However we don’t yet have all of the 
answers and solutions for exactly how we will deliver the large changes that will improve the 
health and wellbeing of people in Leeds.

This will require lots of joint working with professionals from health and care, and importantly 
lots of joint working with you, the public as the people who will be pivotal to the way we do 
things in future. 

We will work with partners from across West Yorkshire to jointly change things as part of the 
West Yorkshire and Harrogate STP (where it makes sense to work together across that 
larger area). Figure 5 (below) shows the priorities for both plans. 

Leeds Health and 
Care Plan 

1. Prevention

2. Proactive Care &
Self-Management

3. Optimising
Secondary

4. Urgent Care and
Rapid Response

West Yorkshire & 
Harrogate STP 

1. Prevention
2. Primary and community

services
3. Mental health
4. Stroke
5. Cancer
6. Urgent and emergency care
7. Specialised services
8. Hospitals working together
9. Standardisation of

commissioning policies

25

DRAFT
RAFT
AFT

change thingchang
work together acrwork tog

plans. ans. 

DRA
DRAe Car
anagement

timising
Secondary

4. Urgent Care a
Rapid Respon

Wes
Harro

Pre

Page 40



Chapter 9 
How the future could look…

We haven’t got all the answers yet, but we do know what we would like the experiences and 
outcomes of people in Leeds to look like in the future.   

We have worked with patient groups and young people to tell the stories of 8 Leeds citizens, 
and find out how life is for them in Leeds in 2026, and what their experience is of living in the 
best city in the country for health and wellbeing.

*NOTE - This work is ongoing 1 story is presented here for information.
Upon completion, we will have graphic illustrations in videos produced for each of the 

cohorts:

1. Healthy children

2. Children with long term conditions

3. Healthy adults –occasional single episodes of planned and unplanned care

4. Adults at risk of developing a LTC

5. Adults with a single LTC

6. Adults with multiple LTCs

7. Frail adults - Lots of intervention

8. End of Life – Support advice and services in place to help individuals and their
families through death

9. We will also be developing health and care staff stories

26

e for infe for 
os producedos pro

sodes of planned and unplann of planned 

CC

TCsTCs

of interventionof intervention

– Support advice and servicepport advice and service
hrough deathhrough death

will also be developing healthwill also be developing hea

Page 41



Pr
es

en
t D

ay
 2

01
6

Fa
st

 F
or

w
ar

d 
to

 2
02

6
“It

’s
 a

 ra
re

 g
en

et
ic

 c
on

di
tio

n 
th

at
 a

ffe
ct

s 
th

e 
co

lla
ge

n 
bu

ild
-u

p 
in

 y
ou

r b
od

y 
an

d 
it 

re
su

lts
 in

 d
is

lo
ca

tin
g 

bo
ne

s 
an

d 
ot

he
r r

el
at

ed
 c

on
di

tio
ns

 li
ke

 
Fi

br
om

ya
lg

ia
 (a

no
th

er
 lo

ng
-te

rm
 c

on
di

tio
n 

th
at

 c
au

se
s 

pa
in

 a
ll 

ov
er

 th
e 

bo
dy

, 
he

ig
ht

en
ed

 s
en

si
tiv

ity
 to

 p
ai

n 
an

d 
ex

tre
m

e 
tir

ed
ne

ss
), 

po
ts

, i
rri

ta
bl

e 
bo

w
el

 
sy

nd
ro

m
e,

 a
nd

 s
ev

er
al

 o
th

er
 c

on
di

tio
ns

. I
 s

uf
fe

r w
ith

 a
ll 

of
 th

em
.”

“I 
ha

ve
 a

cc
es

s 
to

 u
p 

to
 d

at
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

ab
ou

t m
y 

co
nd

iti
on

s 
an

d 
I h

av
e 

w
ea

ra
bl

e 
te

ch
no

lo
gy

 th
at

 h
el

ps
 m

e 
ke

ep
 tr

ac
k 

of
 m

y 
he

al
th

 a
nd

 b
et

te
r 

m
an

ag
e 

m
y 

ow
n 

co
nd

iti
on

.”

“I 
sp

en
d 

al
l o

f m
y 

lif
e 

in
 a

nd
 o

ut
 o

f h
os

pi
ta

ls
 fo

r a
pp

oi
nt

m
en

ts
 a

nd
 s

ur
ge

ry
 a

ll 
ac

ro
ss

 th
e 

co
un

try
.”

“I 
ha

ve
 v

id
eo

 c
on

fe
re

nc
es

 w
ith

 th
e 

he
al

th
 p

ro
fe

ss
io

na
ls

 in
vo

lv
ed

 in
 m

y 
ca

re
 

to
ge

th
er

, s
o 

th
at

 a
ll 

m
y 

co
nd

iti
on

s 
ar

e 
di

sc
us

se
d 

at
 th

e 
sa

m
e 

tim
e.

”

“I 
w

is
h 

th
er

e 
w

ou
ld

 b
e 

a 
be

tte
r a

ll-
ro

un
d 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 to
 th

es
e 

ty
pe

s 
of

 
co

nd
iti

on
s,

 fo
r e

xa
m

pl
e 

I’v
e 

go
t t

en
 d

iff
er

en
t c

on
su

lta
nt

s 
al

l a
cr

os
s 

th
e 

co
un

try
.

I’v
e 

go
t o

ne
 in

 Y
or

k 
fo

r m
y 

w
ris

t, 
I’v

e 
go

t o
ne

 in
 B

ris
to

l f
or

 m
y 

K
ne

e,
 I’

ve
 g

ot
 

on
e 

in
 L

ee
ds

 fo
r m

y 
fo

ot
, i

t’s
 m

ad
.” 

“M
y 

ap
po

in
tm

en
ts

 a
re

 fi
tte

d 
ar

ou
nd

 m
y 

lif
e 

an
d 

w
he

n 
I n

ee
d 

an
 o

pe
ra

tio
n,

 I 
ca

n 
pi

ck
 w

he
re

 it
 h

ap
pe

ns
.”

“I 
be

lie
ve

 th
at

 h
av

in
g 

be
tte

r c
om

m
un

ic
at

io
n 

be
tw

ee
n 

de
pa

rtm
en

ts
 a

nd
 m

ay
be

 
a 

be
tte

r f
ili

ng
 s

ys
te

m
 a

bo
ut

 p
at

ie
nt

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

w
ou

ld
 m

ak
e 

th
in

gs
 li

ke
 th

is
 a

 
lo

t e
as

ie
r s

o 
th

at
 p

eo
pl

e 
do

n’
t h

av
e 

to
 g

o 
in

 a
nd

 e
xp

la
in

 th
e 

ca
se

 to
 e

ve
ry

 
si

ng
le

 p
er

so
n 

th
at

 th
ey

 s
ee

.”

“A
ll 

m
y 

he
al

th
 a

nd
 c

ar
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

is
 k

ep
t i

n 
on

e 
ce

nt
ra

l p
la

ce
. I

 c
an

 
ac

ce
ss

 it
 w

he
ne

ve
r I

 li
ke

, a
nd

 c
ho

os
e 

w
ho

 to
 s

ha
re

 it
 w

ith
. T

hi
s 

w
ay

, t
ho

se
 

in
vo

lv
ed

 in
 m

y 
ca

re
 w

ill
 h

av
e 

al
l t

he
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
th

ey
 n

ee
d 

to
 tr

ea
t m

e.
”

“T
he

 d
oc

to
r I

 w
as

 s
pe

ak
in

g 
w

ith
 d

ur
in

g 
m

y 
la

st
 v

is
it 

sa
id

 th
at

 th
in

gs
 h

av
e 

be
en

 m
uc

h 
be

tte
r s

in
ce

 e
ve

ry
on

e 
in

 L
ee

ds
 b

eg
an

 s
ha

rin
g 

ac
ce

ss
 to

 a
ll 

re
co

rd
s.

 T
he

y 
us

ed
 to

 h
av

e 
to

 p
ho

ne
 u

p 
ea

ch
 ti

m
e 

th
ey

 w
an

te
d 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n,

 a
nd

 e
ve

n 
se

nt
 fa

xe
s.

 N
ow

 th
ey

 c
an

 g
et

 w
ha

t t
he

y 
ne

ed
 s

tra
ig

ht
 

aw
ay

. T
hi

s 
do

ct
or

 w
as

 s
ay

in
g 

it 
sa

ve
s 

th
e 

ho
sp

ita
ls

 m
or

e 
th

an
 £

1m
 a

 y
ea

r 
be

ca
us

e 
th

ey
 d

on
’t 

ha
ve

 to
 w

as
te

 ti
m

e 
ph

on
in

g 
ro

un
d 

an
d 

ch
as

in
g 

pe
op

le
 

fo
r i

nf
or

m
at

io
n.

”

Pa
tie

nt
 S

to
ry

 –
 C

la
ire

, 2
4,

 M
id

dl
et

on
C

la
ire

 h
as

 m
ul

tip
le

 lo
ng

-te
rm

 c
on

di
tio

ns
 a

nd
 n

ee
ds

 o
ng

oi
ng

 
su

pp
or

t t
o 

m
an

ag
e 

th
es

e 
“H

i, 
m

y 
na

m
e’

s 
C

la
ire

. I
’m

 2
4 

ye
ar

s 
ol

d 
an

d 
I’v

e 
su

ffe
re

d 
w

ith
 q

ui
te

 a
 ra

re
 c

on
di

tio
n 

ca
lle

d 
Eh

le
rs

 
D

an
lo

s 
sy

nd
ro

m
e 

al
l m

y 
lif

e.
” 

27
DR

ca
tio

n 
be

tw
ee

n 
de

pa
rtm

en
ts

 a
n D

rm
at

io
n 

w
ou

ld
 m

ak
e 

th DD
n 

an
d 

ex
pl

ai
n 

th
e 

c DDRRA
DRARA

e 
ty

pe
s 

of
 RA

al
l a

cr
os

s 
th

e RARA
DR

fo
r m

y 
K

ne
e,

 I’
ve

 g
ot

 

DRDRRAA“ Ac RAFTFTFT
Fo

rw
ar

d 
to

 2
0 TTFT

AAAAFTFT
av

e 
ac

ce
ss

 to
 u

p 
to

 d
at

e 
in

fo
r FT

w
ea

ra
bl

e 
te

ch
no

lo
gy

 th
at

 h
el

ps
 

AFT
m

an
ag

e 
m

y 
ow

n FTFT
AAFARAA

er
y 

al RARAFAF
“I 

ha
ve

 v
id

eo
 c

on AF
og

et
he

r, 
so

 th
a AAAAFAF

RARARARARARARARA
DRRA
DR

T

DR

io
n 

ca
lle

d 
E

io
n 

ca

Page 42



Chapter 10 
What happens next?

The Leeds health and care sustainability plan is really a place to pull together lots of pieces 
of work that are being done by lots of health and care organisations in Leeds.

Pulling the work together, all into one place is important to help health care professionals, 
citizens, politicians and other interested stakeholders understand the ‘bigger picture’ in 
terms of the work being done to improve the health of people in the city. 

Change is happening already 
Much of this work is already happening as public services such as the NHS and the Council 
are always changing and trying to improve the way things are done.

Because much of the work is ongoing, there isn’t a start or an end date to the Leeds plan in 
the way that you might expect from other types of plan. Work will continue as partners come 
together to try and improve the health of people in the city, focussing on some of the priority 
areas we looked at in Chapter 4.

Involving you in the plans for change 
We all know that plans are better when they are developed with people and communities; 
our commitment is to do that so that we can embed the changes and make them a reality.

We will continue to actively engage with you around any change proposals, listening to what 
you say, to develop our proposals further. 

We are starting to develop our plans around how we will involve, engage and consult with 
all stakeholders, including you, and how it will work across the future planning process and 
the role of the Health and Wellbeing Boards.

Working with Healthwatch
Planning our involvement work will include further work with Healthwatch and our voluntary 
sector partners such as Leeds Involving People, Voluntary Action Leeds, Volition and many 
others to make sure we connect with all groups and communities. 

When will changes happen? 
While work to improve things in Leeds is already happening, it is important that 
improvements happen more quickly to improve the health of residents and the quality and 
efficiency of services for us all.

Joint working
Working together, partners of the Health and Wellbeing Board in Leeds will continue to 
decide on the priorities for the city, and areas that we should focus on in order to improve 
the health of people living in Leeds.

Alongside the Health and Wellbeing Board, the heads of the various health and care 
organisations in the city will work much more closely through regular, joint meetings of the 
Partnership Executive Group (a meeting of the leaders of each organisation) to ensure that 
there is a place for the more detailed planning and delivery of improvements to health and 
care in the city.

28

DRAFTh as the NHS andh as the 
are done.re do

art or an end date art or to the Leedo the L
plan. Workplan. W  will continue as pawill continue as pa

in the city, fon the city, focussing on somecuss

n they are developed with peohey are developed with p
t we can embed the changesan embed the changes

gage with you around any chgage with you around
posals further. posals furthe

elop our plans around lop our plans around how wehow w
cluding you,g you, and how it will wo and how it will wo

ealth and Wellbeing Boards.alth and Wellbein

th Healthwatchth Healthwatch
our involvement work will incour involvement work will inc
ners such as Leeds Involners such as Leeds I

e sure we connect e sure we connec

s happens happen
e thie thi

Page 43



Who will make decisions?  
Ultimately, there will be lots of changes made to the way that health and care services work 
in Leeds. Some of these will be minor changes that most citizens won’t really be aware of.

Things like changes to the way we manage NHS or council staff behind the scenes to try 
and improve efficiency, or the way that we use buildings, or digital technology. 

Other changes will be more significant such as new buildings or big changes to the way that 
people access certain services.

Legal duties to involve people in changes 
Leeds City Council and all of the NHS organisations in Leeds have separate, but similar, 
obligations to consult or otherwise involve the public in our plans for change.

For example, CCGs are bound by rules set out in law in section 14Z2 of the NHS Act 2006, 
as amended by the Health and Social Care Act 2012.

This is all fairly technical, but there is a helpful document that sets out the advice from NHS 
England about how local NHS organisations and Councils should go about engaging local 
people in plans for change.

The report can be viewed here: 
https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2016/09/engag-local-people-stps.pdf 

NHS organisations in Leeds must also consult the local authority on ‘substantial 
developments or variation in health services’. This is a clear legal duty that is set out in 
S244 of the NHS Act 2006.

Scrutiny 
Any significant changes to services will involve detailed discussions with patients and the 
public, and will be considered by the Leeds Adult Social Services, Public Health, NHS 
Scrutiny Board. This is a board made up of democratically elected councillors in Leeds, 
whose job it is to look at the planning and delivery of health and care services in the city, 
and consider whether this is being done in a way that ensures the interests and rights of 
patients are being met, and that health and care organisations are doing things according to 
the rules and in the interests of the public. 

29

DRAFT
pp

r changr cha

n 14Z2 of the NHn 14Z2 

ent that sets out the advice front that sets out the adv
ouncils should go about engaguncils should go about enga

ploads/2016/09/engag-local-pploads/2016/09/eng

AFso consult the local authority onsult the local authority 
th services’. Ths’. T is is a clear legs is a clear le

s to services will invos to services will inv lve detaideta
onsidered by the dered by the Leeds AdultLeeds AdultRThis is a board made up of deboard made up of de

o look at the planning and deo look at the plannin
r whether this is being done inr whether this is being don

re being met, and that re being met, and tha health ealth 
and in the interests of the pand in the interests of 

Page 44



Chapter 11 
Getting involved 

Sign up for updates about the Leeds Health and Care Plan 

*NOTE – Final version will include details of how to be part of the Big Conversation

Other ways to get involved 
You can get involved with the NHS and Leeds City Council in many ways locally. 

1. By becoming a member of any of the local NHS trusts in Leeds:
Main Hospitals: Leeds Teaching Hospitals Trust -
http://www.leedsth.nhs.uk/members/becoming-a-member/
Mental Health: Leeds & York Partnership Foundation Trust -
http://www.leedsandyorkpft.nhs.uk/membership/foundationtrust/Becomeamem
ber
Leeds Community Healthcare Trust –
http://www.leedscommunityhealthcare.nhs.uk/working-together/active-and-
involved/

2. Working with the Commissioning groups in Leeds by joining our Patient
Leader programme:
https://www.leedswestccg.nhs.uk/content/uploads/2015/11/Patient-leader-leaflet-
MAIN.pdf

3. Primary Care – Each GP practice in Leeds has a Patient Participation Group
Contact your GP to find out details of yours. You can also attend your local Primary
Care Commissioning Committee, a public meeting where decisions are made about
the way that local NHS leaders plan services and make spending decisions about GP
services in your area.

4. Becoming a member of Healthwatch

30

DRAFT
LeedsLeed

a-member/a-member Tndation Trust -ndation Trust -
rship/foundationtrust/Becomrship/foundationtrus

FTare.re.nhs.uk/working-together/anhs.uk/workiFT
ng groups in Leeds byng groups in Leeds b  joini

hs.uk/content/uontent/uploads/2015/1ploads/2015/1Ah GP practice inh GP practi  Leeds has Lee
o find out details of yo find out detai ours. Yours.

oning Committee, a public mning Committee, a public m
local NHS leaders plan servicNHS leaders plan servic

n your area.your area.

oming a member of Healthwoming a member of Health

Page 45



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix B – Changing Leeds 

What is ‘Changing Leeds’? 

Key messages 
“Changing Leeds: Everyone’s got a part to play 
 
We all play a part in looking after each other, ourselves and the places we live and work - you and your 
neighbours, big and small businesses, community and voluntary groups and the public sector.  
 
Changing Leeds is an invitation for anyone who lives, works, visits or studies in Leeds to talk about the 
challenges that public services and communities in Leeds are facing.  
 
Changing Leeds recognises that now’s the time to get together as a city and talk about what we all want 
Leeds to be like, and how we can all do things differently”. 
 
Purpose and timing 
Changing Leeds is an engagement with the whole city on issues arising from the changing ‘social contract’, 
civic enterprise approach, and the future role of the council.  
 
The overall purpose is to help people who live, work and study in Leeds think differently about their 
relationship with local public services, and ultimately do things differently as well.  
 
The launch date is tbc as soon after the general election as practical. The initial phase of Changing Leeds 
will run for at least 3 months, with a review in early autumn. Further phases and developments may last for 
a number of years.  
 
Changing Leeds will signpost people to the most appropriate places for other purposes e.g. 
DoingGoodLeeds website, LCC website, Community Committees, and will link active citizens to appropriate 
support.  
 
What Changing Leeds isn’t 
The Changing Leeds engagement is not a consultation on specific service changes, or on the council’s 
annual budget setting process. However, these separate activities are likely to be informed by insight 
generated through Changing Leeds.  
 
Objectives 
The nature and focus of the Changing Leeds engagement will evolve over the next few years. This note is 
concerned with the initial c3-4-month phase, with objectives to: 

 raise awareness of the need for a new relationship between the council, partners in all sectors, and 
the community, and the implications of this  

 encourage a wider discussion in the city about how people can look after themselves, each other 
and the places they live and work 

 provide a consistent narrative for service-led consultations on changes 
 

Ethos and principles 
Changing Leeds is purposely designed to be different to many other council-led engagement exercises. It 
aims to be a ‘city’ conversation and not purely a council one. It encourages others to deliver it and develop 
it beyond its council-enabled starting point, an intentional relaxation of control. It encourages us to listen 
better.  
Key principles are: 

 Use stories and case studies to ‘make it real’ and ‘about where I live’ 
 Make it about Leeds, local neighbourhoods and people; not all about the council 

Page 47



 Project positivity and confidence about Leeds’ capacity to be the best city 
 Discussion generates insight on opportunities, fears, enabling behaviour change 
 Go to where people already gather wherever practical 
 Use a range of online, social media and face to face methods 
 Make it easy for local people, groups and partners to host engagement activity 
 Ensure Members and senior officers play key, visible roles in engagement 

 
Design and delivery 
Over the past 18 months the design of Changing Leeds has benefitted from the input of many staff, 
partners and suppliers including ResearchBods, NHS partners and Voluntary Action Leeds, and vitally, the 
feedback from c100 local people during testing. 
 
Changing Leeds will use a range of online, social media and offline approaches (including a short animated 
film and hub website (temporary login details are available) to encourage greater awareness of the 
changes taking place, stimulate public discussion and ideas generation, and act as backdrop to specific 
engagement on service changes.  
 
NB: The website hosts the stories of ‘doing things differently’ and a range of discussion forums and polls. It 
is a work in progress – the ‘Looking after places’ area is the most representative of the finished article. The 
URL will be www.changingleeds.org (not yet active)  
 
A fully costed communications and marketing plan has been drafted, prioritising use of existing networks of 
influence and cost-effective channels such as social media advertising over more traditional approaches.  
 
All outsourced design and delivery (the film, the website hosting, and the illustrations) has been with Leeds-
based suppliers, including not-for profits and young people starting up.  
 
Existing events, forums etc will be invited to take part before any new Changing Leeds events are created. 
A toolkit will be available for those looking to run their own discussions in communities or workplaces.  
 
Colleagues will be encouraged to promote and participate in Changing Leeds – both as council staff and as 
Leeds residents. 
 
#changingleeds and @changingleeds have been secured but are not yet active.  
 
Links to Leeds Health and Care Plan engagement 
Conversations have taken place over the last year about how best to align Changing Leeds with emerging 
engagement plans for the Leeds Health and Care Plan (lead: Stuart Barnes, Leeds North CCG), through 
forums such as PEG, the Transformation Comms and Engagement Group and People’s Voices Group.  
 
There is strategic and operational agreement that this alignment should happen, to present a united ‘city 
conversation’, or close family of conversations.  At present, while Changing Leeds will cover stories of 
personal health and wellbeing e.g. self-care, diabetes interventions, it has avoided stories about 
organisational or detailed clinical changes.   
 
Contacts for further information and website logins: 
Matt Lund matthew.lund@leeds.gov.uk 
John McPherson john.mcpherson@leeds.gov.uk  

Page 48



 

1 
 

 

 

Report of: Leeds Health and Care Partnership Executive Group (PEG) 

Report to: Leeds Health and Wellbeing Board 

Date:         20 June 2017 

Subject:    Leeds Health and Care Quarterly Financial Reporting 

Are specific geographical areas affected?    Yes   No 

If relevant, name(s) of area(s):   

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion and 
integration? 

  Yes   No 

Is the decision eligible for call-In?   Yes   No 

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?   Yes   No 

If relevant, access to information procedure rule number: 

Appendix number: 

Summary of main issues: 
This report provides the Health and Wellbeing Board with an overview of the financial 
positions of the health & care organisations in Leeds, brought together to provide a single 
citywide quarterly financial report (Appendix 1). Key headlines: 
 Leeds health & care system ended 2016/17 in a more favourable position than that 

predicted at quarter 3. This was entirely driven by non-recurrent factors. 
 The plans for health and care services within Leeds City Council and for the Leeds 

CCGs demonstrate the delivery of a breakeven position across the future 4-year 
planning period. This is predicated on the assumed delivery of significant levels of 
recurrent savings and the CCGs being able to access some of their previously 
accumulated surpluses.  

 The aggregate 4-year plans of the three NHS Trusts do not achieve breakeven across 
the whole period without receipt of additional national funding or better management of 
demand. Their plans are also predicated on the delivery of significant levels of 
savings. 

 There is significant financial risk associated with the plans of all partners. Further 
citywide action is required to mitigate the risks in single organisation plans. 

Recommendations: 
The Health and Wellbeing Board is asked to: 

 Review the Leeds health & care quarterly financial report. 
 Note the extent of the financial challenge over the next year and until 2021 and the 

need to further develop a shared system-wide response and assurance that this 
challenge will be met.   

 Provide clear guidance to the Leeds Health and Care Partnership Executive Group 
on the possible actions required to achieve financial sustainability. 

Report author: Kim Gay, Associate 
Director of Finance, LTHT 
 

Page 49

Agenda Item 10



 

2 
 

1 Purpose of this report 

1.1 This report provides the Health and Wellbeing Board with a brief overview of the 
financial positions of the health and care organisations in Leeds, brought together 
to provide a single citywide quarterly financial report (Appendix 1). 

1.2 This financial ‘health check’ aims to clarify where the current and expected 
financial pressures are in the local health and care system. This provides the 
Health and Wellbeing Board with an opportunity to direct action which will support 
an appropriate and effective response.  

1.3 This paper supports the Board’s role in having strategic oversight of and both the 
financial sustainability of the Leeds health and care system and of the executive 
function carried out by the Leeds Health and Care Partnership Executive Group. 

2 Background information 

2.1 In September 2016, the Leeds Health and Wellbeing Board considered a paper 
entitled ‘Towards Better Joint Health and Care Working – A Governance Update’. 
The Health and Wellbeing Board endorsed a number of proposals within this 
paper, which included that:  

o The Board has a principle role in the oversight of the financial sustainability of 
the Leeds system 

o The Board oversee the Leeds Health and Care Partnership Executive Group 
(PEG) which exists as a meeting of the executive functions for the 
partnership in relation to the direct health and care system and therefore task 
it with implementing the Leeds STP 

o The Board receive a quarterly report from the PEG, providing a financial 
health check for Leeds health and care provision. 

2.2 In February 2017, it was agreed that this quarterly financial reporting would begin 
at the next public meeting, scheduled for 20th June 2017.  

2.3 The financial information contained within this report has been contributed by 
Directors of Finance from Leeds City Council, Leeds Community Healthcare Trust, 
Leeds Teaching Hospital Trust, Leeds and York Partnership Trust and the Leeds 
Clinical Commissioning Groups. 

3 Main issues 

3.1 The Leeds health and care system collectively achieved a better end of year 
position than had been predicted. This was due to non-recurrent factors within the 
city and the receipt of a national subsidy from NHS regulators. 

 
3.2 All organisations in the West Yorkshire and Harrogate Sustainability and 

Transformation Partnership (STP) have recently refreshed their financial plans for 
the next 4 financial years, 2017/18 to 2020/21. 

  

Page 50



 

3 
 

3.3 For health and care services in Leeds City Council this showed a break-even 
position for each of those years on the assumption that savings of £66.5m will be 
delivered over that period.  

 
3.4 The aggregate position of the 3 CCGs shows a breakeven position throughout the 

planning period but assumes the drawdown of £11.5m of previously accumulated 
surpluses. Again, this assumes that savings of £143.6m is delivered over that 
same period. CCG allocations including primary care but excluding specialised 
services will grow from £1.2bn in 17/18 to £1.3bn in 20/21. 

 
3.5 For the 3 NHS Trusts, the position excluding the national subsidy provided through 

Sustainability and Transformation (STF monies) starts with an aggregate deficit of 
£9.2m in 17/18 and £5.4m in 18/19 and small surpluses of £0.8m and £1.8m in 
19/20 and 20/21 respectively. This relies on full delivery of local savings 
amounting to £185.8m across the 4-year period. 

 
3.6 On the most optimistic assumption that all required savings are delivered in full 

and the CCGs can drawdown some of their previously accumulated surpluses, the 
NHS partners in the city do not collectively achieve a breakeven position across 
the period unless some form of further national funding is provided or demand is 
more effectively managed. After taking into consideration the further financial risks 
identified by each partner, it is clear that further citywide action is still needed to 
contribute to the mitigation of these single organisation risks. 

 
3.7 There is currently a major programmes of work involving multiple partners being 

planned or carried out in the city under the auspices of the Leeds Plan (SRO Tom 
Riordan). This includes a clear estates and workforce strategy. Key parts of this 
are: Development of Strategic Commissioning and System Integration (SROs Phil 
Corrigan and Nigel Gray); New Models of Care/provider network (SRO Thea Stein. 
Significant amounts of managerial and clinical leadership capacity is being 
committed to this work. To date, only the Procurement and Estates programmes 
within the Leeds Plan have identified any financial benefits that can contribute to 
mitigating the risks identified above. 

4 Health and Wellbeing Board governance 

4.1 Consultation, engagement and hearing citizen voice 

4.1.1 Development of the Leeds health & care quarterly financial report is overseen by 
the Directors of Finance from Leeds City Council, Leeds Community Healthcare 
Trust, Leeds Teaching Hospital Trust, Leeds and York Partnership Trust and the 
Leeds Clinical Commissioning Groups.  

 
4.1.2 Individual organisation engage with citizens through their own internal process and 

spending priorities are aligned to the Leeds Health & Wellbeing Strategy 2016-
2021, which was developed through significant engagement activity. 

4.2 Equality and diversity / cohesion and integration 

4.2.1 Through the Leeds health & care quarterly financial report we are better able to 
understand a citywide position and identify challenges and opportunities across 
the health and care system to contribute to the delivery of the vision that ‘Leeds 
will be a healthy and caring city for all ages, where people who are the poorest 

Page 51



 

4 
 

improve their health the fastest’, which underpins the Leeds Health and Wellbeing 
Strategy 2016- 2021.                                                                              

4.3 Resources and value for money  

4.3.1 Whilst the Health and Wellbeing Board has oversight of the financial stability of the 
Leeds system, the PEG has committed to use the ‘Leeds £’, our money and other 
resources, wisely for the good of the people we serve in a way in which also 
balances the books for the city. Bringing together financial updates from health 
and care organisations in a single place has multiple benefits; we are better able 
to understand a citywide position, identify challenges and opportunities across the 
health and care system and ensure that people of Leeds are getting good value for 
the collective Leeds £.  

4.4 Legal Implications, access to information and call In 

4.4.1 There is no access to information and call-in implications arising from this report. 

4.5 Risk management 

4.5.1 The Leeds health & care quarterly financial report outlines the extent of the 
financial challenge facing the Leeds health and care system up until 2021. These 
risks are actively monitored and mitigated against, through regular partnership 
meetings including the Citywide Director of Finance group and reporting to the 
PEG and other partnership groups as needed. Furthermore, each individual 
organisation has financial risk management processes and reporting mechanisms 
in place. 

5 Conclusions 

5.1 Whilst in 2016/17 all health and care partners in the city met the required targets 
this was due to non-recurrent benefits rather than sustainable changes to 
operational delivery. For the 4 years 2017/18 to 2020/21, whilst on paper the city 
comes close to delivering a breakeven position, there is reliance on the successful 
delivery of a high level of savings in each organisation.  

6 Recommendations 

   The Health and Wellbeing Board is asked to: 
 Review the Leeds health & care quarterly financial report. 
 Note the extent of the financial challenge over the next year and until 2021 

and the need to further develop a shared system-wide response and 
assurance that this challenge will be met.   

 Provide clear guidance to the Leeds Health and Care Partnership Executive 
Group on the possible actions required to achieve financial sustainability. 

7 Background documents  

7.1    None 

 
 
 
 

Page 52



 

5 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
How does this help reduce health inequalities in Leeds?  
 
An efficient health and care system in financial balance enables us to use resources more 
effectively and target these in areas of greatest need.  
 
How does this help create a high quality health and care system? 
 
Driving up quality depends on having the resources to meet the health and care needs of 
the people of Leeds. Spending every penny wisely on evidence based interventions and 
ensuring we have an appropriate workforce and can manage our workforce effectively 
promotes system-wide sustainability.  
 
How does this help to have a financially sustainable health and care system?  
 
It maintains visibility of the financial position of the statutory partners in the city 
 
Future challenges or opportunities 
 
Future updates will be brought to the Health and Wellbeing Board as requested and 
should be factored into the work plan of the Board. 
 
 
 
 

Priorities of the Leeds Health and Wellbeing Strategy 2016-21 
(please tick all that apply to this report) 
A Child Friendly City and the best start in life X 

An Age Friendly City where people age well X 

Strong, engaged and well-connected communities X 

Housing and the environment enable all people of Leeds to be healthy X 

A strong economy with quality, local jobs  X 

Get more people, more physically active, more often  X 

Maximise the benefits of information and technology X 

A stronger focus on prevention X 

Support self-care, with more people managing their own conditions X 

Promote mental and physical health equally X 

A valued, well trained and supported workforce X 

The best care, in the right place, at the right time X 

Implementing the Leeds 
Health and Wellbeing 
Strategy 2016-21 

Page 53



 

6 
 

Leeds Health and Care Partnership Executive Group                  Appendix 1 
 
Financial position for the 12 months ended 31st March 2017 and assessment of financial risks for 2017/18 to 2020/21 
 
1. Section 1 - City Summary 
Sign convention – negative numbers = ADVERSE variances 
 

 
This is the updated dashboard for the City. At quarter 3 the health and care system was under significant pressure and the end of year forecasts predicted 
an aggregate adverse variance of £22.9m. The reported end of year position shows a much-improved position with an aggregate favourable variance of 
£7.7m the majority of which relates to technical and one-off adjustments rather than improved operational delivery. £11.3m of this improvement is the 
release of the 1% risk reserve that NHSE required CCGs to keep, contributing to the national financial position. A further £9.6m relates to the unexpected 
receipt in quarter 4 of Sustainability and Transformation (STF) monies from NHS Improvement (NHSI) to the 3 NHS Trusts. In quarter 4, the control total 
for Leeds Teaching Hospitals was changed by £5.0m to reflect the exceptional nature of the failure of the Pathology IT system.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Plan Forecast Var Plan Forecast Var Plan Forecast Var Plan Forecast Var Plan Forecast Var

£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m

Leeds City Council 629.9 635.4 5.5    155.4 154.6 0.8      474.5 488.7 14.2‐  629.9 643.3 13.4‐  ‐      7.9‐         7.9‐      

Leeds Community Healthcare 

Trust 148.4         148.7      0.3    105.0         106.5     1.5‐      40.5    39.0        1.5     145.5     145.5      ‐    2.9       3.2         0.3      

Leeds Teaching Hospitals NHS 

Trust 1,176.8     1,172.9  3.9‐    661.5         679.6     18.1‐    519.1  495.2     23.9  1,180.6  1,174.8   5.8    3.8‐       1.9‐         1.9      

Leeds & York Partnership 

Foundation Trust 149.6         153.5      3.8    106.6         106.6     0.1      39.9    41.7        1.8‐     146.6     148.3      1.7‐    3.1       5.2         2.1      

Leeds North CCG 282.1         282.1      ‐    3.1              3.1          ‐      279.0  276.3     2.7     282.1     279.4      2.7    ‐      2.7         2.7      

Leeds South and East CCG 408.3         408.3      ‐    5.5              5.1          0.3      402.8  399.1     3.7     408.3     404.2      4.1    ‐      4.1         4.1      

Leeds West CCG 465.9         465.9      ‐    4.3              4.2          0.1      461.6  457.2     4.4     465.9     461.4      4.5    ‐      4.5         4.5      

Movement 

from Q3

12 months ended 31st March 

2017

Net surplus/(deficit)Total Income/Funding Pay Costs Other Costs Total Costs

P
age 54



 

7 
 

2. Level of financial risk in 2017/18 and beyond 

 
All organisations in the West Yorkshire and Harrogate STP have recently refreshed their financial plans for the next 4 financial years.  
 

 For health and care services in the City Council this showed a break-even position for each of those years on the assumption that savings of 
£66.5m will be delivered over that period.  

 The aggregate position of the 3 CCGs shows a breakeven position throughout the planning period but assumes the drawdown of £11.5m of 
previously accumulated surpluses. Again, this assumes that savings of £143.6m is delivered over that same period. CCG allocations including 
primary care but excluding specialised services will grow from £1.2bn in 17/18 to £1.3bn in 20/21. 

 For the 3 NHS Trusts, the position excluding the national subsidy provided through STF monies starts with an aggregate deficit of £9.2m in 17/18 
and £5.4m in 18/19 and small surpluses of £0.8m and £1.8m in 19/20 and 20/21 respectively. This relies on full delivery of local savings amounting 
to £185.8m across the 4-year period. 

 
Source = refresh of WY&Y financial plans 2017/18 to 2020/21 
 

Organisation Control total/ 
drawdown 

agreed 

Planned 
surplus/(deficit) 

(NHS Trusts excl 
STF) 

Level of 
CIP/QIPP/savings 
included in plan 

£m 

CIP/QIPP/savings as 
proportion of 

turnover 
% 

Level of 
Uncommitted 
CCG Reserves 

required by 
NHSE 

 17/18 18/19 17/18 18/19 17/18 18/19 17/18 18/19 17/18 18/19 
Leeds City Council     £24.1m £18.8m 6.0% 4.4%   

Leeds Community Healthcare NHS Trust Y N £2.1m £1.4m £3.9m £3.6m 2.7% 2.5%   

Leeds Teaching Hospitals NHS Trust Y Y (£14.0m) (£6.8m) £63.9m £46.8m 5.4% 3.8%   

Leeds and York Partnership Foundation 
Trust 

Y N £2.7m £0.0m £6.0m £3.4m 4.0% 2.3%   

Leeds North CCG Y Y £0.0m (£0.1m) £8.6m £7.4m 2.5% 2.1% £4.3m £4.3m 

Leeds South and East CCG Y Y (£0.6m) (£1.6m) £12.5m £12.9m 2.4% 2.5% £4.2m £4.2m 

Leeds West CCG Y Y £0.0m (£0.2m) £13.8m £14.0m 2.5% 2.4% £4.7m £4.8m 

 
The table above shows some of the factors contributing to financial risk in the city that affect most partners.  

 
 
 
 

P
age 55



 

8 
 

 
 
3. Savings from citywide working 

 
On the most optimistic assumption that all required savings are delivered in full and the CCGs can drawdown some of their previously 
accumulated surpluses, the NHS partners in the city do not collectively achieve a breakeven position across the period unless some further 
national funding is provided or unless all partners pull together and become more efficient by better managing demand in the system. There is 
currently significant work involving multiple partners being planned or carried out in the city. Significant amounts of managerial and clinical 
leadership capacity is being committed to this work. This sits under the umbrella of the Leeds Plan (SRO Tom Riordan), itself a major 
component of the wider Health and Wellbeing Strategy and includes the system integration work and better alignment of commissioning as 
well as provider development and the development of New Models of Care and our Accountable Care System. Further detail is being 
worked up via these change initiatives. 

 
4. Conclusions 

 
Partners should be congratulated for achieving significant progress in 2016/17. The challenge remains tough for future years as the 
population ages and national budgets are reduced in real terms. Plans to meet these challenges will be monitored closely by partners through 
PEG and through individual governance. 

 

P
age 56



 

 

 

 

Report of: Tony Cooke (Chief Officer, Health Partnerships), Sara Munro (Chief Executive, 
Leeds & York Partnership NHS Foundation Trust), Susan Tyler (Director of Workforce 
Development, Leeds & York Partnership NHS Foundation Trust), Joss Ivory (Deputy Chief 
Officer - Human Resources, Leeds City Council),  

Report to: Leeds Health and Wellbeing Board 

Date: 20th June 2017 

Subject: Being the best city for health requires the best workforce 

Are specific geographical areas affected?    Yes   No 

If relevant, name(s) of area(s):   

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion and 
integration? 

  Yes   No 

Is the decision eligible for call-In?   Yes   No 

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?   Yes   No 

If relevant, access to information procedure rule number: 

Appendix number: 

Summary of main issues  

Leeds faces a number of workforce related issues. Some of these are more immediate 
and some can be addressed by the longer term strategic approach suggested in the 
Health and Wellbeing Strategy. These have been outlined in the Partnership Executive 
Group paper (November 2016) which also outlined governance structures for workforce 
issues and workforce workstream priorities:   

 Recruitment and retention (nursing, GPs, social care) remains a key challenge and 
the removal of nursing bursaries, the impact of Brexit and competition from other 
sectors such as retail, all impact on our ability to attract and retain staff at all levels. 

 Changing patterns of health and social care need (ageing population, more people 
with long term conditions) require us to better understand our future workforce 
needs. 

 The urgency of the situation requires both short and long term plans to ensure we 
develop a workforce fit for the future and are able, as much as it is ever possible, to 
control our own destiny as a City. 

Report author:  Tony Cooke (Chief 
Officer, Health Partnerships) 

Page 57

Agenda Item 11



 

 

 The workforce challenge offers an opportunity to utilise opportunities to grow our 
own workforce and we can use this to increase aspirations in young people, 
promote social mobility and provide more pathways into employment for people with 
disabilities.  

 The paper outlines three ways we can ‘up our game’ on the workforce challenges 
and asks some key questions of the Board and its members.  

Recommendations 

The Health and Wellbeing Board is asked to: 
 
 Consider the role of the Health and Wellbeing Board in overcoming challenges relating 

to workforce and provide direction for progress towards the priorities of the Leeds 
Health and Wellbeing Strategy 2016-21. 
 

 Support the engagement of members in discussions about the Living Wage and attend 
the Low Pay Seminar when arranged. 

 
 Oversee/raise the profile of the Supporting Disabled People into Employment Project to 

ensure it remains consistent with the city’s health and wellbeing priorities and 
participate in a ‘health, wellbeing and employment workshop’ in October 2017. 

 
 Continue to note and support the development of Leeds Health and Care Academy and 

to receive regular updates on progress. 
 

 The City Workforce Workstream should be used to understand and plan responses to 
these challenges and keep the Board up to date with progress. 

Page 58



 

 

1 Purpose of this report 

1.1 Leeds has a bold ambition to be the best city for health and wellbeing. The best 
city needs the best workforce able to work in an integrated manner aware of the 
current and future challenges and opportunities. This is set out in the Leeds 
Health and Wellbeing Strategy 2016-21, which also describes twelve supporting 
priorities, including ‘a valued, well trained and supported workforce’ and ‘a strong 
economy with quality, local jobs’. The PEG paper ‘Workforce Workstream Update 
and Next Steps’ outlined our current response and key objectives in November 
2016. Since then Board members have requested further discussion on the 
challenges we face plus updates on our responses such as Living Wage, the 
Academy and the Supporting Disabled People into Employment Project (aka 
Disability Employment Project). 

This report sets out a short summary of the city’s challenges relating to workforce 
and presents information on three potential and developing solutions and asks the 
Board to consider their role in progressing, steering and directing future work to 
address challenges and help achieve our bold ambition.  

2 Background information 

2.1 This report is set within the context of some key challenges/opportunities: 

 The Leeds Health and Wellbeing Strategy 2016-21 and Leeds Plan both 
outline the importance of workforce as an enabler to a sustainable and 
successful health and care system. The Leeds Plan approach includes 
recruitment and retention, workforce profile, culture change, skills mix and the 
promotion of apprenticeships.  

 There are 57,000 people currently working in the Health and Care workforce 
in Leeds with many more people employed in areas that influence health and 
wellbeing such as housing, employment, skills/training and community 
services.  

 A large number of people (600,000 in Leeds City Region by 2020) are set to 
retire from the Leeds workforce over the next few years, creating capacity 
gaps throughout the system. In the medium term, we also face numerous 
strategic challenges/opportunities such as the impact of Brexit, the digital 
agenda, reduced budgets, and competition for the best staff from other cities 
and the city’s growing retail sector. 

 Partners have held a workforce organisational development event that has 
prioritised key facets of workforce integration such as shared leadership 
training, common induction and shared visions for workforce development. 
The event sought to understand the perceived level of workforce integration 
across public sector partners and to develop a shared understanding of the 
level of integration supported by the system.  

 

Page 59



 

 

3 Main issues 

3.1 This section of the report introduces chapters relating to three aspects of 
workforce development in Leeds. 

3.2 Leeds Health and Social Care Academy 

3.2.1 Leeds Health and Social Care Academy is a huge opportunity to shape our 
existing workforce, promote common culture and ensure the workforce reflects the 
diversity of the city’s population, promotes social mobility and career choices in 
deprived areas. Ultimately, it positions Leeds as being a city that is fit for the 
future and ready to meet the challenges posed by rapid change. 

3.2.2 Health and Care employers and the three universities in Leeds, through the Leeds 
Academic Health Partnership, have come together to establish the Leeds Health 
and Care Academy to deliver a place-based workforce education, training and 
development that: 

 Covers the whole workforce at all grades and disciplines, including primary care 
and the care home/social care sector. 

 Engages with research and innovation. 
 Grows in its investment and supports the delivery of a system-wide workforce 

plan. 
 Provides professional development of existing staff to respond to the changing 

needs of citizens.  
 Develops a compelling ‘Leeds offer’, backed by investment, which attracts 

young people and working age adults to consider a career in health and social 
care in Leeds.  

3.2.3 The Academy supports the delivery of the Leeds Health and Wellbeing Strategy 
2016-21 and the Leeds Health and Care Plan, which promote our priorities for 
inclusive economic growth and a valued, well-trained and supported workforce.  

Benefits of a mature Health and Social Care Academy 
Benefit Potential milestones 
Support 
System 
Sustainability 
 

 Secure alternative (internal) supplies of qualified and registered staff, making 
best use of our existing workforce and attracting people into the workforce 

 Develop new system-wide roles at pace and shared purpose 
 Potential for agreement investing in the apprenticeship levy to enhance social 

mobility and ensure a good stream of staff across the workforce 
Bring Health 
and Care 
Innovations 
Rapidly to 
People and 
Patients 
 

 Capitalise on unique links with Leeds’ universities to accelerate learning and 
education in the workplace and ensure research is put into practice 

 Bring research expertise to classroom learning where hospital nurses, district 
nurses, doctors, social workers, and GPs etc, could agree changes in practice 
required to enhance the pathway for patients 

 Link with the developing rapid evaluation capacity to help scale up community 
based / third sector projects  

Maximise the 
Benefits of 
the Digital 

 Potential to agree changes to the curriculum for undergraduate students to 
improve digital literacy and fluency 

 Develop training for existing staff to support people in their homes, in the 

Page 60



 

 

Health 
Landscape 
 

community and in hospitals to maximise the use of digital applications and 
social media 

 Equip staff at all levels with digital literacy, including healthcare assistants, front 
line third sector and social care staff often on lower wages and with limited 
career ladder opportunities 

Engage with 
Citizens 
through 
Meaningful 
Employment 
 

 Double the number of health and social care apprentices, maximising the city’s 
investment in the apprentice levy and ensuring significant numbers rotate in 
health and social care and that we maximise primary care placements. 

 Enhance social mobility, ensuring access to disadvantaged candidates such as 
people with disabilities or recovering from mental health problems  

 Ensure that employees take healthy lifestyle messages and techniques home, 
benefitting both employees and our communities 

System-wide 
engagement 
and building 
confidence in 
the Health 
and Care 
system 

 Develop links with the broader health economy, particularly the third sector and 
community organisations 

 Bring staff together to train and promote system thinking and leadership in a 
supportive environment 

 Reach into communities and schools to develop apprenticeships and open up 
careers in the sector, strengthening credibility and confidence in the Health and 
Care system  

  

3.3 A shared approach to the Leeds Living Wage  

3.3.1 At the October 2016 meeting of the Health and Wellbeing Board, members 
discussed a report on the linkages between poverty and ill health, including the 
impact of low pay on household budgets. 

3.3.2 Within the Leeds Health and Wellbeing Strategy 2016-21 there is commitment to 
fair pay by monitoring the number of “People earning a Living Wage”. The 
Strategy recognises that “health and care organisations employ a huge number of 
people in Leeds and [are committed to doing all that they can to…] reduce social 
inequalities through how people are employed”. 

3.3.3 The National Living Wage and National Minimum Wage set by government are 
compulsory for employers while the Living Wage Foundation (LWF) Living Wage 
is voluntary.  The current rates are stated in the table below. The gap between 
government levels of pay and the LWF’s indicates that workers on the minimum 
wage/national living wage are not earning enough to cover basic living costs. 

 

Year 

LWF 
Living Wage 

National 
Living 
Wage National Minimum Wage 

By April Living Wage 25 and over 21 to 24 18 to 20 Under 18 Apprentice 
2017 £8.45 £7.50 £7.05 £5.60 £4.05 £3.50 

 
 

3.3.4 In May 2017, the Integrated Commissioning Executive (ICE) considered a report 
on the Living Wage Foundation’s ‘Living Wage’ and sought to establish the 

Page 61



 

 

current rates of pay across local NHS providers and Leeds City Council, including 
for contracted providers and services. Responses from NHS organisations can be 
summarised as follows: 

Organisation Employees Living Wage Foundation’s Living Wage 
Leeds NHS Clinical 
Commissioning Groups 

Direct Not known  
(North CCG: all, except one apprentice) 

Sub-contracted Not known 

Leeds & York Partnership 
Foundation Trust 

Direct Yes 

Sub-contracted Not known 

Leeds Teaching Hospitals 
Trust 

Direct No 

Sub-contracted Not known 

Leeds Community Healthcare Direct Yes 

Sub-contracted Not known 

 

3.3.5 Leeds City Council (LCC) currently pays all employees a minimum rate of £8.25 
(the 2016 LWF rate) and discussions are ongoing on how the current Living Wage 
Foundation rate of £8.45 can be achieved. Contracts within Adults and Health 
have a commitment to pay the living wage across the life of the home care 
contract as part of the Ethical Care Charter. More widely, procurement and 
commissioning areas are being considered.  

3.3.6 Recognising the need to explore complexities, common barriers and opportunities 
of becoming a living wage employer, officers sought ICE’s support for a Living 
Wage and Low Pay Seminar for public sector organisations in Leeds. The aim of 
the seminar would be to work towards a consistent approach to offering the living 
wage across the public sector in Leeds. 

3.3.7 The Integrated Commissioning Executive agreed to the following actions: 

 LCC officers to liaise with Leeds workforce group to confirm if Leeds NHS 
organisations are legally able to amend pay scales for directly employed staff as 
part of their constitution. 

 LCC officers to liaise with West Yorkshire and Humber workforce group around 
possible impact at a West Yorkshire level of workforce flow. 

 Members were supportive of the seminar once feedback from the ICE has been 
taken into account and the above actions followed up. 
 

3.4 Supporting disabled people into employment 

3.4.1 The Supporting Disabled People into Employment Project aims to improve the 
health and wellbeing of disabled people living in the poorest communities in 
Leeds, by supporting more disabled people to achieve their work aspirations. This 
includes becoming ‘work-ready’, gaining, sustaining and progressing in 
employment.  

Page 62



 

 

3.4.2 The project is a response to Leeds Health and Wellbeing Strategy 2016-21, Leeds 
City Council’s Best Council Plan and Equality Improvement Priorities, and the 
government’s green paper ‘Improving Lives: Health, Work and Disability’. It is 
being informed by the Leeds Growth Strategy and the city’s priority for inclusive 
growth which demonstrates the commitment to ensuring employment 
opportunities are open to all. It is also being informed by the More Jobs, Better 
Jobs Breakthrough Project which has a workstream that aims to seek greater 
integration of health and employment support services in order to support those 
with a health condition to stay in work or secure employment. The project is using 
a collaborative, strength-based approach and will run until April 2018.  

3.4.3 The project is currently being steered by senior staff within LCC whose 
responsibilities include commissioning and partnership working across health, 
care, employment and skills in Leeds. It is being managed on by a LCC-funded 
resource based in the Health Partnerships Team.  

3.4.4 One ambition of the project is to connect, consolidate, promote and refocus 
existing work to improve the health and wellbeing of disabled people and 
employment of disadvantaged groups in Leeds. The approach taken to 
engagement throughout the scoping stage has taken steps towards achieving this 
ambition, for example:  

 A discussion with LCC, LTHT and LCH senior staff has supported the 
Community Neurological Rehabilitation Service with service developments in 
relation to interventions supporting people into work. 

 Connections have been made between the Autism Employment Group and 
NHS colleagues with a view to the ‘Leeds stand’ being used to promote NHS 
job vacancies at the Hidden Talents Employment Fair in July 2017. 

 LCC’s HR Service is recommending that the council joins the Disability 
Confident Scheme, further evidencing the council is an employer that actively 
seeks out and hires skilled disabled people, and helps to positively change 
attitudes, behaviours and cultures, within the council, its networks and 
communities. 

 LCC’s Employment and Skills Service, which supports over 6,000 local 
residents into work and 7,500 with skills training each year, is seeking to 
refocus services to more effectively support those with health barriers starting 
with the delivery of the £2.8m Skills Training and Employment programme 
(STEP) to support over 1,500 people into work.    

 Changes are being proposed to Employment and Skills obligations on contracts 
and S106 planning agreements which include targeted support to disabled 
people and those with health conditions; these are going to Executive Board in 
June.   

 LCC’s Legal and Procurement Services have confirmed that a clause provided 
by Disability Rights UK relating to the employment of disabled people can be 
used in contracts where appropriate and proportionate to the contract. 
Consideration is being given to including the clause in the employment toolkit 
annexed to the social value framework being developed for commissioners 
across the council to use to support them in considering social value as part of 
the procurement process. 

Page 63



 

 

3.4.5 Next steps include: 

 A report will be submitted to LCC’s Adults and Health DLT to confirm the 
project’s revised aim, scope, governance and delivery arrangements and 
provide an update on progress to date.  

 Further information on progress will be provided to the June Health and 
Wellbeing Board.  

 A communication and engagement plan will be developed and implemented. 
 Analysis, including consultation, will be undertaken to inform priorities for action, 

outcomes to be achieved, benefits to be delivered and measurement of 
success. 

 Planning for a ‘health, wellbeing and employment’ workshop will continue. We 
expect the workshop will provide a mandate for development of a ‘health and 
wellbeing strategy and commissioning plan’. 

 

4 Health and Wellbeing Board governance 

4.1    Consultation, engagement and hearing citizen voice 

4.1.1 In April 2016 and February 2017, the Health and Wellbeing Board received 
information on initial proposals for the Academy.  Managers and senior leaders 
(workforce/planning) across partner organisations have also been consulted in the 
development of the vision and the outline business case for the Academy. 

4.1.2 At the October 2016 meeting of the Health and Wellbeing Board, members 
discussed a report on the linkages between poverty and ill health, including the 
impact of low pay on household budgets. Officers have engaged with the 
Integrated Commissioning Executive on the Living Wage Foundation’s ‘Living 
Wage’ and have worked with partners across the Health and Care system to 
establish the current rates of pay across local NHS providers and Leeds City 
Council, including for contracted providers and services. Next steps include 
planned engagement with the Leeds workforce group and a seminar to bring 
Health and Care partners together to work towards a consistent approach to 
offering the living wage across the public sector in Leeds.  

4.1.3 Since its inception in June 2016, a collaborative approach has been used to 
inform the Supporting Disabled People into Employment Project. Stakeholders 
from health, care, employment support and skills/training organisations in the 
statutory and third sector have been engaged to date. During the next stage, other 
partners will be engaged with including disabled people, Leeds Academic Health 
Partnerships (The LAHP), Leeds City Region Enterprise Partnership (The LEP), 
West Yorkshire Combined Authority (WYCA), and other local authorities. A 
communication and engagement plan for the period to April 2018 is currently 
being developed; this will include appropriate and proportionate engagement with 
disabled people which takes into account the views expressed through other 
consultation and engagement activities undertaken by the council and partners. 

 

   

Page 64



 

 

4.2 Equality and diversity / cohesion and integration 

4.2.1 Meeting the workforce challenge requires an approach rooted in developing the 
talents of our existing workforce, developing more pathways into the sector from 
deprived areas and disadvantaged groups and building better connections with 
schools, colleges and universities. This will support our aim for the Leeds 
workforce to better reflect the diversity of the city’s population. Our conversations 
with the public will be more successful if people can relate to, and understand, the 
care they receive. If health messages are transmitted in an empathic and 
empowering manner by staff that understand the communities in which they live 
then behaviour change and population health management are more likely to 
impact positively.  

4.2.2 Any future changes arising from this work will be subject to equality impact 
assessment. 

4.3 Resources and value for money  

4.3.1 Development of the Health and Care workforce and improving the health and 
wellbeing of disabled people through employment will potentially support 
development of a financially sustainable Health and Care system and positive 
outcomes for the city. For example, Leeds has a working-age benefit claimant 
group of around 51,000 residents: of these 63% (over 32,000) claim Employment 
Support Allowance; increasing the number of these people who secure 
employment should have a positive impact on public expenditure and local public 
services, as well as potentially improving citizens’ personal financial position.  

4.4 Legal Implications, access to information and call In 

4.4.1 There are no access to information and call-in implications arising from this report. 

4.5 Risk management 

4.5.1 If the city is unable to ensure a good stream of front-line staff that are prepared to 
work across organisational boundaries the challenges we face will be 
compounded and be harder to resolve.  

5 Conclusions 

5.1 Leeds faces a number of workforce related issues. Some of these are more 
immediate and some can be addressed by the longer term strategic approach 
suggested in the Health and Wellbeing Strategy. Initiatives like the Leeds Health 
and Social Care Academy, Supporting Disabled People into Employment Project 
and paying people a living wage with clear opportunities for career progression, 
are all likely to improve confidence in our approach and provide a supportive 
platform for our plans to improve quality and the overall experience of Health and 
Care.   

Understanding our shared workforce challenge will assist in future proofing the 
health and care system, as will growing our Leeds workforce offer by investing in 
social mobility and promoting the health and care sector as an exemplar of good, 
inclusive growth. By progressing, steering and directing the work outlined in this 

Page 65



 

 

report the Health and Wellbeing Board will take us closer to being the best city for 
health and wellbeing with the best workforce. 

6 Recommendations 

The Health and Wellbeing Board is asked to: 
 

 Consider the role of the Health and Wellbeing Board in overcoming challenges 
relating to workforce and provide direction for progress towards the priorities of 
the Leeds Health and Wellbeing Strategy 2016-21. 
 

 Support the engagement of members in discussions about the Living Wage 
and attend the Low Pay Seminar when arranged. 
 

 Oversee/raise the profile of the Supporting Disabled People into Employment 
Project to ensure it remains consistent with the city’s health and wellbeing 
priorities and participate in a ‘health, wellbeing and employment workshop’ in 
October 2017. 
 

 Continue to note and support the development of Leeds Health and Care 
Academy and to receive regular updates on progress. 
 

 The City Workforce Workstream should be used to understand and plan 
responses to these challenges and keep the Board up to date with progress. 

7 Background documents  

7.1 There is a strong relationship between the workforce issues described in this 
document and the Leeds Health and Care Plan, which is also being discussed at 
the Health and Wellbeing Board meeting on 20th June 2017. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
  

Page 66



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE IS LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK 
  

Page 67



 

 

 

 
Implementing the Leeds Health 
and Wellbeing Strategy 2016-21 

 
How does this help reduce health inequalities in Leeds?  
Meeting the workforce challenge will require an approach rooted in developing the talents 
of our existing workforce, developing more pathways into the sector from deprived areas 
and disadvantaged groups and building better connections with schools, colleges and 
universities. This will support our aim for the Leeds workforce to better reflect the diversity 
of the City population. Our conversations with the public will be more successful if people 
can relate to, and understand, the care they receive. If health messages are transmitted in 
an empathic and empowering manner by staff that understand the communities in which 
they live then behaviour change and population health management are more likely to 
impact positively.  
 
How does this help create a high quality health and care system? 
Workforce issues are central to the delivery of our plans. Initiatives like the Leeds Health 
and Care Academy, Supporting Disabled People into Employment Project and paying 
people a living wage with clear opportunities for career progression are all likely to improve 
confidence in our approach and provide a supportive platform for our plans to improve 
quality and the overall experience of health and care.   
 
How does this help to have a financially sustainable health and care system?  
Development of the Health and Care workforce and improving the health and wellbeing of 
disabled people through employment will potentially support development of a financially 
sustainable Health and Care system and positive outcomes for the city. Reducing the 
numbers of people claiming health-related out-or-work benefits from over 32,000 through 
supporting more of them to secure employment should have a positive impact on public 
expenditure and local public services including the Health and Care system, as well as 
potentially improving citizens’ personal financial position.  
 
Future challenges or opportunities 
There are a number of challenges including changing patterns of health and social care 
need, recruitment and retention, particularly in light of the numbers due to retire from the 
Health and Care workforce and competition from other growing sectors. The Leeds Health 
and Care Academy, Supporting Disabled People into Employment Project and paying 
people a living wage with clear opportunities for career progression will help to address 
these challenges. In addition, other work that is underway and/or planned could assist in 
addressing the identified workforce issues and support improved health and wellbeing of 
citizens through employment. For example, LTHT’s apprenticeships scheme, LCC’s 
Supported Internship scheme for young people and the refocussing of LCC services to 
more effectively support those with health barriers which is starting with the delivery of the 
£2.8m Skills Training and Employment programme (STEP) to support over 1,500 people 
into work.     
 
 

Page 68



 

 

Priorities of the Leeds Health and Wellbeing Strategy 2016-21 
(please tick all that apply to this report) 
A Child Friendly City and the best start in life X 

An Age Friendly City where people age well X 

Strong, engaged and well-connected communities X 

Housing and the environment enable all people of Leeds to be healthy  

A strong economy with quality, local jobs  X 

Get more people, more physically active, more often   

Maximise the benefits of information and technology X 

A stronger focus on prevention  

Support self-care, with more people managing their own conditions X 

Promote mental and physical health equally  

A valued, well trained and supported workforce X 

The best care, in the right place, at the right time  
 

Page 69



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

Report of:  Sue Robins (Director of Commissioning, Strategy & Performance, NHS  
Leeds CCGs) & Steve Hume (Chief Officer Resources & Strategy, Adults & 
Health, Leeds City Council) 

Report to:  Leeds Health and Wellbeing Board 

Date:   20 June 2017 

Subject:  Better Care Fund (BCF) 2016-17: Quarterly Reports 

Are specific geographical areas affected?    Yes   No 

If relevant, name(s) of area(s):   

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion and 
integration? 

  Yes   No 

Is the decision eligible for call-In?   Yes   No 

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?   Yes   No 

If relevant, access to information procedure rule number: 

Appendix number: 

Summary of main issues  

A requirement of the BCF is that completed reporting templates are submitted quarterly to 
NHS England to provide assurance that the conditions of the BCF are being met. These 
quarterly returns require sign off by the Health & Wellbeing Board. 

Due to NHS England timescales and the dates of previous Health & Wellbeing Board 
meetings not coinciding, the completed reporting templates for quarters 2 and 3 were 
signed off by Matt Ward (Chief Operating Officer, NHS Leeds South and East Clinical 
Commissioning Group and Health & Wellbeing Board member) on behalf of the Health & 
Wellbeing Board before being submitted to NHS England.  The reporting template for 
quarter 4 has been signed off by Gordon Sinclair (Chair, NHS Leeds West Clinical 
Commissioning Group and Health & Wellbeing Board member) in place of Matt Ward.   

Recommendations 

The Health and Wellbeing Board is asked to: 
 
 Note for information the completed BCF reporting templates for quarters 2, 3 and 4 for 

2016-17. 
 
 

Report author:  Lesley Newlove 
(Commissioning Support Manager, 
NHS Leeds CCGs) 

Page 71

Agenda Item 12



 

 

1 Purpose of this report 

1.1 The purpose of this paper is for the Health and Wellbeing Board to receive and 
note for information the completed BCF reporting templates for quarters 2, 3 and 
4 for 2016-17 attached as appendices to this report. 

2 Background information 

2.1 The BCF is a programme spanning both the NHS and local government which 
seeks to join-up health and care services, so that people can manage their own 
health and wellbeing and live independently in their communities for as long as 
possible. 

2.2 The BCF has been created to improve the lives of some of the most vulnerable 
people in our society, placing them at the centre of their care and support, and 
providing them with integrated health and social care services, resulting in an 
improved experience and better quality of life 

2.3 In order to ensure the conditions of the BCF are met, NHS England developed a 
national quarterly reporting process which requires NHS Clinical Commissioning 
Groups to complete quarterly reporting templates and submit them to NHS 
England. 

3 Main issues 

3.1 The narrative section of the quarter 4 reporting template (Appendix 3) presents a 
broad overview of the current status of the delivery of the Leeds BCF Plan. Key 
points include: 

3.2 Non Elective Admissions (NEA): The number of NEA admissions was again 
higher in Q4 than submitted within the BCF plan. However whilst the number of 
admissions is higher than planned there is evidence that growth in admissions is 
slowing. The number of emergency admissions is lower in the second half of 
2016/17 than the previous year. Further work is being undertaken to understand 
whether this indicates reduced demand or a change in pathways/coding in Leeds 
Teaching Hospitals. 

3.3 Delayed Transfers of Care (DTOC): The average number of DTOCs has 
remained fairly constant throughout the winter months. On average the number of 
DTOCs in Leeds Teaching Hospitals NHS Trust were between 65 and 70 as 
compared to a target of 47. There are a number of changes over the coming 
months expected to support a reduction in DTOCs including the new re-ablement 
service and the re-commissioning and expansion of community bed capacity. 

3.4 Survey: The Leeds health and care system has a long history of integration of 
community and social care services. The survey responses reflect the sense that 
whilst the BCF has supported improved joint working and planning of change it 
has not in itself significantly impacted on our integration plans. In addition, the 
support for a BCF approach to planning. The survey highlights key successes 
underpinned through the BCF, notably the development of the Leeds Care Record 
whilst at the same time reflecting the challenges associated with the delivery of 
key NEA and DTOC trajectories. 

Page 72



 

 

3.5 The Local Government Association published the draft planning guidance and 
supporting documentation in respect of the BCF Plan 2017-19 at the end of April 
2017, but we are still awaiting publication of the final guidance from NHS England.  
However, a draft narrative plan is currently being developed and will be submitted 
to the Health & Wellbeing Board for sign off in due course. 

4 Health and Wellbeing Board governance 

4.1 Consultation, engagement and hearing citizen voice 

4.1.1 Routine monitoring of the delivery of the BCF is undertaken by a BCF Delivery 
Group with representation from commissioners across the city. This group reports 
in to the BCF Partnership Board, which is the main decision making forum relating 
to the BCF in Leeds. 

4.2 Equality and diversity / cohesion and integration 

4.2.1 Through the BCF, it is vital that equity of access to services is maintained and that 
quality of experience of care is not comprised. The vision that ‘Leeds will be a 
healthy and caring city for all ages, where people who are the poorest improve 
their health the fastest’ underpins the Leeds Health and Wellbeing Strategy 2016- 
2021. The services funded by the BCF contribute to this aim. 

4.3 Resources and value for money  

4.3.1 Whilst the BCF does not bring any new money into the system, it has presented 
Leeds with the opportunity to further strengthen integrated working and to focus 
on preventative services through reducing demand on the acute sector. As such, 
the agreed approach locally to date has been to use the BCF in such a way as to 
derive maximum benefit to meet the financial challenge facing the whole health 
and social care system over the next five years. 

4.4 Legal Implications, access to information and call In 

4.4.1    There is no access to information and call-in implications arising from this report. 

4.5 Risk management 

4.5.1    The following risks were identified in relation to the BCF 2016-17:- 

 Schemes geared towards reducing non-elective admissions did not have the 
level of impact that was expected  

 Non-elective admissions targets were not met 

The BCF Partnership Board and Delivery Group put in mitigating actions to 
counter these risks and will continue to address these issues in the plan for 2017-
19. 

5 Conclusions 

5.1 The BCF forms a component of Leeds’ ambition for a sustainable and high quality 
health and social care system.  Lessons learned from the BCF Plan 2016-17 will 

Page 73



 

 

be incorporated into the Leeds BCF plan for 2017-19 which is currently being 
drafted. 

6 Recommendations 

6.1    The Health and Wellbeing Board is asked to: 
 Note for information the completed BCF reporting templates for quarters 2, 3 

and 4 for 2016-17. 

7 Background documents  

7.1 None. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE IS LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK 
  

Page 74



 

 

 

 
Implementing the Leeds Health 
and Wellbeing Strategy 2016-21 

 
 
How does this help reduce health inequalities in Leeds?  
 
The BCF is a programme spanning both the NHS and local government which seeks to 
join-up health and care services, so that people can manage their own health and 
wellbeing and live independently in their communities for as long as possible. 
 
 
How does this help create a high quality health and care system? 
 
The BCF has been created to improve the lives of some of the most vulnerable people in 
our society, placing them at the centre of their care and support, and providing them with 
integrated health and social care services, resulting in an improved experience and better 
quality of life. 
 
How does this help to have a financially sustainable health and care system?  
 
The BCF encourages integration by requiring CCGs and local authorities to enter into 
pooled budgets arrangements and agree an integrated spending plan. 
 
Future challenges or opportunities 
 
The Leeds BCF Plan for 2017-19 is currently being drafted and will be submitted to the 
Health & Wellbeing Board for sign off in due course. 
 

Priorities of the Leeds Health and Wellbeing Strategy 2016-21 
 
A Child Friendly City and the best start in life  

An Age Friendly City where people age well X 

Strong, engaged and well-connected communities  

Housing and the environment enable all people of Leeds to be healthy  

A strong economy with quality, local jobs   

Get more people, more physically active, more often   

Maximise the benefits of information and technology  

A stronger focus on prevention X 

Support self-care, with more people managing their own conditions X 

Promote mental and physical health equally  

A valued, well trained and supported workforce  

The best care, in the right place, at the right time X 

Page 75



This page is intentionally left blank



Q
2
20

16
/1
7

He
al
th

an
d
W
el
lB

ei
ng

Bo
ar
d

co
m
pl
et
ed

by
:

E
M
ai
l:

Co
nt
ac
tN

um
be

r:

W
ho

ha
ss

ig
ne

d
of
ft
he

re
po

rt
on

be
ha

lf
of

th
e
He

al
th

an
d
W
el
lB

ei
ng

Bo
ar
d:

1.
Co

ve
r

2.
Bu

dg
et

Ar
ra
ng

em
en

ts
3.
N
at
io
na

lC
on

di
tio

ns
4.
I&
E

5.
Su
pp

or
tin

g
M
et
ric

s
6.
Ad

di
tio

na
lM

ea
su
re
s

7.
N
ar
ra
tiv

e

Co
ve
r

67

Le
ed

s

Le
sle

y
N
ew

lo
ve

le
sle

y.
ne

w
lo
ve
@
nh

s.
ne

t

01
13

84
31

74
3

M
at
tW

ar
d

Q
ue

st
io
n
Co

m
pl
et
io
n

w
he

n
al
lq
ue

st
io
ns

ha
ve

be
en

an
sw

er
ed

an
d
th
e
va
lid

at
io
n
bo

xe
sb

el
ow

ha
ve

tu
rn
ed

gr
ee
n
yo
u
sh
ou

ld
se
nd

th
e
te
m
pl
at
e
to

en
gl
an

d.
be

tt
er
ca
re
su
pp

or
t@

nh
s.
ne

ts
av
in
g
th
e
fil
e
as

'N
am

e
HW

B'
fo
re

xa
m
pl
e
'C
ou

nt
y
Du

rh
am

HW
B' 1

N
o.

of
qu

es
tio

ns
an

sw
er
ed

5 1 36 15 13

A
pp

en
di

x 
1 

- L
ee

ds
 B

C
F 

20
16

/1
7 

Q
2 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
Te

m
pl

at
e

Page 77



Se
le
ct
ed

He
al
th

an
d
W
el
lB

ei
ng

Bo
ar
d:

Ha
ve

th
e
fu
nd

sb
ee
n
po

ol
ed

vi
a
a
s.
75

po
ol
ed

bu
dg
et
?

Ye
s

If
it
ha
d
no

tb
ee
n
pr
ev
io
us
ly
st
at
ed

th
at

th
e
fu
nd

sh
ad

be
en

po
ol
ed

ca
n
yo
u
co
nf
irm

th
at

th
ey

ha
ve

no
w
?

Pl
ea
se

Se
le
ct

If
th
e
an
sw

er
to

th
e
ab
ov
e
is
'N
o'
pl
ea
se

in
di
ca
te

w
he

n
th
is
w
ill
ha
pp

en
(D
D/
M
M
/Y
YY
Y)

Fo
ot
no

te
s:

So
ur
ce
:F
or

th
e
S.
75

po
ol
ed

bu
dg
et

qu
es
tio

n,
w
hi
ch

is
pr
e
po

pu
la
te
d,
th
e
da
ta

is
fr
om

a
pr
ev
io
us

qu
ar
te
rly

co
lle
ct
io
n
re
tu
rn
ed

by
th
e
HW

B.

Le
ed

s

Bu
dg
et

Ar
ra
ng
em

en
ts

A
pp

en
di

x 
1 

- L
ee

ds
 B

C
F 

20
16

/1
7 

Q
2 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
Te

m
pl

at
e

Page 78



Se
le
ct
ed

He
al
th

an
d
W
el
lB

ei
ng

Bo
ar
d:

Le
ed

s

Th
e
Sp
en

di
ng

Ro
un

d
es
ta
bl
ish

ed
six

na
tio

na
lc
on

di
tio

ns
fo
ra

cc
es
st
o
th
e
Fu
nd

.
Pl
ea
se

co
nf
irm

by
se
le
ct
in
g
'Y
es
',
'N
o'
or

'N
o

In
Pr
og
re
ss
'a
ga
in
st
th
e
re
le
va
nt

co
nd

iti
on

as
to

w
he

th
er

th
es
e
ha
ve

be
en

m
et
,a
sp

er
yo
ur

fin
al
BC

F
pl
an
.

Fu
rt
he

rd
et
ai
ls
on

th
e
co
nd

iti
on

sa
re

sp
ec
ifi
ed

be
lo
w
.

If
'N
o'
or

'N
o

In
Pr
og
re
ss
'i
ss
el
ec
te
d
fo
ra

ny
of

th
e
co
nd

iti
on

sp
le
as
e
in
cl
ud

e
an

ex
pl
an
at
io
n
as

to
w
hy

th
e
co
nd

iti
on

w
as

no
tm

et
w
ith

in
th
is
qu

ar
te
r(
in

lin
e
w
ith

sig
ne

d
of
fp

la
n)

an
d
ho

w
th
is
is
be

in
g
ad
dr
es
se
d?

Co
nd

iti
on

(p
le
as
e
re
fe
rt
o
th
e
de

ta
ile
d
de

fin
iti
on

be
lo
w
)

Q
1
Su
bm

is
si
on

Re
sp
on

se

Pl
ea
se

Se
le
ct
('Y

es
',

'N
o'
or

'N
o

In
Pr
og
re
ss
')

If
th
e
an

sw
er

is
"N

o"
or

"N
o

In
Pr
og
re
ss
"
pl
ea
se

en
te
r

es
tim

at
ed

da
te

w
he

n
co
nd

iti
on

w
ill
be

m
et

if
no

t
al
re
ad

y
in
pl
ac
e

(D
D/

M
M
/Y
YY

Y)
1)

Pl
an
st
o
be

jo
in
tly

ag
re
ed

Ye
s

Ye
s

2)
M
ai
nt
ai
n
pr
ov
isi
on

of
so
ci
al
ca
re

se
rv
ic
es

Ye
s

Ye
s

i)
Ag

re
em

en
tf
or

th
e
de

liv
er
y
of

7
da
y
se
rv
ic
es

ac
ro
ss
he

al
th

an
d
so
ci
al
ca
re

to
pr
ev
en

t
un

ne
ce
ss
ar
y
no

n
el
ec
tiv

e
ad
m
iss
io
ns

to
ac
ut
e
se
tt
in
gs

an
d
to

fa
ci
lit
at
e
tr
an
sf
er

to
al
te
rn
at
iv
e
ca
re

se
tt
in
gs

w
he

n
cl
in
ic
al
ly
ap
pr
op

ria
te

N
o

In
Pr
og
re
ss

N
o

In
Pr
og
re
ss

01
/0
4/
20

17

ii)
Ar
e
su
pp

or
ts
er
vi
ce
s,
bo

th
in
th
e
ho

sp
ita

la
nd

in
pr
im

ar
y,
co
m
m
un

ity
an
d
m
en

ta
l

he
al
th

se
tt
in
gs

av
ai
la
bl
e
se
ve
n
da
ys

a
w
ee
k
to

en
su
re

th
at

th
e
ne

xt
st
ep

si
n
th
e

pa
tie

nt
’s
ca
re

pa
th
w
ay
,a
sd

et
er
m
in
ed

by
th
e
da
ily

co
ns
ul
ta
nt

le
d
re
vi
ew

,c
an

be
ta
ke
n
(S
ta
nd

ar
d
9)
?

N
o

In
Pr
og
re
ss

N
o

In
Pr
og
re
ss

01
/0
4/
20

17

i)
Is
th
e
N
HS

N
um

be
rb

ei
ng

us
ed

as
th
e
co
ns
ist
en

ti
de

nt
ifi
er

fo
rh

ea
lth

an
d
so
ci
al
ca
re

se
rv
ic
es
?

Ye
s

Ye
s

ii)
Ar
e
yo
u
pu

rs
ui
ng

O
pe

n
AP

Is
(ie

sy
st
em

th
at

sp
ea
k
to

ea
ch

ot
he

r)
?

Ye
s

Ye
s

iii
)A

re
th
e
ap
pr
op

ria
te

In
fo
rm

at
io
n
Go

ve
rn
an
ce

co
nt
ro
ls
in
pl
ac
e
fo
ri
nf
or
m
at
io
n

sh
ar
in
g
in
lin
e
w
ith

th
e
re
vi
se
d
Ca
ld
ic
ot
tP

rin
ci
pl
es

an
d
gu
id
an
ce
?

Ye
s

Ye
s

iv
)H

av
e
yo
u
en

su
re
d
th
at

pe
op

le
ha
ve

cl
ar
ity

ab
ou

th
ow

da
ta

ab
ou

tt
he

m
is
us
ed

,
w
ho

m
ay

ha
ve

ac
ce
ss
an
d
ho

w
th
ey

ca
n
ex
er
ci
se

th
ei
rl
eg
al
rig

ht
s?

Ye
s

Ye
s

5)
En
su
re

a
jo
in
ta

pp
ro
ac
h
to

as
se
ss
m
en

ts
an
d
ca
re

pl
an
ni
ng

an
d
en

su
re

th
at
,w

he
re

fu
nd

in
g
is
us
ed

fo
ri
nt
eg
ra
te
d
pa
ck
ag
es

of
ca
re
,t
he

re
w
ill
be

an
ac
co
un

ta
bl
e

pr
of
es
sio

na
l

Ye
s

Ye
s

6)
Ag

re
em

en
to

n
th
e
co
ns
eq

ue
nt
ia
li
m
pa
ct
of

th
e
ch
an
ge
so

n
th
e
pr
ov
id
er
st
ha
ta

re
pr
ed

ic
te
d
to

be
su
bs
ta
nt
ia
lly

af
fe
ct
ed

by
th
e
pl
an
s

Ye
s

Ye
s

7)
Ag

re
em

en
tt
o
in
ve
st
in
N
HS

co
m
m
iss
io
ne

d
ou

t
of

ho
sp
ita

ls
er
vi
ce
s

Ye
s

Ye
s

8)
Ag

re
em

en
to

n
a
lo
ca
lt
ar
ge
tf
or

De
la
ye
d
Tr
an
sf
er
so

fC
ar
e
(D
TO

C)
an
d
de

ve
lo
p
a

jo
in
tl
oc
al
ac
tio

n
pl
an

Ye
s

Ye
s

If
th
e
an

sw
er

is
"N

o"
or

"N
o

In
Pr
og
re
ss
"
pl
ea
se

pr
ov
id
e
an

ex
pl
an

at
io
n
as

to
w
hy

th
e
co
nd

iti
on

w
as

no
tm

et
w
ith

in
th
e
qu

ar
te
ra

nd
ho

w
th
is
is
be

in
g

ad
dr
es
se
d:

Ac
ut
e
ca
re

pr
ov
id
er

is
on

tr
ac
k
fo
ra

ch
ie
vi
ng

fo
ur

of
th
e
st
an
da
rd
sa

sr
eq

ui
re
d
in
th
e
N
at
io
na
lt
ra
je
ct
or
y
of

m
ile
st
on

es
by

Ap
ril

20
17

.
N
at
io
na
lly

fu
ll
im

pl
em

en
ta
tio

n
is
re
qu

ire
d
by

20
20

;c
om

m
iss
io
ne

rs
ar
e
w
or
ki
ng

w
ith

th
e
pr
ov
id
er

to
en

su
re

fu
ll
de

liv
er
y
by

20
20

.

N
at
io
na
lC
on

di
tio

ns

3)
In
re
sp
ec
to

f7
Da

y
Se
rv
ic
es

pl
ea
se

co
nf
irm

:

4)
In
re
sp
ec
to

fD
at
a
Sh
ar
in
g

pl
ea
se

co
nf
irm

:

Th
er
e
ar
e
a
nu

m
be

ro
fs
er
vi
ce
si
n
th
e
co
m
m
un

ity
,m

en
ta
lh
ea
lth

,s
oc
ia
lc
ar
e
an
d
ho

sp
ita

ls
et
tin

gs
th
at

ar
e
al
re
ad
y
av
ai
la
bl
e
ov
er

7
da
ys
.A

ll
co
m
m
iss
io
ni
ng

de
ci
sio

ns
an
d
se
rv
ic
e
sp
ec
ifi
ca
tio

n
de

ve
lo
pm

en
tn

ow
co
ns
id
er
sw

ha
ts
er
vi
ce
sa

re
re
qu

ire
d
ov
er

7
da
ys
.
7
Da

y
pr
irm

ar
y
ca
re

se
rv
ic
e

is
be

in
g
ev
al
ua
te
d
w
ith

co
ns
id
er
at
io
n
fo
rr
ol
lo
ut

in
sp
ec
ifi
ed

ar
ea
s.
St
an
da
rd

9
is
on

e
of

th
e
fo
ur

st
an
da
rd
st
ha
ta

re
du

e
to

be
ac
hi
ev
ed

by
Ap

ril
20

17
.

A
pp

en
di

x 
1 

- L
ee

ds
 B

C
F 

20
16

/1
7 

Q
2 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
Te

m
pl

at
e

Page 79



N
at
io
na

lc
on

di
tio

ns
de

ta
ile
d
de

fin
iti
on

s

Th
e
BC

F
po

lic
y
fr
am

ew
or
k
fo
r2

01
6
17

an
d
BC

F
pl
an
ni
ng

gu
id
an
ce

se
ts
ou

te
ig
ht

na
tio

na
lc
on

di
tio

ns
fo
ra

cc
es
st
o
th
e
Fu
nd

:

1)
Pl
an

st
o
be

jo
in
tly

ag
re
ed

Th
e
ap
pr
op

ria
te

an
d
la
w
fu
ls
ha
rin

g
of

da
ta

in
th
e
be

st
in
te
re
st
so

fp
eo

pl
e
w
ho

us
e
ca
re

an
d
su
pp

or
ti
se

ss
en

tia
lt
o
th
e
pr
ov
isi
on

of
sa
fe
,s
ea
m
le
ss
ca
re
.T
he

us
e
of

th
e
N
HS

nu
m
be

ra
sa

co
ns
ist
en

ti
de

nt
ifi
er

is
an

im
po

rt
an
te

le
m
en

to
ft
hi
s,
as

is
pr
og
re
ss
to
w
ar
ds

sy
st
em

sa
nd

pr
oc
es
se
st
ha
ta

llo
w
th
e
sa
fe

an
d
tim

el
y
sh
ar
in
g
of

in
fo
rm

at
io
n.
It
is
al
so

vi
ta
lt
ha
tt
he

rig
ht

cu
ltu

re
s,
be

ha
vi
ou

rs
an
d
le
ad
er
sh
ip
ar
e
de

m
on

st
ra
te
d
lo
ca
lly
,f
os
te
rin

g
a
cu
ltu

re
of

se
cu
re
,l
aw

fu
la
nd

ap
pr
op

ria
te

sh
ar
in
g
of

da
ta

to
su
pp

or
tb

et
te
rc
ar
e.

Lo
ca
la
re
as

sh
ou

ld
:

•
co
nf
irm

th
at

th
ey

ar
e
us
in
g
th
e
N
HS

N
um

be
ra

st
he

co
ns
ist
en

ti
de

nt
ifi
er

fo
rh

ea
lth

an
d
ca
re

se
rv
ic
es
,a
nd

if
th
ey

ar
e
no

t,
w
he

n
th
ey

pl
an

to
;

•
co
nf
irm

th
at

th
ey

ar
e
pu

rs
ui
ng

in
te
ro
pe

ra
bl
e
Ap

pl
ic
at
io
n
Pr
og
ra
m
m
in
g
In
te
rf
ac
es

(A
PI
s)
(i.
e.
sy
st
em

st
ha
ts
pe

ak
to

ea
ch

ot
he

r)
w
ith

th
e
ne

ce
ss
ar
y
se
cu
rit
y
an
d
co
nt
ro
ls
(h
tt
ps
:/
/w

w
w
.e
ng
la
nd

.n
hs
.u
k/
w
p
co
nt
en

t/
up

lo
ad
s/
20

14
/0
5/
op

en
ap
ip

ol
ic
y.
pd

f;
an
d

•
en

su
re

th
ey

ha
ve

th
e
ap
pr
op

ria
te

In
fo
rm

at
io
n
Go

ve
rn
an
ce

co
nt
ro
ls
in
pl
ac
e
fo
ri
nf
or
m
at
io
n
sh
ar
in
g
in
lin
e
w
ith

th
e
re
vi
se
d
Ca
ld
ic
ot
tp

rin
ci
pl
es

an
d
gu
id
an
ce

m
ad
e
av
ai
la
bl
e
by

th
e
In
fo
rm

at
io
n
Go

ve
rn
an
ce

Al
lia
nc
e
(IG

A)
,a
nd

if
no

t,
w
he

n
th
ey

pl
an

fo
ri
tt
o
be

in
pl
ac
e.

•
en

su
re

th
at

pe
op

le
ha
ve

cl
ar
ity

ab
ou

th
ow

da
ta

ab
ou

tt
he

m
is
us
ed

,w
ho

m
ay

ha
ve

ac
ce
ss
an
d
ho

w
th
ey

ca
n
ex
er
ci
se

th
ei
rl
eg
al
rig

ht
s.
In
lin
e
w
ith

th
e
re
co
m
m
en

da
tio

ns
fr
om

th
e
N
at
io
na
lD

at
a
Gu

ar
di
an

re
vi
ew

.

Th
e
In
fo
rm

at
io
n
Go

ve
rn
an
ce

Al
lia
nc
e
(IG

A)
is
a
gr
ou

p
of

na
tio

na
lh
ea
lth

an
d
ca
re

or
ga
ni
sa
tio

ns
(in

cl
ud

in
g
th
e
De

pa
rt
m
en

to
fH

ea
lth

,N
HS

En
gl
an
d,
Pu

bl
ic
He

al
th

En
gl
an
d
an
d
th
e
He

al
th

an
d
So
ci
al
Ca
re

In
fo
rm

at
io
n
Ce

nt
re
)w

or
ki
ng

to
ge
th
er

to
pr
ov
id
e
a
jo
in
ed

up
an
d
co
ns
ist
en

ta
pp

ro
ac
h
to

in
fo
rm

at
io
n
go
ve
rn
an
ce

an
d
pr
ov
id
e
ac
ce
ss
to

a
ce
nt
ra
l

re
po

sit
or
y
gu
id
an
ce

on
da
ta

ac
ce
ss
iss
ue

sf
or

th
e
he

al
th

an
d
ca
re

sy
st
em

.S
ee

ht
tp
:/
/s
ys
te
m
s.
hs
ci
c.
go
v.
uk
/in

fo
go
v/
ig
a

Th
e
Be

tt
er

Ca
re

Fu
nd

Pl
an
,c
ov
er
in
g
a
m
in
im

um
of

th
e
po

ol
ed

fu
nd

sp
ec
ifi
ed

in
th
e
Sp
en

di
ng

Re
vi
ew

,a
nd

po
te
nt
ia
lly

ex
te
nd

in
g
to

th
e
to
ta
lit
y
of

th
e
he

al
th

an
d
ca
re

sp
en

d
in
th
e
He

al
th

an
d
W
el
lb
ei
ng

Bo
ar
d
ar
ea
, s
ho

ul
d
be

sig
ne

d
of
fb

y
th
e
He

al
th

an
d
W
el
lb
ei
ng

Bo
ar
d
its
el
f,
an
d
by

th
e
co
ns
tit
ue

nt
Co

un
ci
ls
an
d
Cl
in
ic
al
Co

m
m
iss
io
ni
ng

Gr
ou

ps
.

In
ag
re
ei
ng

th
e
pl
an
,C
lin
ic
al
Co

m
m
iss
io
ni
ng

Gr
ou

ps
an
d
lo
ca
la
ut
ho

rit
ie
ss
ho

ul
d
en

ga
ge

w
ith

he
al
th

an
d
so
ci
al
ca
re

pr
ov
id
er
sl
ik
el
y
to

be
af
fe
ct
ed

by
th
e
us
e
of

th
e
fu
nd

in
or
de

rt
o
ac
hi
ev
e
th
e
be

st
ou

tc
om

es
fo
rl
oc
al
pe

op
le
.F
ur
th
er
m
or
e,
th
er
e
sh
ou

ld
be

jo
in
ta

gr
ee
m
en

ta
cr
os
sc

om
m
iss
io
ne

rs
an
d
pr
ov
id
er
sa

st
o
ho

w
th
e
Be

tt
er

Ca
re

Fu
nd

w
ill

co
nt
rib

ut
e
to

a
lo
ng
er

te
rm

st
ra
te
gi
c
pl
an
.T
hi
ss
ho

ul
d
in
cl
ud

e
an

as
se
ss
m
en

to
ff
ut
ur
e
ca
pa
ci
ty

an
d
w
or
kf
or
ce

re
qu

ire
m
en

ts
ac
ro
ss
th
e
sy
st
em

.T
he

im
pl
ic
at
io
ns

fo
rl
oc
al
pr
ov
id
er
ss
ho

ul
d
be

se
to

ut
cl
ea
rly

fo
rH

ea
lth

an
d
W
el
lb
ei
ng

Bo
ar
ds

so
th
at

th
ei
ra

gr
ee
m
en

tf
or

th
e
de

pl
oy
m
en

to
ft
he

fu
nd

in
cl
ud

es
re
co
gn
iti
on

of
th
e
se
rv
ic
e
ch
an
ge

co
ns
eq

ue
nc
es
.T
he

Di
sa
bl
ed

Fa
ci
lit
ie
sG

ra
nt

(D
FG

)w
ill
ag
ai
n
be

al
lo
ca
te
d
th
ro
ug
h
th
e
Be

tt
er

Ca
re

Fu
nd

.L
oc
al
ho

us
in
g
au
th
or
ity

re
pr
es
en

ta
tiv

es
sh
ou

ld
th
er
ef
or
e
be

in
vo
lv
ed

in
de

ve
lo
pi
ng

an
d
ag
re
ei
ng

th
e
pl
an
,i
n
or
de

rt
o
en

su
re

a
jo
in
ed

up
ap
pr
oa
ch

to
im

pr
ov
in
g
ou

tc
om

es
ac
ro
ss
he

al
th
,s
oc
ia
lc
ar
e
an
d
ho

us
in
g.

2)
M
ai
nt
ai
n
pr
ov
is
io
n
of

so
ci
al
ca
re

se
rv
ic
es

Lo
ca
la
re
as

m
us
ti
nc
lu
de

an
ex
pl
an
at
io
n
of

ho
w
lo
ca
la
du

lt
so
ci
al
ca
re

se
rv
ic
es

w
ill
co
nt
in
ue

to
be

su
pp

or
te
d
w
ith

in
th
ei
rp

la
ns

in
a
m
an
ne

rc
on

sis
te
nt

w
ith

20
15

16
.

Th
e
de

fin
iti
on

of
su
pp

or
ts
ho

ul
d
be

ag
re
ed

lo
ca
lly
.A

sa
m
in
im

um
,i
ts
ho

ul
d
m
ai
nt
ai
n
in
re
al
te
rm

st
he

le
ve
lo
fp

ro
te
ct
io
n
as

pr
ov
id
ed

th
ro
ug
h
th
e
m
an
da
te
d
m
in
im

um
el
em

en
to

fl
oc
al
Be

tt
er

Ca
re

Fu
nd

ag
re
em

en
ts
of

20
15

16
.T
hi
sr
ef
le
ct
st
he

re
al
te
rm

si
nc
re
as
e
in
th
e
Be

tt
er

Ca
re

Fu
nd

.

In
se
tt
in
g
th
e
le
ve
lo
fp

ro
te
ct
io
n
fo
rs
oc
ia
lc
ar
e
lo
ca
lit
ie
ss
ho

ul
d
be

m
in
df
ul
to

en
su
re

th
at

an
y
ch
an
ge

do
es

no
td

es
ta
bi
lis
e
th
e
lo
ca
ls
oc
ia
la
nd

he
al
th

ca
re

sy
st
em

as
a
w
ho

le
.T
hi
sw

ill
be

as
se
ss
ed

co
m
pa
re
d
to

20
15

16
fig
ur
es

th
ro
ug
h
th
e
re
gi
on

al
as
su
ra
nc
e
pr
oc
es
s.

It
sh
ou

ld
al
so

be
co
ns
ist
en

tw
ith

20
12

De
pa
rt
m
en

to
fH

ea
lth

gu
id
an
ce

to
N
HS

En
gl
an
d
on

th
e
fu
nd

in
g
tr
an
sf
er

fr
om

th
e
N
HS

to
so
ci
al
ca
re

in
20

13
14

:

ht
tp
s:
//
w
w
w
.g
ov
.u
k/
go
ve
rn
m
en

t/
up

lo
ad
s/
sy
st
em

/u
pl
oa
ds
/a
tt
ac
hm

en
t_
da
ta
/f
ile
/2
13

22
3/
Fu
nd

in
g
tr
an
sf
er

fr
om

th
e
N
HS

to
so
ci
al

ca
re

in
20

13
14
.p
df

3)
Ag

re
em

en
tf
or

th
e
de

liv
er
y
of

7
da

y
se
rv
ic
es

ac
ro
ss

he
al
th

an
d
so
ci
al
ca
re

to
pr
ev
en

tu
nn

ec
es
sa
ry

no
n
el
ec
tiv

e
(p
hy
si
ca
la
nd

m
en

ta
lh
ea
lth

)a
dm

is
si
on

st
o
ac
ut
e
se
tt
in
gs

an
d
to

fa
ci
lit
at
e
tr
an

sf
er

to
al
te
rn
at
iv
e
ca
re

se
tt
in
gs

w
he

n
cl
in
ic
al
ly
ap

pr
op

ria
te
.

Lo
ca
la
re
as

ar
e
as
ke
d
to

co
nf
irm

ho
w
th
ei
rp

la
ns

w
ill
pr
ov
id
e
7
da
y
se
rv
ic
es

(t
hr
ou

gh
ou

tt
he

w
ee
k,
in
cl
ud

in
g
w
ee
ke
nd

s)
ac
ro
ss
co
m
m
un

ity
,p
rim

ar
y,
m
en

ta
lh
ea
lth

,a
nd

so
ci
al
ca
re

in
or
de

r:

•
To

pr
ev
en

tu
nn

ec
es
sa
ry

no
n
el
ec
tiv

e
ad
m
iss
io
ns

(p
hy
sic

al
an
d
m
en

ta
lh
ea
lth

)t
hr
ou

gh
pr
ov
isi
on

of
an

ag
re
ed

le
ve
lo
fi
nf
ra
st
ru
ct
ur
e
ac
ro
ss
ou

to
fh

os
pi
ta
ls
er
vi
ce
s7

da
ys

a
w
ee
k;

•
To

su
pp

or
tt
he

tim
el
y
di
sc
ha
rg
e
of

pa
tie

nt
s,
fr
om

ac
ut
e
ph

ys
ic
al
an
d
m
en

ta
lh
ea
lth

se
tt
in
gs
,o
n
ev
er
y
da
y
of

th
e
w
ee
k,
w
he

re
it
is
cl
in
ic
al
ly
ap
pr
op

ria
te

to
do

so
,a
vo
id
in
g
un

ne
ce
ss
ar
y
de

la
ye
d
di
sc
ha
rg
es

of
ca
re
.I
ft
he

y
ar
e
no

ta
bl
e
to

pr
ov
id
e
su
ch

pl
an
s,
th
ey

m
us
te

xp
la
in
w
hy
.

Th
e
10

cl
in
ic
al
st
an
da
rd
sd

ev
el
op

ed
by

th
e
N
HS

Se
rv
ic
es
,S
ev
en

Da
ys

a
W
ee
k
Fo
ru
m

re
pr
es
en

t,
as

a
w
ho

le
,b
es
tp

ra
ct
ic
e
fo
rq

ua
lit
y
ca
re

on
ev
er
y
da
y
of

th
e
w
ee
k
an
d
pr
ov
id
e
a
us
ef
ul
re
fe
re
nc
e
fo
rc
om

m
iss
io
ne

rs
(h
tt
ps
:/
/w

w
w
.e
ng
la
nd

.n
hs
.u
k/
w
p
co
nt
en

t/
up

lo
ad
s/
20

13
/1
2/
cl
in
ic
al

st
an
da
rd
s1
.p
df

).
By

20
20

al
lh
os
pi
ta
li
n
pa
tie

nt
sa

dm
itt
ed

th
ro
ug
h
ur
ge
nt

an
d
em

er
ge
nc
y
ro
ut
es

in
En
gl
an
d
w
ill
ha
ve

ac
ce
ss
to

se
rv
ic
es

w
hi
ch

co
m
pl
y
w
ith

at
le
as
t4

of
th
es
e
st
an
da
rd
so

n
ev
er
y
da
y
of

th
e
w
ee
k,
na
m
el
y
St
an
da
rd
s2

,5
,6

an
d
8.
Fo
rt
he

Be
tt
er

Ca
re

Fu
nd

,p
ar
tic
ul
ar

co
ns
id
er
at
io
n
sh
ou

ld
be

gi
ve
n
to

w
he

th
er

pr
og
re
ss
is
be

in
g
m
ad
e
ag
ai
ns
tS

ta
nd

ar
d

9.
Th
is
st
an
da
rd

hi
gh
lig
ht
st
he

ro
le
of

su
pp

or
ts
er
vi
ce
si
n
th
e
pr
ov
isi
on

of
th
e
ne

xt
st
ep

si
n
a
pe

rs
on

’s
ca
re

pa
th
w
ay

fo
llo
w
in
g
ad
m
iss
io
n
to

ho
sp
ita

l,
as

de
te
rm

in
ed

by
th
e
da
ily

co
ns
ul
ta
nt

le
d
re
vi
ew

,a
nd

th
e
im

po
rt
an
ce

of
ef
fe
ct
iv
e
re
la
tio

ns
hi
ps

be
tw

ee
n
m
ed

ic
al
an
d
ot
he

rh
ea
lth

an
d
so
ci
al
ca
re

te
am

s.

4)
Be

tt
er

da
ta

sh
ar
in
g
be

tw
ee
n
he

al
th

an
d
so
ci
al
ca
re
,b

as
ed

on
th
e
N
HS

nu
m
be

r

A
pp

en
di

x 
1 

- L
ee

ds
 B

C
F 

20
16

/1
7 

Q
2 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
Te

m
pl

at
e

Page 80



7)
Ag

re
em

en
tt
o
in
ve
st
in
N
HS

co
m
m
is
si
on

ed
ou

to
fh

os
pi
ta
ls
er
vi
ce
s,
w
hi
ch

m
ay

in
cl
ud

e
a
w
id
e
ra
ng
e
of

se
rv
ic
es

in
cl
ud

in
g
so
ci
al
ca
re

Th
is
sh
ou

ld
be

ac
hi
ev
ed

in
on

e
of

th
e
fo
llo
w
in
g
w
ay
s:

To
fu
nd

N
HS

co
m
m
iss
io
ne

d
ou

t
of

ho
sp
ita

ls
er
vi
ce
s,
w
hi
ch

m
ay

in
cl
ud

e
a
w
id
e
ra
ng
e
of

se
rv
ic
es

in
cl
ud

in
g
so
ci
al
ca
re
,a
sp

ar
to

ft
he

ir
ag
re
ed

Be
tt
er

Ca
re

Fu
nd

pl
an
;o

r

Lo
ca
la
re
as

ca
n
ch
oo

se
to

pu
ta

n
ap
pr
op

ria
te

pr
op

or
tio

n
of

th
ei
rs
ha
re

of
th
e
£1

bn
in
to

a
lo
ca
lr
isk

sh
ar
in
g
ag
re
em

en
ta

sp
ar
to

fc
on

tin
ge
nc
y
pl
an
ni
ng

in
th
e
ev
en

to
fe

xc
es
sa

ct
iv
ity

,w
ith

th
e
ba
la
nc
e
sp
en

to
n
N
HS

co
m
m
iss
io
ne

d
ou

t
of

ho
sp
ita

ls
er
vi
ce
s,
w
hi
ch

m
ay

in
cl
ud

e
a
w
id
e
ra
ng
e
of

se
rv
ic
es

in
cl
ud

in
g
so
ci
al
ca
re

(lo
ca
la
re
as

sh
ou

ld
se
ek
,a
sa

m
in
im

um
,t
o
m
ai
nt
ai
n
pr
ov
isi
on

of
N
HS

co
m
m
iss
io
ne

d
ou

to
fh

os
pi
ta
ls
er
vi
ce
si
n
a
m
an
ne

rc
on

sis
te
nt

w
ith

15
16

);

Th
is
co
nd

iti
on

re
pl
ac
es

th
e
Pa
ym

en
tf
or

Pe
rf
or
m
an
ce

sc
he

m
e
in
cl
ud

ed
in
th
e
20

15
16

Be
tt
er

Ca
re

Fu
nd

fr
am

ew
or
k.

Lo
ca
la
re
as

sh
ou

ld
ag
re
e
ho

w
th
ey

w
ill
us
e
th
ei
rs
ha
re

of
th
e
£1

bi
lli
on

th
at

ha
d
pr
ev
io
us
ly
be

en
us
ed

to
cr
ea
te

th
e
pa
ym

en
tf
or

pe
rf
or
m
an
ce

fu
nd

.

Gi
ve
n
th
e
un

ac
ce
pt
ab
le
hi
gh

le
ve
ls
of

DT
O
C
cu
rr
en

tly
,t
he

Go
ve
rn
m
en

ti
se

xp
lo
rin

g
w
ha
tf
ur
th
er

ac
tio

n
sh
ou

ld
be

ta
ke
n
to

ad
dr
es
st
he

iss
ue

.

As
pa
rt
of

th
is
w
or
k,
un

de
rt
he

Be
tt
er

Ca
re

Fu
nd

,e
ac
h
lo
ca
la
re
a
is
to

de
ve
lo
p
a
lo
ca
la
ct
io
n
pl
an

fo
rm

an
ag
in
g
DT

O
C,
in
cl
ud

in
g
a
lo
ca
lly

ag
re
ed

ta
rg
et
.

Al
ll
oc
al
ar
ea
sn

ee
d
to

es
ta
bl
ish

th
ei
ro

w
n
st
re
tc
hi
ng

lo
ca
lD

TO
C
ta
rg
et

ag
re
ed

be
tw

ee
n
th
e
CC

G,
Lo
ca
lA

ut
ho

rit
y
an
d
re
le
va
nt

ac
ut
e
an
d
co
m
m
un

ity
tr
us
ts
.T
hi
st
ar
ge
ts
ho

ul
d
be

re
fle

ct
ed

in
CC

G
op

er
at
io
na
lp
la
ns
.T
he

m
et
ric

fo
rt
he

ta
rg
et

sh
ou

ld
be

th
e
sa
m
e
as

th
e
na
tio

na
lp
er
fo
rm

an
ce

m
et
ric

(a
ve
ra
ge

de
la
ye
d
tr
an
sf
er
so

fc
ar
e
(d
el
ay
ed

da
ys
)

pe
r1

00
,0
00

po
pu

la
tio

n
(a
tt
rib

ut
ab
le
to

ei
th
er

N
HS

,s
oc
ia
lc
ar
e
or

bo
th
)p

er
m
on

th
.

As
pa
rt
of

th
is
pl
an
,w

e
w
an
tl
oc
al
ar
ea
st
o
co
ns
id
er

th
e
us
e
of

lo
ca
lr
isk

sh
ar
in
g
ag
re
em

en
ts
w
ith

re
sp
ec
tt
o
DT

O
C,
w
ith

cl
ea
rr
ef
er
en

ce
to

ex
ist
in
g
gu
id
an
ce

an
d
fle

xi
bi
lit
ie
s.
Th
is
w
ill
be

pa
rt
ic
ul
ar
ly
re
le
va
nt

in
ar
ea
sw

he
re

le
ve
ls
of

DT
O
C
ar
e
hi
gh

an
d
ris
in
g.

In
ag
re
ei
ng

th
e
pl
an
,C
lin
ic
al
Co

m
m
iss
io
ni
ng

Gr
ou

ps
an
d
lo
ca
la
ut
ho

rit
ie
ss
ho

ul
d
en

ga
ge

w
ith

th
e
re
le
va
nt

ac
ut
e
an
d
co
m
m
un

ity
tr
us
ts
an
d
be

ab
le
to

de
m
on

st
ra
te

th
at

th
e
pl
an

ha
sb

ee
n
ag
re
ed

w
ith

th
e
pr
ov
id
er
sg

iv
en

th
e
ne

ed
fo
rc
lo
se

jo
in
tw

or
ki
ng

on
th
e
DT

O
C
iss
ue

.

W
e
w
ou

ld
ex
pe

ct
pl
an
st
o:

•
Se
to

ut
cl
ea
rl
in
es

of
re
sp
on

sib
ili
ty
,a
cc
ou

nt
ab
ili
tie

s,
an
d
m
ea
su
re
so

fa
ss
ur
an
ce

an
d
m
on

ito
rin

g;
•
Ta
ke

ac
co
un

to
fn

at
io
na
lg
ui
da
nc
e,
pa
rt
ic
ul
ar
ly
th
e
N
HS

Hi
gh

Im
pa
ct
In
te
rv
en

tio
ns

fo
rU

rg
en

ta
nd

Em
er
ge
nc
y
Ca
re
,t
he

N
HS

En
gl
an
d
M
on

th
ly
De

la
ye
d
Tr
an
sf
er
so

fC
ar
e
Si
tu
at
io
n
Re

po
rt
sD

ef
in
iti
on

an
d
Gu

id
an
ce
,a
nd

be
st
pr
ac
tic
e
w
ith

re
ga
rd
st
o
re
du

ci
ng

DT
O
C
fr
om

LG
A
an
d
AD

AS
S;

•
De

m
on

st
ra
te

ho
w
ac
tiv

iti
es

ac
ro
ss
th
e
w
ho

le
pa
tie

nt
pa
th
w
ay

ca
n
su
pp

or
ti
m
pr
ov
ed

pa
tie

nt
flo

w
an
d
DT

O
C
pe

rf
or
m
an
ce
,s
pe

ci
fic
al
ly
ar
ou

nd
ad
m
iss
io
ns

av
oi
da
nc
e;

•
De

m
on

st
ra
te

co
ns
id
er
at
io
n
to

ho
w
al
la
va
ila
bl
e
co
m
m
un

ity
ca
pa
ci
ty

w
ith

in
lo
ca
lg
eo

gr
ap
hi
es

ca
n
be

ef
fe
ct
iv
el
y
ut
ili
se
d
to

su
pp

or
ts
af
e
an
d
ef
fe
ct
iv
e
di
sc
ha
rg
e,
w
ith

a
sh
ar
ed

ap
pr
oa
ch

to
m
on

ito
rin

g
th
is
ca
pa
ci
ty
;

•
De

m
on

st
ra
te

ho
w
CC

Gs
an
d
Lo
ca
lA

ut
ho

rit
ie
sa

re
w
or
ki
ng

co
lla
bo

ra
tiv

el
y
to

su
pp

or
ts
us
ta
in
ab
le
lo
ca
lp
ro
vi
de

rm
ar
ke
ts
,b
ui
ld
th
e
rig

ht
ca
pa
ci
ty

fo
rt
he

ne
ed

so
ft
he

lo
ca
lp
op

ul
at
io
n,
an
d
su
pp

or
tt
he

he
al
th

an
d
ca
re

w
or
kf
or
ce

id
ea
lly

th
ro
ug
h
jo
in
tc
om

m
iss
io
ni
ng

an
d
w
or
kf
or
ce

st
ra
te
gi
es
;

•
De

m
on

st
ra
te

en
ga
ge
m
en

tw
ith

th
e
in
de

pe
nd

en
ta

nd
vo
lu
nt
ar
y
se
ct
or

pr
ov
id
er
s.

5)
En

su
re

a
jo
in
ta

pp
ro
ac
h
to

as
se
ss
m
en

ts
an

d
ca
re

pl
an

ni
ng

an
d
en

su
re

th
at
, w

he
re

fu
nd

in
g
is
us
ed

fo
ri
nt
eg
ra
te
d
pa

ck
ag
es

of
ca
re
,t
he

re
w
ill
be

an
ac
co
un

ta
bl
e
pr
of
es
si
on

al

Lo
ca
la
re
as

sh
ou

ld
id
en

tif
y
w
hi
ch

pr
op

or
tio

n
of

th
ei
rp

op
ul
at
io
n
w
ill
be

re
ce
iv
in
g
ca
se

m
an
ag
em

en
ta

nd
na
m
ed

ca
re

co
or
di
na
to
r,
an
d
w
hi
ch

pr
op

or
tio

ns
w
ill
be

re
ce
iv
in
g
se
lf
m
an
ag
em

en
th

el
p

fo
llo
w
in
g
th
e
pr
in
ci
pl
es

of
pe

rs
on

ce
nt
re
d
ca
re

pl
an
ni
ng
.D

em
en

tia
se
rv
ic
es

w
ill
be

a
pa
rt
ic
ul
ar
ly
im

po
rt
an
tp

rio
rit
y
fo
rb

et
te
ri
nt
eg
ra
te
d
he

al
th

an
d

so
ci
al
ca
re

se
rv
ic
es
,s
up

po
rt
ed

by
ca
re

co
or
di
na
to
rs
,f
or

ex
am

pl
e
de

m
en

tia
ad
vi
so
rs
.

8)
Ag

re
em

en
to

n
lo
ca
la
ct
io
n
pl
an

to
re
du

ce
de

la
ye
d
tr
an

sf
er
so

fc
ar
e
(D
TO

C)

6)
Ag

re
em

en
to

n
th
e
co
ns
eq

ue
nt
ia
li
m
pa

ct
of

th
e
ch
an

ge
so

n
th
e
pr
ov
id
er
st
ha

ta
re

pr
ed

ic
te
d
to

be
su
bs
ta
nt
ia
lly

af
fe
ct
ed

by
th
e
pl
an

s

Th
e
im

pa
ct
of

lo
ca
lp
la
ns

sh
ou

ld
be

ag
re
ed

w
ith

re
le
va
nt

he
al
th

an
d
so
ci
al
ca
re

pr
ov
id
er
s.
As
su
ra
nc
e
w
ill
al
so

be
so
ug
ht

on
pu

bl
ic
an
d
pa
tie

nt
an
d
se
rv
ic
e
us
er

en
ga
ge
m
en

ti
n
th
is
pl
an
ni
ng
,a
sw

el
la
sp

la
ns

fo
rp

ol
iti
ca
lb
uy

in
.T
hi
ss
ho

ul
d
co
m
pl
em

en
tt
he

pl
an
ni
ng

gu
id
an
ce

iss
ue

d
to

N
HS

or
ga
ni
sa
tio

ns
.

Th
er
e
is
ag
re
em

en
tt
ha
tt
he

re
is
m
uc
h
m
or
e
to

be
do

ne
to

en
su
re

m
en

ta
la
nd

ph
ys
ic
al
he

al
th

ar
e
co
ns
id
er
ed

eq
ua
la
nd

be
tt
er

in
te
gr
at
ed

w
ith

on
e
an
ot
he

r,
as

w
el
la
sw

ith
ot
he

rs
er
vi
ce
ss
uc
h
as

so
ci
al
ca
re
.P
la
ns

sh
ou

ld
th
er
ef
or
e
gi
ve

du
e
re
ga
rd

to
th
is.

A
pp

en
di

x 
1 

- L
ee

ds
 B

C
F 

20
16

/1
7 

Q
2 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
Te

m
pl

at
e

Page 81



Selected Health and Well Being Board:

Income

Previously returned data:

Q1 2016/17 Q2 2016/17 Q3 2016/17 Q4 2016/17 Annual Total Pooled Fund

Plan £13,980,000 £13,980,000 £13,990,000 £14,008,588 £55,958,588 £55,958,588

Forecast £13,980,000 £13,980,000 £13,990,000 £14,008,588 £55,958,588

Actual* £13,980,000

Q2 2016/17 Amended Data:

Q1 2016/17 Q2 2016/17 Q3 2016/17 Q4 2016/17 Annual Total Pooled Fund

Plan £13,980,000 £13,980,000 £13,990,000 £14,008,588 £55,958,588 £55,958,588

Forecast £13,980,000 £13,980,000 £13,990,000 £14,008,588 £55,958,588

Actual* £13,980,000 £13,980,000

Please comment if one of the following applies:
There is a difference between the forecasted annual total and

the pooled fund
The Q2 actual differs from the Q2 plan and / or Q2 forecast

Expenditure

Previously returned data:

Q1 2016/17 Q2 2016/17 Q3 2016/17 Q4 2016/17 Annual Total Pooled Fund

Plan £13,989,500 £13,989,500 £13,989,500 £13,989,500 £55,958,000 £55,958,000

Forecast £13,989,500 £13,989,500 £13,989,500 £13,989,500 £55,958,000

Actual* £13,276,508

Q2 2016/17 Amended Data:

Q1 2016/17 Q2 2016/17 Q3 2016/17 Q4 2016/17 Annual Total Pooled Fund

Plan £13,989,500 £13,989,500 £13,989,500 £13,989,500 £55,958,000 £55,958,000

Forecast £13,989,500 £13,989,500 £13,989,500 £13,989,500 £55,958,000

Actual* £13,276,508 £13,729,514

Please comment if one of the following applies:
There is a difference between the forecasted annual total and

the pooled fund
The Q2 actual differs from the Q2 plan and / or Q2 forecast

Commentary on progress against financial plan:

Footnotes:

*Actual figures should be based on the best available information held by Health and Wellbeing Boards.
Source: For the pooled fund which is pre populated, the data is from a quarterly collection previously filled in by the HWB. Pre populated Plan, Forecast and Q1 Actual figures are sourced from the Q1 16/17 return
previously submitted by the HWB.

Expected that expenditure in underspend areas will be utilised by the end of Q4

Plan, forecast, and actual figures for total income into, and total expenditure from, the fund for each quarter to year end (in both cases the year end
figures should equal the total pooled fund)

Disabilities facilities grant £1299K spend versus £1407K budget, plus £123K underspend on CIC beds

Leeds

Please provide, plan, forecast and actual of total income into the
fund for each quarter to year end (the year figures should equal
the total pooled fund)

Please provide, plan, forecast and actual of total expenditure from
the fund for each quarter to year end (the year figures should
equal the total pooled fund)

Please provide , plan , forecast, and actual of total income into the
fund for each quarter to year end (the year figures should equal
the total pooled fund)

Please provide , plan , forecast, and actual of total income into the
fund for each quarter to year end (the year figures should equal
the total pooled fund)

Appendix 1 - Leeds BCF 2016/17 Q2 Reporting Template

Page 82



Selected Health and Well Being Board:

Please provide an update on indicative progress against the metric?

Please provide an update on indicative progress against the metric?

Please provide an update on indicative progress against the metric?

Please provide an update on indicative progress against the metric?

Please provide an update on indicative progress against the metric?

Please provide an update on indicative progress against the metric?

Footnotes:

For the local performance metric (which is pre populated), the data is from submission 4 planning returns previously submitted by the HWB.

Proportion of older people (65 and over) who were still at home 91 days after discharge from hospital into
reablement / rehabilitation services

On track to meet target

Commentary on progress:

Leeds Adult Social Care is exceeding its target for reablement completions by 44% during the first half of the
year. Complete figures for the number of people over 65 who are discharged from hospital and are still at home
91 days later having received short term support from health and ASC are not currently available. The last
available figures from quarter 1 showed around 82% still at home, a drop on last year’s figures of 84%.

Admissions to residential care Rate of permanent admissions to residential care per 100,000 population (65+)

On track to meet target

Commentary on progress:

Data available at the end of quarter 2 show that Leeds ASC is on track to meet targets for, 710 permanent
admissions per 100,000 of the over 65 population, and 130,000 bed weeks commissioned over the year. Trends
show that people are coming into residential and nursing care later and for a shorter period of time, whilst
admissions to nursing placements are increasing and those to residential have come down.

National and locally defined metrics

Leeds

Commentary on progress:
In Q2 2016/17 the Neighbourhoods had a total of 142 completed surveys returned therefore we are on track to
meet the target

Non Elective Admissions Reduction in non elective admissions

Commentary on progress:

As shared with NHSE locally, the changes in coding practice at LTHT continue to affect the performance against
the baseline target. Action taken to address performance issues include implementation of an A&E delivery and
non elective admissions action plan and ensuring the STP addresses the strategic issues.

Commentary on progress:

The levels are currently lower than they were for the same period last year. There is a seasonal trend for DTOC
and the summer months do appear to be high with a reduction at this time of year however, this August was
exceptionally high. The first two weeks peaked and there has been a reduction since then. We can report an
improving picture now which we hope will be reflected in the Q3 results.

Delayed Transfers of Care Delayed Transfers of Care (delayed days) from hospital per 100,000 population (aged 18+)

Local performance metric as described in your approved BCF plan Dementia Diagnosis Rate

On track for improved performance, but not to meet full target

No improvement in performance

For the local defined patient experience metric (which is pre populated), the data is from submission 4 planning returns previously submitted by the HWB, except in cases where HWBs provided a definition of the metric
for the first time within the Q1 16 17 template.

Commentary on progress: We continue to exceed our target

On track to meet target

On track to meet target

If no local defined patient experience metric has been specified, please give details of the local defined
patient experience metric now being used.

Local defined patient experience metric as described in your approved BCF plan

Individuals accessing health and social care services through integrated health and social care teams will be
invited to complete the LTC6 questionaire post discharge. These questionaires will be used to generate a patient
satisfaction score based on a wieghted average for all questions completed. There is a target in place to reach 50
completed questionaires per quarter for the service as a minimum.

Reablement

Appendix 1 - Leeds BCF 2016/17 Q2 Reporting Template

Page 83



Se
le
ct
ed

He
al
th

an
d
W
el
lB

ei
ng

Bo
ar
d:

Im
pr
ov
in
g
Da

ta
Sh
ar
in
g:
(M

ea
su
re
s1

3)

GP
Ho

sp
ita

l
So
ci
al
Ca
re

Co
m
m
un

ity
M
en

ta
lh
ea
lth

Sp
ec
ia
lis
ed

pa
lli
at
iv
e

N
HS

N
um

be
ri
su

se
d
as

th
e
co
ns
ist
en

ti
de

nt
ifi
er

on
al
lr
el
ev
an
t

co
rr
es
po

nd
en

ce
re
la
tin

g
to

th
e
pr
ov
isi
on

of
he

al
th

an
d
ca
re

se
rv
ic
es

to
an

in
di
vi
du

al
Ye
s

Ye
s

Ye
s

Ye
s

Ye
s

Ye
s

St
af
fi
n
th
is
se
tt
in
g
ca
n
re
tr
ie
ve

re
le
va
nt

in
fo
rm

at
io
n
ab
ou

ta
se
rv
ic
e

us
er
's
ca
re

fr
om

th
ei
rl
oc
al
sy
st
em

us
in
g
th
e
N
HS

N
um

be
r

Ye
s

Ye
s

Ye
s

Ye
s

Ye
s

Ye
s

Pl
ea
se

in
di
ca
te

ac
ro
ss
w
hi
ch

se
tt
in
gs

re
le
va
nt

se
rv
ice

us
er

in
fo
rm

at
io
n
is
cu
rr
en
tly

be
in
g
sh
ar
ed

di
gi
ta
lly

(v
ia
O
pe
n
AP

Is
or

in
te
rim

so
lu
tio

ns
)

To
GP

To
Ho

sp
ita

l
To

So
ci
al
Ca
re

To
Co

m
m
un

ity
To

M
en

ta
lh
ea
lth

To
Sp
ec
ia
lis
ed

pa
lli
at
iv
e

Fr
om

GP
Sh
ar
ed

vi
a
in
te
rim

so
lu
tio

n
Sh
ar
ed

vi
a
in
te
rim

so
lu
tio

n
Sh
ar
ed

vi
a
in
te
rim

so
lu
tio

n
Sh
ar
ed

vi
a
in
te
rim

so
lu
tio

n
Sh
ar
ed

vi
a
in
te
rim

so
lu
tio

n
Sh
ar
ed

vi
a
in
te
rim

so
lu
tio

n

Fr
om

Ho
sp
ita

l
Sh
ar
ed

vi
a
in
te
rim

so
lu
tio

n
Sh
ar
ed

vi
a
in
te
rim

so
lu
tio

n
Sh
ar
ed

vi
a
in
te
rim

so
lu
tio

n
Sh
ar
ed

vi
a
in
te
rim

so
lu
tio

n
Sh
ar
ed

vi
a
in
te
rim

so
lu
tio

n
Sh
ar
ed

vi
a
in
te
rim

so
lu
tio

n

Fr
om

So
ci
al
Ca
re

Sh
ar
ed

vi
a
in
te
rim

so
lu
tio

n
Sh
ar
ed

vi
a
in
te
rim

so
lu
tio

n
Sh
ar
ed

vi
a
in
te
rim

so
lu
tio

n
Sh
ar
ed

vi
a
in
te
rim

so
lu
tio

n
Sh
ar
ed

vi
a
in
te
rim

so
lu
tio

n
Sh
ar
ed

vi
a
in
te
rim

so
lu
tio

n

Fr
om

Co
m
m
un

ity
Sh
ar
ed

vi
a
in
te
rim

so
lu
tio

n
N
ot

cu
rr
en

tly
sh
ar
ed

di
gi
ta
lly

N
ot

cu
rr
en

tly
sh
ar
ed

di
gi
ta
lly

N
ot

cu
rr
en

tly
sh
ar
ed

di
gi
ta
lly

N
ot

cu
rr
en

tly
sh
ar
ed

di
gi
ta
lly

N
ot

cu
rr
en

tly
sh
ar
ed

di
gi
ta
lly

Fr
om

M
en

ta
lH

ea
lth

Sh
ar
ed

vi
a
in
te
rim

so
lu
tio

n
Sh
ar
ed

vi
a
in
te
rim

so
lu
tio

n
Sh
ar
ed

vi
a
in
te
rim

so
lu
tio

n
Sh
ar
ed

vi
a
in
te
rim

so
lu
tio

n
N
ot

cu
rr
en

tly
sh
ar
ed

di
gi
ta
lly

Sh
ar
ed

vi
a
in
te
rim

so
lu
tio

n

Fr
om

Sp
ec
ia
lis
ed

Pa
lli
at
iv
e

Sh
ar
ed

vi
a
in
te
rim

so
lu
tio

n
Sh
ar
ed

vi
a
in
te
rim

so
lu
tio

n
N
ot

cu
rr
en

tly
sh
ar
ed

di
gi
ta
lly

N
ot

cu
rr
en

tly
sh
ar
ed

di
gi
ta
lly

N
ot

cu
rr
en

tly
sh
ar
ed

di
gi
ta
lly

Sh
ar
ed

vi
a
in
te
rim

so
lu
tio

n

In
ea
ch

of
th
e
fo
llo
w
in
g
se
tt
in
gs
,p
le
as
e
in
di
ca
te

pr
og

re
ss
to
w
ar
ds

in
st
ill
at
io
n
of

O
pe
n
AP

Is
to

en
ab

le
in
fo
rm

at
io
n
to

be
sh
ar
ed

w
ith

ot
he
ro

rg
an

isa
tio

ns
GP

Ho
sp
ita

l
So
ci
al
Ca
re

Co
m
m
un

ity
M
en

ta
lh
ea
lth

Sp
ec
ia
lis
ed

pa
lli
at
iv
e

Pr
og
re
ss
st
at
us

In
de

ve
lo
pm

en
t

In
de

ve
lo
pm

en
t

U
na
va
ila
bl
e

In
de

ve
lo
pm

en
t

U
na
va
ila
bl
e

U
na
va
ila
bl
e

Pr
oj
ec
te
d
'g
o
liv
e'
da
te

(d
d/
m
m
/y
y)

31
/0
3/
1 8

31
/0
3/
18

31
/0
3/
18

31
/0
3/
18

31
/0
3/
18

31
/0
3/
18

Is
th
er
e
a
Di
gi
ta
lI
nt
eg
ra
te
d
Ca
re

Re
co
rd

pi
lo
tc
ur
re
nt
ly
un

de
rw

ay
in
yo
ur

He
al
th

an
d
W
el
lb
ei
ng

Bo
ar
d
ar
ea
?

Pi
lo
tc
ur
re
nt
ly
un

de
rw

ay

Ad
di
tio

na
lM

ea
su
re
s

Le
ed

s

1.
Pr
op

os
ed

M
ea
su
re
:U

se
of

N
HS

nu
m
be

ra
sp

rim
ar
y
id
en

tif
ie
ra

cr
os
sc

ar
e
se
tt
in
gs

2.
Pr
op

os
ed

M
ea
su
re
:A

va
ila
bi
lit
y
of

O
pe

n
AP

Is
ac
ro
ss

ca
re

se
tt
in
gs

3.
Pr
op

os
ed

M
ea
su
re
:I
st
he

re
a
Di
gi
ta
lI
nt
eg
ra
te
d
Ca

re
Re

co
rd

pi
lo
tc
ur
re
nt
ly
un

de
rw

ay
?

A
pp

en
di

x 
1 

- L
ee

ds
 B

C
F 

20
16

/1
7 

Q
2 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
Te

m
pl

at
e

Page 84



O
th
er

M
ea
su
re
s:
M
ea
su
re
s(
4
5)

To
ta
ln
um

be
ro

fP
HB

si
n
pl
ac
e
at

th
e
en

d
of

th
e
qu

ar
te
r

93
Ra

te
pe

r1
00

,0
00

po
pu

la
tio

n
11
.9

N
um

be
ro

fn
ew

PH
Bs

pu
ti
n
pl
ac
e
du

rin
g
th
e
qu

ar
te
r

6
N
um

be
ro

fe
xi
st
in
g
PH

Bs
st
op

pe
d
du

rin
g
th
e
qu

ar
te
r

2
O
fa

ll
re
sid

en
ts
us
in
g
PH

Bs
at

th
e
en

d
of

th
e
qu

ar
te
r,
w
ha
tp

ro
po

rt
io
n
ar
e

in
re
ce
ip
to

fN
HS

Co
nt
in
ui
ng

He
al
th
ca
re

(%
)

10
0%

Po
pu

la
tio

n
(M

id
20

16
)

77
8,
98
0

Ar
e
in
te
gr
at
ed

ca
re

te
am

s(
an
y
te
am

co
m
pr
isi
ng

bo
th

he
al
th

an
d
so
ci
al

ca
re

st
af
f)
in
pl
ac
e
an
d
op

er
at
in
g
in
th
e
no

n
ac
ut
e
se
tt
in
g?

Ye
s

th
ro
ug
ho

ut
th
e

He
al
th

an
d
W
el
lb
ei
ng

Bo
ar
d
ar
ea

Ar
e
in
te
gr
at
ed

ca
re

te
am

s(
an
y
te
am

co
m
pr
isi
ng

bo
th

he
al
th

an
d
so
ci
al

ca
re

st
af
f)
in
pl
ac
e
an
d
op

er
at
in
g
in
th
e
ac
ut
e
se
tt
in
g?

Ye
s

in
so
m
e
pa
rt
so

f
He

al
th

an
d
W
el
lb
ei
ng

Bo
ar
d
ar
ea

Fo
ot
no

te
s:

ht
tp
:/
/w

w
w
.o
ns
.g
ov
.u
k/
pe

op
le
po

pu
la
tio

na
nd

co
m
m
un

ity
/p
op

ul
at
io
na
nd

m
ig
ra
tio

n/
po

pu
la
tio

np
ro
je
ct
io
ns
/d
at
as
et
s/
lo
ca
la
ut
ho

rit
ie
sin

en
gl
an
dz
1

Po
pu

la
tio

n
fig
ur
es

w
er
e
up

da
te
d
to

th
e
m
id

ye
ar

20
16

es
tim

at
es

as
w
e
m
ov
ed

in
to

th
e
ne

w
ca
le
nd

ar
ye
ar
.

Po
pu

la
tio

n
pr
oj
ec
tio

ns
ar
e
ba
se
d
on

Su
bn

at
io
na
lP
op

ul
at
io
n
Pr
oj
ec
tio

ns
,I
nt
er
im

20
14

ba
se
d
(p
ub

lis
he

d
M
ay

20
16

).

4.
Pr
op

os
ed

M
ea
su
re
:N

um
be

ro
fP

er
so
na

lH
ea
lth

Bu
dg
et
sp

er
10

0,
00

0
po

pu
la
tio

n

5.
Pr
op

os
ed

M
ea
su
re
:U

se
an

d
pr
ev
al
en

ce
of

M
ul
ti
Di
sc
ip
lin

ar
y/
In
te
gr
at
ed

Ca
re

Te
am

s

A
pp

en
di

x 
1 

- L
ee

ds
 B

C
F 

20
16

/1
7 

Q
2 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
Te

m
pl

at
e

Page 85



Selected Health and Well Being Board:

30,688

Please provide a brief narrative on overall progress, reflecting on performance in Q2 16/17. A recommendation would be to offer a narrative around the
stocktake themes as below:
Highlights and successes
What would you consider to be your most significant area of success, or development since the last quarter? What has contributed to this improvement?
Challenges and concerns
Does the information on National Conditions and Supporting metrics point to any issues or areas of improvement? Are there any new anticipated
challenges for the coming quarter?
Potential actions and support
What actions could be taken and what support could be offered to address performance challenges and capitalise on successes for subsequent quarters?

Leeds

Performance against the NEA target remains a challenge. Action has been taken to address this including the implementation of an Integrated Discharge
Service (IDS) which started this quarter as planned, following intensive partnership working across Leeds. The IDS is initially focusing on elderly medicine,
acute medicine, A&E and assessment units as these had the highest number of delays attributed to them, which impacts on system flow. A system wide
A&E delivery action plan has also been implemented.

In noting a reduction in DTOCs, Adult Social Care has identified a significant reduction in the numbers attributable to them.

We have also commissioned a successful pilot delivered by Age UK known as Hospital to Home. This service provides support to frail older people who are
generally unaccompanied to transport and settle them back home from A&E and the assessment units. This service also provides independent support to
families that are delaying discharge due to waiting for their preferred choice of care home. They have successfully supported patients and families in
identifying alternative and suitable places of care. It is worth noting that this Hospital to Home service is featured in the recently published national
Discharge to Assess quick guidance.

Leeds is also part of a West Yorkshire Accelerator project for Care Homes which is designed to reduce attendances at A&E from care homes residents. This
involves working with all partners across the system/region including YAS. When considering admissions to residential care, we would highlight that locally
we tend to focus on total number of bed weeks provided rather than number of admissions; this number is going down which reduces financial impact.
Trends show that people are coming into residential and nursing care later and for a shorter period of time, whilst admissions to nursing placements are
increasing and those to residential have come down.

A further development since the last quarter is that the Community Respiratory Service has been extended to cover 7 days a week.

Narrative

Remaining Characters

Appendix 1 - Leeds BCF 2016/17 Q2 Reporting Template

Page 86



Q
3
20

16
/1
7

He
al
th

an
d
W
el
lB

ei
ng

Bo
ar
d

Co
m
pl
et
ed

by
:

E
M
ai
l:

Co
nt
ac
tN

um
be

r:

W
ho

ha
ss

ig
ne

d
of
ft
he

re
po

rt
on

be
ha

lf
of

th
e
He

al
th

an
d
W
el
lB

ei
ng

Bo
ar
d:

1.
Co

ve
r

2.
Bu

dg
et

Ar
ra
ng

em
en

ts
3.
N
at
io
na

lC
on

di
tio

ns
4.
I&
E

5.
Su
pp

or
tin

g
M
et
ric

s
6.
Ad

di
tio

na
lM

ea
su
re
s

7.
N
ar
ra
tiv

e
1

N
o.

of
qu

es
tio

ns
an

sw
er
ed

5 1 36 17 13

Co
ve
r

67

Le
ed

s

Le
sle

y
N
ew

lo
ve

le
sle

y.
ne

w
lo
ve
@
nh

s.
ne

t

01
13

84
31

62
7

M
at
tW

ar
d

Q
ue

st
io
n
Co

m
pl
et
io
n

w
he

n
al
lq
ue

st
io
ns

ha
ve

be
en

an
sw

er
ed

an
d
th
e
va
lid

at
io
n
bo

xe
sb

el
ow

ha
ve

tu
rn
ed

gr
ee
n
yo
u
sh
ou

ld
se
nd

th
e
te
m
pl
at
e
to

en
gl
an

d.
be

tt
er
ca
re
su
pp

or
t@

nh
s.
ne

ts
av
in
g
th
e
fil
e
as

'N
am

e
HW

B'
fo
re

xa
m
pl
e
'C
ou

nt
y
Du

rh
am

HW
B'

A
pp

en
di

x 
2 

- L
ee

ds
 B

C
F 

20
16

/1
7 

Q
3 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
Te

m
pl

at
e

Page 87



Se
le
ct
ed

He
al
th

an
d
W
el
lB

ei
ng

Bo
ar
d:

Ha
ve

th
e
fu
nd

sb
ee
n
po

ol
ed

vi
a
a
s.
75

po
ol
ed

bu
dg
et
?

Ye
s

If
it
ha
d
no

tb
ee
n
pr
ev
io
us
ly
st
at
ed

th
at

th
e
fu
nd

sh
ad

be
en

po
ol
ed

ca
n
yo
u
co
nf
irm

th
at

th
ey

ha
ve

no
w
?

Pl
ea
se

Se
le
ct

If
th
e
an
sw

er
to

th
e
ab
ov
e
is
'N
o'
pl
ea
se

in
di
ca
te

w
he

n
th
is
w
ill
ha
pp

en
(D
D/
M
M
/Y
YY
Y)

Fo
ot
no

te
s:

So
ur
ce
:F
or

th
e
S.
75

po
ol
ed

bu
dg
et

qu
es
tio

n,
w
hi
ch

is
pr
e
po

pu
la
te
d,
th
e
da
ta

is
fr
om

a
pr
ev
io
us

qu
ar
te
rly

co
lle
ct
io
n
re
tu
rn
ed

by
th
e
HW

B.

Le
ed

s

Bu
dg
et

Ar
ra
ng
em

en
ts

A
pp

en
di

x 
2 

- L
ee

ds
 B

C
F 

20
16

/1
7 

Q
3 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
Te

m
pl

at
e

Page 88



Se
le
ct
ed

He
al
th

an
d
W
el
lB

ei
ng

Bo
ar
d:

Le
ed

s

Th
e
Sp
en

di
ng

Ro
un

d
es
ta
bl
ish

ed
six

na
tio

na
lc
on

di
tio

ns
fo
ra

cc
es
st
o
th
e
Fu
nd

.
Pl
ea
se

co
nf
irm

by
se
le
ct
in
g
'Y
es
',
'N
o'
or

'N
o

In
Pr
og
re
ss
'a
ga
in
st
th
e
re
le
va
nt

co
nd

iti
on

as
to

w
he

th
er

th
es
e
ha
ve

be
en

m
et
,a
sp

er
yo
ur

fin
al
BC

F
pl
an
.

Fu
rt
he

rd
et
ai
ls
on

th
e
co
nd

iti
on

sa
re

sp
ec
ifi
ed

be
lo
w
.

If
'N
o'
or

'N
o

In
Pr
og
re
ss
'i
ss
el
ec
te
d
fo
ra

ny
of

th
e
co
nd

iti
on

sp
le
as
e
in
cl
ud

e
an

ex
pl
an
at
io
n
as

to
w
hy

th
e
co
nd

iti
on

w
as

no
tm

et
w
ith

in
th
is
qu

ar
te
r(
in

lin
e
w
ith

sig
ne

d
of
fp

la
n)

an
d
ho

w
th
is
is
be

in
g
ad
dr
es
se
d ?

Co
nd

iti
on

(p
le
as
e
re
fe
rt
o
th
e
de

ta
ile
d
de

fin
iti
on

be
lo
w
)

Q
1
Su
bm

is
si
on

Re
sp
on

se
Q
2
Su
bm

is
si
on

Re
sp
on

se

Pl
ea
se

Se
le
ct

('Y
es
',
'N
o'
or

'N
o

In
Pr
og
re
ss
')

If
th
e
an

sw
er

is
"N

o"
or

"N
o

In
Pr
og
re
ss
"
pl
ea
se

en
te
re

st
im

at
ed

da
te

w
he

n
co
nd

iti
on

w
ill
be

m
et

if
no

t
al
re
ad

y
in
pl
ac
e

(D
D/

M
M
/Y
YY

Y)

1)
Pl
an
st
o
be

jo
in
tly

ag
re
ed

Ye
s

Ye
s

Ye
s

2)
M
ai
nt
ai
n
pr
ov
isi
on

of
so
ci
al
ca
re

se
rv
ic
es

Ye
s

Ye
s

Ye
s

i)
Ag

re
em

en
tf
or

th
e
de

liv
er
y
of

7
da
y
se
rv
ic
es

ac
ro
ss
he

al
th

an
d
so
ci
al
ca
re

to
pr
ev
en

tu
nn

ec
es
sa
ry

no
n
el
ec
tiv

e
ad
m
iss
io
ns

to
ac
ut
e
se
tt
in
gs

an
d
to

fa
ci
lit
at
e

tr
an
sf
er

to
al
te
rn
at
iv
e
ca
re

se
tt
in
gs

w
he

n
cl
in
ic
al
ly
ap
pr
op

ria
te

N
o

In
Pr
og
re
ss

N
o

In
Pr
og
re
ss

N
o

In
Pr
og
re
ss

01
/0
4/
20

17

ii)
Ar
e
su
pp

or
ts
er
vi
ce
s,
bo

th
in
th
e
ho

sp
ita

la
nd

in
pr
im

ar
y,
co
m
m
un

ity
an
d

m
en

ta
lh
ea
lth

se
tt
in
gs

av
ai
la
bl
e
se
ve
n
da
ys

a
w
ee
k
to

en
su
re

th
at

th
e
ne

xt
st
ep

s
in
th
e
pa
tie

nt
’s
ca
re

pa
th
w
ay
,a
sd

et
er
m
in
ed

by
th
e
da
ily

co
ns
ul
ta
nt

le
d
re
vi
ew

,
ca
n
be

ta
ke
n
(S
ta
nd

ar
d
9)
?

N
o

In
Pr
og
re
ss

N
o

In
Pr
og
re
ss

N
o

In
Pr
og
re
ss

01
/0
4/
20

17

i)
Is
th
e
N
HS

N
um

be
rb

ei
ng

us
ed

as
th
e
co
ns
ist
en

ti
de

nt
ifi
er

fo
rh

ea
lth

an
d
so
ci
al

ca
re

se
rv
ic
es
?

Ye
s

Ye
s

Ye
s

ii)
Ar
e
yo
u
pu

rs
ui
ng

O
pe

n
AP

Is
(ie

sy
st
em

th
at

sp
ea
k
to

ea
ch

ot
he

r)
?

Ye
s

Ye
s

Ye
s

iii
)A

re
th
e
ap
pr
op

ria
te

In
fo
rm

at
io
n
Go

ve
rn
an
ce

co
nt
ro
ls
in
pl
ac
e
fo
ri
nf
or
m
at
io
n

sh
ar
in
g
in
lin
e
w
ith

th
e
re
vi
se
d
Ca
ld
ic
ot
tP

rin
ci
pl
es

an
d
gu
id
an
ce
?

Ye
s

Ye
s

Ye
s

iv
)H

av
e
yo
u
en

su
re
d
th
at

pe
op

le
ha
ve

cl
ar
ity

ab
ou

th
ow

da
ta

ab
ou

tt
he

m
is

us
ed

,w
ho

m
ay

ha
ve

ac
ce
ss
an
d
ho

w
th
ey

ca
n
ex
er
ci
se

th
ei
rl
eg
al
rig

ht
s?

Ye
s

Ye
s

Ye
s

5)
En
su
re

a
jo
in
ta

pp
ro
ac
h
to

as
se
ss
m
en

ts
an
d
ca
re

pl
an
ni
ng

an
d
en

su
re

th
at
,

w
he

re
fu
nd

in
g
is
us
ed

fo
ri
nt
eg
ra
te
d
pa
ck
ag
es

of
ca
re
,t
he

re
w
ill
be

an
ac
co
un

ta
bl
e
pr
of
es
sio

na
l

Ye
s

Ye
s

Ye
s

6)
Ag

re
em

en
to

n
th
e
co
ns
eq

ue
nt
ia
li
m
pa
ct
of

th
e
ch
an
ge
so

n
th
e
pr
ov
id
er
st
ha
t

ar
e
pr
ed

ic
te
d
to

be
su
bs
ta
nt
ia
lly

af
fe
ct
ed

by
th
e
pl
an
s

Ye
s

Ye
s

Ye
s

7)
Ag

re
em

en
tt
o
in
ve
st
in
N
HS

co
m
m
iss
io
ne

d
ou

t
of

ho
sp
ita

ls
er
vi
ce
s

Ye
s

Ye
s

Ye
s

8)
Ag

re
em

en
to

n
a
lo
ca
lt
ar
ge
tf
or

De
la
ye
d
Tr
an
sf
er
so

fC
ar
e
(D
TO

C)
an
d
de

ve
lo
p

a
jo
in
tl
oc
al
ac
tio

n
pl
an

Ye
s

Ye
s

Ye
s

N
at
io
na
lC
on

di
tio

ns

3)
In
re
sp
ec
to

f7
Da

y
Se
rv
ic
es

pl
ea
se

co
nf
irm

:

4)
In
re
sp
ec
to

fD
at
a
Sh
ar
in
g

pl
ea
se

co
nf
irm

:

Th
er
e
ar
e
a
nu

m
be

ro
fs
er
vi
ce
si
n
th
e
co
m
m
un

ity
,m

en
ta
lh
ea
lth

,s
oc
ia
lc
ar
e
an
d
ho

sp
ita

ls
et
tin

gs
th
at

ar
e
al
re
ad
y
av
ai
la
bl
e
ov
er

7
da
ys
.A

ll
co
m
m
iss
io
ni
ng

de
ci
sio

ns
an
d
se
rv
ic
e
sp
ec
ifi
ca
tio

n
de

ve
lo
pm

en
tn

ow
co
ns
id
er
sw

ha
ts
er
vi
ce
sa

re
re
qu

ire
d
ov
er

7
da
ys
.
7
Da

y
pr
irm

ar
y
ca
re

se
rv
ic
e
is

be
in
g
ev
al
ua
te
d
w
ith

co
ns
id
er
at
io
n
fo
rr
ol
lo
ut

in
sp
ec
ifi
ed

ar
ea
s.
St
an
da
rd

9
is
on

e
of

th
e
fo
ur

st
an
da
rd
st
ha
ta

re
du

e
to

be
ac
hi
ev
ed

by
Ap

ril
20

17
.

If
th
e
an

sw
er

is
"N

o"
or

"N
o

In
Pr
og
re
ss
"
pl
ea
se

pr
ov
id
e
an

ex
pl
an

at
io
n
as

to
w
hy

th
e
co
nd

iti
on

w
as

no
tm

et
w
ith

in
th
e
qu

ar
te
ra

nd
ho

w
th
is
is
be

in
g

ad
dr
es
se
d:

Ac
ut
e
ca
re

pr
ov
id
er

is
on

tr
ac
k
fo
ra

ch
ie
vi
ng

fo
ur

of
th
e
st
an
da
rd
sa

sr
eq

ui
re
d
in
th
e
N
at
io
na
lt
ra
je
ct
or
y
of

m
ile
st
on

es
by

Ap
ril

20
17

.
N
at
io
na
lly

fu
ll
im

pl
em

en
ta
tio

n
is
re
qu

ire
d
by

20
20

;c
om

m
iss
io
ne

rs
ar
e
w
or
ki
ng

w
ith

th
e
pr
ov
id
er

to
en

su
re

fu
ll
de

liv
er
y
by

20
20

.

A
pp

en
di

x 
2 

- L
ee

ds
 B

C
F 

20
16

/1
7 

Q
3 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
Te

m
pl

at
e

Page 89



N
at
io
na

lc
on

di
tio

ns
de

ta
ile
d
de

fin
iti
on

s

Lo
ca
la
re
as

m
us
ti
nc
lu
de

an
ex
pl
an
at
io
n
of

ho
w
lo
ca
la
du

lt
so
ci
al
ca
re

se
rv
ic
es

w
ill
co
nt
in
ue

to
be

su
pp

or
te
d
w
ith

in
th
ei
rp

la
ns

in
a
m
an
ne

rc
on

sis
te
nt

w
ith

20
15

16
.

Th
e
de

fin
iti
on

of
su
pp

or
ts
ho

ul
d
be

ag
re
ed

lo
ca
lly
.A

sa
m
in
im

um
,i
ts
ho

ul
d
m
ai
nt
ai
n
in
re
al
te
rm

st
he

le
ve
lo
f p

ro
te
ct
io
n
as

pr
ov
id
ed

th
ro
ug
h
th
e
m
an
da
te
d
m
in
im

um
el
em

en
to

fl
oc
al
Be

tt
er

Ca
re

Fu
nd

ag
re
em

en
ts
of

20
15

16
.T
hi
sr
ef
le
ct
st
he

re
al
te
rm

si
nc
re
as
e
in
th
e
Be

tt
er

Ca
re

Fu
nd

.

In
se
tt
in
g
th
e
le
ve
lo
fp

ro
te
ct
io
n
fo
rs
oc
ia
lc
ar
e
lo
ca
lit
ie
ss
ho

ul
d
be

m
in
df
ul
to

en
su
re

th
at

an
y
ch
an
ge

do
es

no
td

es
ta
bi
lis
e
th
e
lo
ca
l s
oc
ia
la
nd

he
al
th

ca
re

sy
st
em

as
a
w
ho

le
.T
hi
sw

ill
be

as
se
ss
ed

co
m
pa
re
d
to

20
15

16
fig
ur
es

th
ro
ug
h
th
e
re
gi
on

al
as
su
ra
nc
e
pr
oc
es
s.

It
sh
ou

ld
al
so

be
co
ns
ist
en

tw
ith

20
12

De
pa
rt
m
en

to
fH

ea
lth

gu
id
an
ce

to
N
HS

En
gl
an
d
on

th
e
fu
nd

in
g
tr
an
sf
er

fr
om

th
e
N
HS

to
so
ci
al
ca
re

in
20

13
14

:

ht
tp
s:
//
w
w
w
.g
ov
.u
k/
go
ve
rn
m
en

t/
up

lo
ad
s/
sy
st
em

/u
pl
oa
ds
/a
tt
ac
hm

en
t_
da
ta
/f
ile
/2
13

22
3/
Fu
nd

in
g
tr
an
sf
er

fr
om

th
e
N
HS

to
so
ci
al

ca
re

in
20

13
14
.p
df

3)
Ag

re
em

en
tf
or

th
e
de

liv
er
y
of

7
da

y
se
rv
ic
es

ac
ro
ss

he
al
th

an
d
so
ci
al
ca
re

to
pr
ev
en

tu
nn

ec
es
sa
ry

no
n
el
ec
tiv

e
(p
hy
si
ca
la
nd

m
en

ta
lh
ea
lth

)a
dm

is
si
on

st
o
ac
ut
e
se
tt
in
gs

an
d
to

fa
ci
lit
at
e
tr
an

sf
er

to
al
te
rn
at
iv
e
ca
re

se
tt
in
gs

w
he

n
cl
in
ic
al
ly
ap

pr
op

ria
te
.

Lo
ca
la
re
as

ar
e
as
ke
d
to

co
nf
irm

ho
w
th
ei
rp

la
ns

w
ill
pr
ov
id
e
7
da
y
se
rv
ic
es

(t
hr
ou

gh
ou

tt
he

w
ee
k,
in
cl
ud

in
g
w
ee
ke
nd

s)
ac
ro
ss
co
m
m
un

ity
,p
rim

ar
y,
m
en

ta
lh
ea
lth

,a
nd

so
ci
al
ca
re

in
or
de

r:

•
To

pr
ev
en

tu
nn

ec
es
sa
ry

no
n
el
ec
tiv

e
ad
m
iss
io
ns

(p
hy
sic

al
an
d
m
en

ta
lh
ea
lth

)t
hr
ou

gh
pr
ov
isi
on

of
an

ag
re
ed

le
ve
lo
fi
nf
ra
st
ru
ct
ur
e
ac
ro
ss
ou

to
fh

os
pi
ta
ls
er
vi
ce
s7

da
ys

a
w
ee
k;

•
To

su
pp

or
tt
he

tim
el
y
di
sc
ha
rg
e
of

pa
tie

nt
s,
fr
om

ac
ut
e
ph

ys
ic
al
an
d
m
en

ta
lh
ea
lth

se
tt
in
gs
,o
n
ev
er
y
da
y
of

th
e
w
ee
k,
w
he

re
it
is
cl
in
ic
al
ly
ap
pr
op

ria
te

to
do

so
,a
vo
id
in
g
un

ne
ce
ss
ar
y
de

la
ye
d
di
sc
ha
rg
es

of
ca
re
.I
ft
he

y
ar
e
no

ta
bl
e
to

pr
ov
id
e
su
ch

pl
an
s,
th
ey

m
us
te

xp
la
in
w
hy
.

Th
e
10

cl
in
ic
al
st
an
da
rd
sd

ev
el
op

ed
by

th
e
N
HS

Se
rv
ic
es
,S
ev
en

Da
ys

a
W
ee
k
Fo
ru
m

re
pr
es
en

t,
as

a
w
ho

le
,b
es
tp

ra
ct
ic
e
fo
rq

ua
lit
y
ca
re

on
ev
er
y
da
y
of

th
e
w
ee
k
an
d
pr
ov
id
e
a
us
ef
ul
re
fe
re
nc
e
fo
rc
om

m
iss
io
ne

rs
(h
tt
ps
:/
/w

w
w
.e
ng
la
nd

.n
hs
.u
k/
w
p
co
nt
en

t/
up

lo
ad
s/
20

13
/1
2/
cl
in
ic
al

st
an
da
rd
s1
.p
df

).
By

20
20

al
lh
os
pi
ta
li
n
pa
tie

nt
sa

dm
itt
ed

th
ro
ug
h
ur
ge
nt

an
d
em

er
ge
nc
y
ro
ut
es

in
En
gl
an
d
w
ill
ha
ve

ac
ce
ss
to

se
rv
ic
es

w
hi
ch

co
m
pl
y
w
ith

at
le
as
t4

of
th
es
e
st
an
da
rd
so

n
ev
er
y
da
y
of

th
e
w
ee
k,
na
m
el
y
St
an
da
rd
s2

,5
,6

an
d
8.
Fo
rt
he

Be
tt
er

Ca
re

Fu
nd

,p
ar
tic
ul
ar

co
ns
id
er
at
io
n
sh
ou

ld
be

gi
ve
n
to

w
he

th
er

pr
og
re
ss
is
be

in
g
m
ad
e
ag
ai
ns
tS

ta
nd

ar
d
9.
Th
is

st
an
da
rd

hi
gh
lig
ht
st
he

ro
le
of

su
pp

or
ts
er
vi
ce
si
n
th
e
pr
ov
isi
on

of
th
e
ne

xt
st
ep

si
n
a
pe

rs
on

’s
ca
re

pa
th
w
ay

fo
llo
w
in
g
ad
m
iss
io
n
to

ho
sp
ita

l,
as

de
te
rm

in
ed

by
th
e
da
ily

co
ns
ul
ta
nt

le
d
re
vi
ew

,a
nd

th
e
im

po
rt
an
ce

of
ef
fe
ct
iv
e
re
la
tio

ns
hi
ps

be
tw

ee
n
m
ed

ic
al
an
d
ot
he

rh
ea
lth

an
d
so
ci
al
ca
re

te
am

s.

4)
Be

tt
er

da
ta

sh
ar
in
g
be

tw
ee
n
he

al
th

an
d
so
ci
al
ca
re
,b

as
ed

on
th
e
N
HS

nu
m
be

r
Th
e
ap
pr
op

ria
te

an
d
la
w
fu
ls
ha
rin

g
of

da
ta

in
th
e
be

st
in
te
re
st
so

fp
eo

pl
e
w
ho

us
e
ca
re

an
d
su
pp

or
ti
se

ss
en

tia
lt
o
th
e
pr
ov
isi
on

of
sa
fe
,s
ea
m
le
ss
ca
re
.T
he

us
e
of

th
e
N
HS

nu
m
be

ra
sa

co
ns
ist
en

ti
de

nt
ifi
er

is
an

im
po

rt
an
te

le
m
en

to
ft
hi
s,
as

is
pr
og
re
ss
to
w
ar
ds

sy
st
em

sa
nd

pr
oc
es
se
st
ha
ta

llo
w
th
e
sa
fe

an
d
tim

el
y
sh
ar
in
g
of

in
fo
rm

at
io
n.
It
is
al
so

vi
ta
lt
ha
tt
he

rig
ht

cu
ltu

re
s,
be

ha
vi
ou

rs
an
d
le
ad
er
sh
ip
ar
e
de

m
on

st
ra
te
d
lo
ca
lly
,f
os
te
rin

g
a
cu
ltu

re
of

se
cu
re
,l
aw

fu
la
nd

ap
pr
op

ria
te

sh
ar
in
g
of

da
ta

to
su
pp

or
tb

et
te
rc
ar
e.

Lo
ca
la
re
as

sh
ou

ld
:

•
co
nf
irm

th
at

th
ey

ar
e
us
in
g
th
e
N
HS

N
um

be
ra

st
he

co
ns
ist
en

ti
de

nt
ifi
er

fo
rh

ea
lth

an
d
ca
re

se
rv
ic
es
,a
nd

if
th
ey

ar
e
no

t,
w
he

n
th
ey

pl
an

to
;

•
co
nf
irm

th
at

th
ey

ar
e
pu

rs
ui
ng

in
te
ro
pe

ra
bl
e
Ap

pl
ic
at
io
n
Pr
og
ra
m
m
in
g
In
te
rf
ac
es

(A
PI
s)
(i.
e.
sy
st
em

st
ha
ts
pe

ak
to

ea
ch

ot
he

r)
w
ith

th
e
ne

ce
ss
ar
y
se
cu
rit
y
an
d
co
nt
ro
ls
(h
tt
ps
:/
/w

w
w
.e
ng
la
nd

.n
hs
.u
k/
w
p
co
nt
en

t/
up

lo
ad
s/
20

14
/0
5/
op

en
ap
ip

ol
ic
y.
pd

f;
an
d

•
en

su
re

th
ey

ha
ve

th
e
ap
pr
op

ria
te

In
fo
rm

at
io
n
Go

ve
rn
an
ce

co
nt
ro
ls
in
pl
ac
e
fo
ri
nf
or
m
at
io
n
sh
ar
in
g
in
lin
e
w
ith

th
e
re
vi
se
d
Ca
ld
ic
ot
tp

rin
ci
pl
es

an
d
gu
id
an
ce

m
ad
e
av
ai
la
bl
e
by

th
e
In
fo
rm

at
io
n
Go

ve
rn
an
ce

Al
lia
nc
e
(IG

A)
,a
nd

if
no

t,
w
he

n
th
ey

pl
an

fo
ri
tt
o
be

in
pl
ac
e.

•
en

su
re

th
at

pe
op

le
ha
ve

cl
ar
ity

ab
ou

th
ow

da
ta

ab
ou

tt
he

m
is
us
ed

,w
ho

m
ay

ha
ve

ac
ce
ss
an
d
ho

w
th
ey

ca
n
ex
er
ci
se

th
ei
rl
eg
al
rig

ht
s.
In
lin
e
w
ith

th
e
re
co
m
m
en

da
tio

ns
fr
om

th
e
N
at
io
na
lD

at
a
Gu

ar
di
an

re
vi
ew

.

Th
e
In
fo
rm

at
io
n
Go

ve
rn
an
ce

Al
lia
nc
e
(IG

A)
is
a
gr
ou

p
of

na
tio

na
lh
ea
lth

an
d
ca
re

or
ga
ni
sa
tio

ns
(in

cl
ud

in
g
th
e
De

pa
rt
m
en

to
fH

ea
lth

,N
HS

En
gl
an
d,
Pu

bl
ic
He

al
th

En
gl
an
d
an
d
th
e
He

al
th

an
d
So
ci
al
Ca
re

In
fo
rm

at
io
n
Ce

nt
re
)w

or
ki
ng

to
ge
th
er

to
pr
ov
id
e
a
jo
in
ed

up
an
d
co
ns
ist
en

ta
pp

ro
ac
h
to

in
fo
rm

at
io
n
go
ve
rn
an
ce

an
d
pr
ov
id
e
ac
ce
ss
to

a
ce
nt
ra
lr
ep

os
ito

ry
gu
id
an
ce

on
da
ta

ac
ce
ss
iss
ue

sf
or

th
e
he

al
th

an
d
ca
re

sy
st
em

.S
ee

ht
tp
:/
/s
ys
te
m
s.
hs
ci
c.
go
v.
uk
/in

fo
go
v/
ig
a

Th
e
Be

tt
er

Ca
re

Fu
nd

Pl
an
,c
ov
er
in
g
a
m
in
im

um
of

th
e
po

ol
ed

fu
nd

sp
ec
ifi
ed

in
th
e
Sp
en

di
ng

Re
vi
ew

,a
nd

po
te
nt
ia
lly

ex
te
nd

in
g
to

th
e
to
ta
lit
y
of

th
e
he

al
th

an
d
ca
re

sp
en

d
in
th
e
He

al
th

an
d
W
el
lb
ei
ng

Bo
ar
d
ar
ea
,s
ho

ul
d
be

sig
ne

d
of
fb

y
th
e
He

al
th

an
d
W
el
lb
ei
ng

Bo
ar
d
its
el
f,
an
d
by

th
e
co
ns
tit
ue

nt
Co

un
ci
ls
an
d
Cl
in
ic
al
Co

m
m
iss
io
ni
ng

Gr
ou

ps
.

In
ag
re
ei
ng

th
e
pl
an
, C
lin
ic
al
Co

m
m
iss
io
ni
ng

Gr
ou

ps
an
d
lo
ca
la
ut
ho

rit
ie
ss
ho

ul
d
en

ga
ge

w
ith

he
al
th

an
d
so
ci
al
ca
re

pr
ov
id
er
sl
ik
el
y
to

be
af
fe
ct
ed

by
th
e
us
e
of

th
e
fu
nd

in
or
de

rt
o
ac
hi
ev
e
th
e
be

st
ou

tc
om

es
fo
rl
oc
al
pe

op
le
.F
ur
th
er
m
or
e,
th
er
e
sh
ou

ld
be

jo
in
ta

gr
ee
m
en

ta
cr
os
sc

om
m
iss
io
ne

rs
an
d
pr
ov
id
er
sa

st
o
ho

w
th
e
Be

tt
er

Ca
re

Fu
nd

w
ill
co
nt
rib

ut
e
to

a
lo
ng
er

te
rm

st
ra
te
gi
c
pl
an
.T
hi
ss
ho

ul
d
in
cl
ud

e
an

as
se
ss
m
en

to
ff
ut
ur
e
ca
pa
ci
ty

an
d
w
or
kf
or
ce

re
qu

ire
m
en

ts
ac
ro
ss
th
e
sy
st
em

.T
he

im
pl
ic
at
io
ns

fo
rl
oc
al
pr
ov
id
er
ss
ho

ul
d
be

se
to

ut
cl
ea
rly

fo
rH

ea
lth

an
d
W
el
lb
ei
ng

Bo
ar
ds

so
th
at

th
ei
ra

gr
ee
m
en

tf
or

th
e
de

pl
oy
m
en

to
ft
he

fu
nd

in
cl
ud

es
re
co
gn
iti
on

of
th
e
se
rv
ic
e
ch
an
ge

co
ns
eq

ue
nc
es
.T
he

Di
sa
bl
ed

Fa
ci
lit
ie
s

Gr
an
t(
DF

G)
w
ill
ag
ai
n
be

al
lo
ca
te
d
th
ro
ug
h
th
e
Be

tt
er

Ca
re

Fu
nd

.L
oc
al
ho

us
in
g
au
th
or
ity

re
pr
es
en

ta
tiv

es
sh
ou

ld
th
er
ef
or
e
be

in
vo
lv
ed

in
de

ve
lo
pi
ng

an
d
ag
re
ei
ng

th
e
pl
an
,i
n
or
de

rt
o
en

su
re

a
jo
in
ed

up
ap
pr
oa
ch

to
im

pr
ov
in
g
ou

tc
om

es
ac
ro
ss
he

al
th
,s
oc
ia
lc
ar
e
an
d
ho

us
in
g.

2)
M
ai
nt
ai
n
pr
ov
is
io
n
of

so
ci
al
ca
re

se
rv
ic
es

Th
e
BC

F
po

lic
y
fr
am

ew
or
k
fo
r2

01
6
17

an
d
BC

F
pl
an
ni
ng

gu
id
an
ce

se
ts
ou

te
ig
ht

na
tio

na
lc
on

di
tio

ns
fo
ra

cc
es
st
o
th
e
Fu
nd

:

1)
Pl
an

st
o
be

jo
in
tly

ag
re
ed

A
pp

en
di

x 
2 

- L
ee

ds
 B

C
F 

20
16

/1
7 

Q
3 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
Te

m
pl

at
e

Page 90



Gi
ve
n
th
e
un

ac
ce
pt
ab
le
hi
gh

le
ve
ls
of

DT
O
C
cu
rr
en

tly
,t
he

Go
ve
rn
m
en

ti
se

xp
lo
rin

g
w
ha
tf
ur
th
er

ac
tio

n
sh
ou

ld
be

ta
ke
n
to

ad
dr
es
st
he

iss
ue

.

As
pa
rt
of

th
is
w
or
k,
un

de
rt
he

Be
tt
er

Ca
re

Fu
nd

,e
ac
h
lo
ca
la
re
a
is
to

de
ve
lo
p
a
lo
ca
la
ct
io
n
pl
an

fo
rm

an
ag
in
g
DT

O
C,
in
cl
ud

in
g
a
lo
ca
lly

ag
re
ed

ta
rg
et
.

Al
ll
oc
al
ar
ea
sn

ee
d
to

es
ta
bl
ish

th
ei
ro

w
n
st
re
tc
hi
ng

lo
ca
lD

TO
C
ta
rg
et

ag
re
ed

be
tw

ee
n
th
e
CC

G,
Lo
ca
lA

ut
ho

rit
y
an
d
re
le
va
nt

ac
ut
e
an
d
co
m
m
un

ity
tr
us
ts
.T
hi
st
ar
ge
ts
ho

ul
d
be

re
fle

ct
ed

in
CC

G
op

er
at
io
na
lp
la
ns
.T
he

m
et
ric

fo
rt
he

ta
rg
et

sh
ou

ld
be

th
e
sa
m
e
as

th
e
na
tio

na
lp
er
fo
rm

an
ce

m
et
ric

(a
ve
ra
ge

de
la
ye
d
tr
an
sf
er
so

fc
ar
e
(d
el
ay
ed

da
ys
)p

er
10

0,
00

0
po

pu
la
tio

n
(a
tt
rib

ut
ab
le
to

ei
th
er

N
HS

,s
oc
ia
lc
ar
e
or

bo
th
)p

er
m
on

th
.

As
pa
rt
of

th
is
pl
an
,w

e
w
an
tl
oc
al
ar
ea
st
o
co
ns
id
er

th
e
us
e
of

lo
ca
lr
isk

sh
ar
in
g
ag
re
em

en
ts
w
ith

re
sp
ec
tt
o
DT

O
C,
w
ith

cl
ea
rr
ef
er
en

ce
to

ex
ist
in
g
gu
id
an
ce

an
d
fle

xi
bi
lit
ie
s.
Th
is
w
ill
be

pa
rt
ic
ul
ar
ly
re
le
va
nt

in
ar
ea
sw

he
re

le
ve
ls
of

DT
O
C
ar
e
hi
gh

an
d
ris
in
g.

In
ag
re
ei
ng

th
e
pl
an
,C
lin
ic
al
Co

m
m
iss
io
ni
ng

Gr
ou

ps
an
d
lo
ca
la
ut
ho

rit
ie
ss
ho

ul
d
en

ga
ge

w
ith

th
e
re
le
va
nt

ac
ut
e
an
d
co
m
m
un

ity
tr
us
ts
an
d
be

ab
le
to

de
m
on

st
ra
te

th
at

th
e
pl
an

ha
sb

ee
n
ag
re
ed

w
ith

th
e
pr
ov
id
er
sg

iv
en

th
e
ne

ed
fo
rc
lo
se

jo
in
tw

or
ki
ng

on
th
e
DT

O
C
iss
ue

.

W
e
w
ou

ld
ex
pe

ct
pl
an
st
o:

•
Se
to

ut
cl
ea
rl
in
es

of
re
sp
on

sib
ili
ty
,a
cc
ou

nt
ab
ili
tie

s,
an
d
m
ea
su
re
so

fa
ss
ur
an
ce

an
d
m
on

ito
rin

g;
•
Ta
ke

ac
co
un

to
fn

at
io
na
lg
ui
da
nc
e,
pa
rt
ic
ul
ar
ly
th
e
N
HS

Hi
gh

Im
pa
ct
In
te
rv
en

tio
ns

fo
rU

rg
en

ta
nd

Em
er
ge
nc
y
Ca
re
,t
he

N
HS

En
gl
an
d
M
on

th
ly
De

la
ye
d
Tr
an
sf
er
so

fC
ar
e
Si
tu
at
io
n
Re

po
rt
sD

ef
in
iti
on

an
d
Gu

id
an
ce
,a
nd

be
st
pr
ac
tic
e
w
ith

re
ga
rd
st
o
re
du

ci
ng

DT
O
C
fr
om

LG
A
an
d
AD

AS
S;

•
De

m
on

st
ra
te

ho
w
ac
tiv

iti
es

ac
ro
ss
th
e
w
ho

le
pa
tie

nt
pa
th
w
ay

ca
n
su
pp

or
ti
m
pr
ov
ed

pa
tie

nt
flo

w
an
d
DT

O
C
pe

rf
or
m
an
ce
,s
pe

ci
fic
al
ly
ar
ou

nd
ad
m
iss
io
ns

av
oi
da
nc
e;

•
De

m
on

st
ra
te

co
ns
id
er
at
io
n
to

ho
w
al
la
va
ila
bl
e
co
m
m
un

ity
ca
pa
ci
ty

w
ith

in
lo
ca
lg
eo

gr
ap
hi
es

ca
n
be

ef
fe
ct
iv
el
y
ut
ili
se
d
to

su
pp

or
ts
af
e
an
d
ef
fe
ct
iv
e
di
sc
ha
rg
e,
w
ith

a
sh
ar
ed

ap
pr
oa
ch

to
m
on

ito
rin

g
th
is
ca
pa
ci
ty
;

•
De

m
on

st
ra
te

ho
w
CC

Gs
an
d
Lo
ca
lA

ut
ho

rit
ie
sa

re
w
or
ki
ng

co
lla
bo

ra
tiv

el
y
to

su
pp

or
ts
us
ta
in
ab
le
lo
ca
lp
ro
vi
de

rm
ar
ke
ts
,b
ui
ld
th
e
rig

ht
ca
pa
ci
ty

fo
rt
he

ne
ed

so
ft
he

lo
ca
lp
op

ul
at
io
n,
an
d
su
pp

or
tt
he

he
al
th

an
d
ca
re

w
or
kf
or
ce

id
ea
lly

th
ro
ug
h
jo
in
tc
om

m
iss
io
ni
ng

an
d
w
or
kf
or
ce

st
ra
te
gi
es
;

•
De

m
on

st
ra
te

en
ga
ge
m
en

tw
ith

th
e
in
de

pe
nd

en
ta

nd
vo
lu
nt
ar
y
se
ct
or

pr
ov
id
er
s.

5)
En

su
re

a
jo
in
ta

pp
ro
ac
h
to

as
se
ss
m
en

ts
an

d
ca
re

pl
an

ni
ng

an
d
en

su
re

th
at
,w

he
re

fu
nd

in
g
is
us
ed

fo
ri
nt
eg
ra
te
d
pa

ck
ag
es

of
ca
re
,t
he

re
w
ill
be

an
ac
co
un

ta
bl
e
pr
of
es
si
on

al

Lo
ca
la
re
as

sh
ou

ld
id
en

tif
y
w
hi
ch

pr
op

or
tio

n
of

th
ei
rp

op
ul
at
io
n
w
ill
be

re
ce
iv
in
g
ca
se

m
an
ag
em

en
ta

nd
na
m
ed

ca
re

co
or
di
na
to
r,
an
d
w
hi
ch

pr
op

or
tio

ns
w
ill
be

re
ce
iv
in
g
se
lf
m
an
ag
em

en
th

el
p

fo
llo
w
in
g
th
e
pr
in
ci
pl
es

of
pe

rs
on

ce
nt
re
d
ca
re

pl
an
ni
ng
.D

em
en

tia
se
rv
ic
es

w
ill
be

a
pa
rt
ic
ul
ar
ly
im

po
rt
an
tp

rio
rit
y
fo
rb

et
te
ri
nt
eg
ra
te
d
he

al
th

an
d
so
ci
al
ca
re

se
rv
ic
es
,s
up

po
rt
ed

by
ca
re

co
or
di
na
to
rs
,f
or

ex
am

pl
e
de

m
en

tia
ad
vi
so
rs
.

8)
Ag

re
em

en
to

n
lo
ca
la
ct
io
n
pl
an

to
re
du

ce
de

la
ye
d
tr
an

sf
er
so

fc
ar
e
(D
TO

C)

7)
Ag

re
em

en
tt
o
in
ve
st
in
N
HS

co
m
m
is
si
on

ed
ou

to
fh

os
pi
ta
ls
er
vi
ce
s,
w
hi
ch

m
ay

in
cl
ud

e
a
w
id
e
ra
ng
e
of

se
rv
ic
es

in
cl
ud

in
g
so
ci
al
ca
re

Th
is
sh
ou

ld
be

ac
hi
ev
ed

in
on

e
of

th
e
fo
llo
w
in
g
w
ay
s:

To
fu
nd

N
HS

co
m
m
iss
io
ne

d
ou

t
of

ho
sp
ita

ls
er
vi
ce
s,
w
hi
ch

m
ay

in
cl
ud

e
a
w
id
e
ra
ng
e
of

se
rv
ic
es

in
cl
ud

in
g
so
ci
al
ca
re
,a
sp

ar
to

ft
he

ir
ag
re
ed

Be
tt
er

Ca
re

Fu
nd

pl
an
;o

r

Lo
ca
la
re
as

ca
n
ch
oo

se
to

pu
ta

n
ap
pr
op

ria
te

pr
op

or
tio

n
of

th
ei
rs
ha
re

of
th
e
£1

bn
in
to

a
lo
ca
lr
isk

sh
ar
in
g
ag
re
em

en
ta

sp
ar
to

fc
on

tin
ge
nc
y
pl
an
ni
ng

in
th
e
ev
en

to
fe

xc
es
sa

ct
iv
ity

,w
ith

th
e
ba
la
nc
e
sp
en

to
n
N
HS

co
m
m
iss
io
ne

d
ou

t
of

ho
sp
ita

ls
er
vi
ce
s,
w
hi
ch

m
ay

in
cl
ud

e
a
w
id
e
ra
ng
e
of

se
rv
ic
es

in
cl
ud

in
g
so
ci
al
ca
re

(lo
ca
la
re
as

sh
ou

ld
se
ek
,

as
a
m
in
im

um
,t
o
m
ai
nt
ai
n
pr
ov
isi
on

of
N
HS

co
m
m
iss
io
ne

d
ou

to
fh

os
pi
ta
ls
er
vi
ce
si
n
a
m
an
ne

rc
on

sis
te
nt

w
ith

15
16

);

Th
is
co
nd

iti
on

re
pl
ac
es

th
e
Pa
ym

en
tf
or

Pe
rf
or
m
an
ce

sc
he

m
e
in
cl
ud

ed
in
th
e
20

15
16

Be
tt
er

Ca
re

Fu
nd

fr
am

ew
or
k.

Lo
ca
la
re
as

sh
ou

ld
ag
re
e
ho

w
th
ey

w
ill
us
e
th
ei
rs
ha
re

of
th
e
£1

bi
lli
on

th
at

ha
d
pr
ev
io
us
ly
be

en
us
ed

to
cr
ea
te

th
e
pa
ym

en
tf
or

pe
rf
or
m
an
ce

fu
nd

.

6)
Ag

re
em

en
to

n
th
e
co
ns
eq

ue
nt
ia
li
m
pa

ct
of

th
e
ch
an

ge
so

n
th
e
pr
ov
id
er
st
ha

ta
re

pr
ed

ic
te
d
to

be
su
bs
ta
nt
ia
lly

af
fe
ct
ed

by
th
e
pl
an

s

Th
e
im

pa
ct
of

lo
ca
lp
la
ns

sh
ou

ld
be

ag
re
ed

w
ith

re
le
va
nt

he
al
th

an
d
so
ci
al
ca
re

pr
ov
id
er
s.
As
su
ra
nc
e
w
ill
al
so

be
so
ug
ht

on
pu

bl
ic
an
d
pa
tie

nt
an
d
se
rv
ic
e
us
er

en
ga
ge
m
en

ti
n
th
is
pl
an
ni
ng
,a
sw

el
la
sp

la
ns

fo
rp

ol
iti
ca
lb
uy

in
.T
hi
ss
ho

ul
d
co
m
pl
em

en
tt
he

pl
an
ni
ng

gu
id
an
ce

iss
ue

d
to

N
HS

or
ga
ni
sa
tio

ns
.

Th
er
e
is
ag
re
em

en
tt
ha
tt
he

re
is
m
uc
h
m
or
e
to

be
do

ne
to

en
su
re

m
en

ta
la
nd

ph
ys
ic
al
he

al
th

ar
e
co
ns
id
er
ed

eq
ua
la
nd

be
tt
er

in
te
gr
at
ed

w
ith

on
e
an
ot
he

r,
as

w
el
la
sw

ith
ot
he

rs
er
vi
ce
ss
uc
h
as

so
ci
al
ca
re
.P
la
ns

sh
ou

ld
th
er
ef
or
e
gi
ve

du
e
re
ga
rd

to
th
is.

A
pp

en
di

x 
2 

- L
ee

ds
 B

C
F 

20
16

/1
7 

Q
3 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
Te

m
pl

at
e

Page 91



Selected Health and Well Being Board:

Income

Previously returned data:

Q1 2016/17 Q2 2016/17 Q3 2016/17 Q4 2016/17 Annual Total Pooled Fund

Plan £13,980,000 £13,980,000 £13,990,000 £14,008,588 £55,958,588 £55,958,588

Forecast £13,980,000 £13,980,000 £13,990,000 £14,008,588 £55,958,588

Actual* £13,980,000 £13,980,000

Q3 2016/17 Amended Data:

Q1 2016/17 Q2 2016/17 Q3 2016/17 Q4 2016/17 Annual Total Pooled Fund

Plan £13,980,000 £13,980,000 £13,990,000 £14,008,588 £55,958,588 £55,958,588

Forecast £13,980,000 £13,980,000 £13,990,000 £14,008,588 £55,958,588

Actual* £13,980,000 £13,980,000 £13,990,000

Please comment if one of the following applies:
There is a difference between the forecasted annual total and

the pooled fund
The Q3 actual differs from the Q3 plan and / or Q3 forecast

Expenditure

Previously returned data:

Q1 2016/17 Q2 2016/17 Q3 2016/17 Q4 2016/17 Annual Total Pooled Fund

Plan £13,989,500 £13,989,500 £13,989,500 £13,989,500 £55,958,000 £55,958,000

Forecast £13,989,500 £13,989,500 £13,989,500 £13,989,500 £55,958,000

Actual* £13,276,508 £13,729,514

Q3 2016/17 Amended Data:

Q1 2016/17 Q2 2016/17 Q3 2016/17 Q4 2016/17 Annual Total Pooled Fund

Plan £13,989,500 £13,989,500 £13,989,500 £13,989,500 £55,958,000 £55,958,000

Forecast £13,989,500 £13,989,500 £13,989,500 £13,989,500 £55,958,000

Actual* £13,276,508 £13,729,514 £14,600,500

Please comment if one of the following applies:
There is a difference between the forecasted annual total and

the pooled fund
The Q3 actual differs from the Q3 plan and / or Q3 forecast

Commentary on progress against financial plan:

Footnotes:

*Actual figures should be based on the best available information held by Health and Wellbeing Boards.
Source: For the pooled fund which is pre populated, the data is from a quarterly collection previously filled in by the HWB. Pre populated Plan figures are sourced from the Q1 16/17 collection
whilst Forecast, Q1 and Q2 Actual figures are sourced from the Q2 16/17 return previously submitted by the HWB.

Will be on plan by end of Q4

Plan, forecast, and actual figures for total income into, and total expenditure from, the fund for each quarter to year end (in both
cases the year end figures should equal the total pooled fund)

Catch up Payments of Disabilities facilities grant from Q1 &Q2

Leeds

Please provide, plan, forecast and actual of total income into
the fund for each quarter to year end (the year figures should
equal the total pooled fund)

Please provide, plan, forecast and actual of total expenditure
from the fund for each quarter to year end (the year figures
should equal the total pooled fund)

Please provide , plan , forecast, and actual of total income into
the fund for each quarter to year end (the year figures should
equal the total pooled fund)

Please provide , plan , forecast, and actual of total income into
the fund for each quarter to year end (the year figures should
equal the total pooled fund)

Appendix 2 - Leeds BCF 2016/17 Q3 Reporting Template

Page 92



Selected Health and Well Being Board:

Please provide an update on indicative progress against the metric?

Please provide an update on indicative progress against the metric?

Please provide an update on indicative progress against the metric?

Please provide an update on indicative progress against the metric?

Please provide an update on indicative progress against the metric?

Admissions to residential care Rate of permanent admissions to residential care per 100,000 population (65+)

Dementia Diagnosis Rate

On track for improved performance, but not to meet full target

Current figures indicate that there will be an estimated 725 admissions per 100,000. This is a similar
figure to the outturn for 2015/16.

Commentary on progress:

There has been a slight downward turn during the end of Quarter 3 for over 65 dementia diagnosis
resulting in 76.3% against a target of 76.9%. It is worthy of note however that the result for all ages is
78.4% against the expected prevalence

On track for improved performance, but not to meet full target

On track to meet target

If no local defined patient experience metric has been specified, please give details of the
local defined patient experience metric now being used.

Local defined patient experience metric as described in your approved BCF plan

Individuals accessing health and social care services through integrated health and social care teams will
be invited to complete the LTC6 questionaire post discharge. These questionaires will be used to
generate a patient satisfaction score based on a wieghted average for all questions completed. There is a
target in place to reach 50 completed questionaires per quarter for the service as a minimum.

On track to meet target

Commentary on progress:

National and locally defined metrics

Leeds

Commentary on progress:

There have been 290 completed questionnaires returned in Q3.

Non Elective Admissions Reduction in non elective admissions

Commentary on progress:

As with quarter 2 there is an underlying growth in demand however we continue to challenge the change
in coding practice.

Commentary on progress:

There is an improved position this quarter to the same period last year despite unprecedented
attendance and admissions. This remains a challenging target for the city with full system resilience
support and additional investments made to relieve the situation.

Delayed Transfers of Care Delayed Transfers of Care (delayed days) from hospital per 100,000 population (aged 18+)

Local performance metric as described in your approved BCF plan

No improvement in performance

Appendix 2 - Leeds BCF 2016/17 Q3 Reporting Template

Page 93



Se
le
ct
ed

He
al
th

an
d
W
el
lB

ei
ng

Bo
ar
d:

Im
pr
ov
in
g
Da

ta
Sh
ar
in
g:
(M

ea
su
re
s1

3)

GP
Ho

sp
ita

l
So
ci
al
Ca
re

Co
m
m
un

ity
M
en

ta
lh
ea
lth

Sp
ec
ia
lis
ed

pa
lli
at
iv
e

N
HS

N
um

be
ri
su

se
d
as

th
e
co
ns
ist
en

ti
de

nt
ifi
er

on
al
l

re
le
va
nt

co
rr
es
po

nd
en

ce
re
la
tin

g
to

th
e
pr
ov
isi
on

of
he

al
th

an
d
ca
re

se
rv
ic
es

to
an

in
di
vi
du

al
Ye
s

Ye
s

Ye
s

Ye
s

Ye
s

Ye
s

St
af
fi
n
th
is
se
tt
in
g
ca
n
re
tr
ie
ve

re
le
va
nt

in
fo
rm

at
io
n

ab
ou

ta
se
rv
ic
e
us
er
's
ca
re

fr
om

th
ei
rl
oc
al
sy
st
em

us
in
g
th
e
N
HS

N
um

be
r

Ye
s

Ye
s

Ye
s

Ye
s

Ye
s

Ye
s

Pl
ea
se

in
di
ca
te

ac
ro
ss
w
hi
ch

se
tt
in
gs

re
le
va
nt

se
rv
ice

us
er

in
fo
rm

at
io
n
is
cu
rr
en
tly

be
in
g
sh
ar
ed

di
gi
ta
lly

(v
ia
O
pe
n
AP

Is
or

in
te
rim

so
lu
tio

ns
)

To
GP

To
Ho

sp
ita

l
To

So
ci
al
Ca
re

To
Co

m
m
un

ity
To

M
en

ta
lh
ea
lth

To
Sp
ec
ia
lis
ed

pa
lli
at
iv
e

Fr
om

GP
Sh
ar
ed

vi
a
in
te
rim

so
lu
tio

n
Sh
ar
ed

vi
a
in
te
rim

so
lu
tio

n
Sh
ar
ed

vi
a
in
te
rim

so
lu
tio

n
Sh
ar
ed

vi
a
in
te
rim

so
lu
tio

n
Sh
ar
ed

vi
a
in
te
rim

so
lu
tio

n
Sh
ar
ed

vi
a
in
te
rim

so
lu
tio

n

Fr
om

Ho
sp
ita

l
Sh
ar
ed

vi
a
in
te
rim

so
lu
tio

n
Sh
ar
ed

vi
a
in
te
rim

so
lu
tio

n
Sh
ar
ed

vi
a
in
te
rim

so
lu
tio

n
Sh
ar
ed

vi
a
in
te
rim

so
lu
tio

n
Sh
ar
ed

vi
a
in
te
rim

so
lu
tio

n
Sh
ar
ed

vi
a
in
te
rim

so
lu
tio

n

Fr
om

So
ci
al
Ca
re

Sh
ar
ed

vi
a
in
te
rim

so
lu
tio

n
Sh
ar
ed

vi
a
in
te
rim

so
lu
tio

n
Sh
ar
ed

vi
a
in
te
rim

so
lu
tio

n
Sh
ar
ed

vi
a
in
te
rim

so
lu
tio

n
Sh
ar
ed

vi
a
in
te
rim

so
lu
tio

n
Sh
ar
ed

vi
a
in
te
rim

so
lu
tio

n

Fr
om

Co
m
m
un

ity
Sh
ar
ed

vi
a
in
te
rim

so
lu
tio

n
N
ot

cu
rr
en

tly
sh
ar
ed

di
gi
ta
lly

N
ot

cu
rr
en

tly
sh
ar
ed

di
gi
ta
lly

N
ot

cu
rr
en

tly
sh
ar
ed

di
gi
ta
lly

N
ot

cu
rr
en

tly
sh
ar
ed

di
gi
ta
lly

N
ot

cu
rr
en

tly
sh
ar
ed

di
gi
ta
lly

Fr
om

M
en

ta
lH

ea
lth

Sh
ar
ed

vi
a
in
te
rim

so
lu
tio

n
Sh
ar
ed

vi
a
in
te
rim

so
lu
tio

n
Sh
ar
ed

vi
a
in
te
rim

so
lu
tio

n
Sh
ar
ed

vi
a
in
te
rim

so
lu
tio

n
N
ot

cu
rr
en

tly
sh
ar
ed

di
gi
ta
lly

Sh
ar
ed

vi
a
in
te
rim

so
lu
tio

n

Fr
om

Sp
ec
ia
lis
ed

Pa
lli
at
iv
e

Sh
ar
ed

vi
a
in
te
rim

so
lu
tio

n
Sh
ar
ed

vi
a
in
te
rim

so
lu
tio

n
N
ot

cu
rr
en

tly
sh
ar
ed

di
gi
ta
lly

N
ot

cu
rr
en

tly
sh
ar
ed

di
gi
ta
lly

N
ot

cu
rr
en

tly
sh
ar
ed

di
gi
ta
lly

Sh
ar
ed

vi
a
in
te
rim

so
lu
tio

n

In
ea
ch

of
th
e
fo
llo
w
in
g
se
tt
in
gs
,p
le
as
e
in
di
ca
te

pr
og

re
ss
to
w
ar
ds

in
st
ill
at
io
n
of

O
pe
n
AP

Is
to

en
ab

le
in
fo
rm

at
io
n
to

be
sh
ar
ed

w
ith

ot
he
ro

rg
an

isa
tio

ns

GP
Ho

sp
ita

l
So
ci
al
Ca
re

Co
m
m
un

ity
M
en

ta
lh
ea
lth

Sp
ec
ia
lis
ed

pa
lli
at
iv
e

Pr
og
re
ss
st
at
us

In
de

ve
lo
pm

en
t

In
de

ve
lo
pm

en
t

U
na
va
ila
bl
e

In
de

ve
lo
pm

en
t

U
na
va
ila
bl
e

U
na
va
ila
bl
e

Pr
oj
ec
te
d
'g
o
liv
e'
da
te

(d
d/
m
m
/y
y)

31
/0
3/
18

31
/0
3/
18

31
/0
3/
18

31
/0
3/
18

31
/0
3/
18

31
/0
3/
18

Ad
di
tio

na
lM

ea
su
re
s

Le
ed

s

1.
Pr
op

os
ed

M
ea
su
re
:U

se
of

N
HS

nu
m
be

ra
sp

rim
ar
y
id
en

tif
ie
ra

cr
os
sc

ar
e
se
tt
in
gs

2.
Pr
op

os
ed

M
ea
su
re
:A

va
ila
bi
lit
y
of

O
pe

n
AP

Is
ac
ro
ss

ca
re

se
tt
in
gs

A
pp

en
di

x 
2 

- L
ee

ds
 B

C
F 

20
16

/1
7 

Q
3 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
Te

m
pl

at
e

Page 94



Is
th
er
e
a
Di
gi
ta
lI
nt
eg
ra
te
d
Ca
re

Re
co
rd

pi
lo
tc
ur
re
nt
ly

un
de

rw
ay

in
yo
ur

He
al
th

an
d
W
el
lb
ei
ng

Bo
ar
d
ar
ea
?

Pi
lo
tc
ur
re
nt
ly

un
de

rw
ay

O
th
er

M
ea
su
re
s:
M
ea
su
re
s(
4
5)

To
ta
ln
um

be
ro

fP
HB

si
n
pl
ac
e
at

th
e
en

d
of

th
e

qu
ar
te
r

10
0

Ra
te

pe
r1

00
,0
00

po
pu

la
tio

n
12
.8

N
um

be
ro

fn
ew

PH
Bs

pu
ti
n
pl
ac
e
du

rin
g
th
e
qu

ar
te
r

7

N
um

be
ro

fe
xi
st
in
g
PH

Bs
st
op

pe
d
du

rin
g
th
e
qu

ar
te
r

1
O
fa

ll
re
sid

en
ts
us
in
g
PH

Bs
at

th
e
en

d
of

th
e
qu

ar
te
r,

w
ha
tp

ro
po

rt
io
n
ar
e
in
re
ce
ip
to

fN
HS

Co
nt
in
ui
ng

He
al
th
ca
re

(%
)

10
0%

Po
pu

la
tio

n
(M

id
20

16
)

77
8,
98

0

Ar
e
in
te
gr
at
ed

ca
re

te
am

s(
an
y
te
am

co
m
pr
isi
ng

bo
th

he
al
th

an
d
so
ci
al
ca
re

st
af
f)
in
pl
ac
e
an
d
op

er
at
in
g
in

th
e
no

n
ac
ut
e
se
tt
in
g?

Ye
s

th
ro
ug
ho

ut
th
e

He
al
th

an
d
W
el
lb
ei
ng

Bo
ar
d
ar
ea

Ar
e
in
te
gr
at
ed

ca
re

te
am

s(
an
y
te
am

co
m
pr
isi
ng

bo
th

he
al
th

an
d
so
ci
al
ca
re

st
af
f)
in
pl
ac
e
an
d
op

er
at
in
g
in

th
e
ac
ut
e
se
tt
in
g?

Ye
s

in
so
m
e
pa
rt
so

f
He

al
th

an
d
W
el
lb
ei
ng

Bo
ar
d
ar
ea

Fo
ot
no

te
s:

ht
tp
:/
/w

w
w
.o
ns
.g
ov
.u
k/
pe

op
le
po

pu
la
tio

na
nd

co
m
m
un

ity
/p
op

ul
at
io
na
nd

m
ig
ra
tio

n/
po

pu
la
tio

np
ro
je
ct
io
ns
/d
at
as
et
s/
lo
ca
la
ut
ho

rit
ie
sin

en
gl
an
dz
1

Po
pu

la
tio

n
fig
ur
es

w
er
e
up

da
te
d
to

th
e
m
id

ye
ar

20
16

es
tim

at
es

as
w
e
m
ov
ed

in
to

th
e
ne

w
ca
le
nd

ar
ye
ar
.

Po
pu

la
tio

n
pr
oj
ec
tio

ns
ar
e
ba
se
d
on

Su
bn

at
io
na
lP
op

ul
at
io
n
Pr
oj
ec
tio

ns
,I
nt
er
im

20
14

ba
se
d
(p
ub

lis
he

d
M
ay

20
16

).

3.
Pr
op

os
ed

M
ea
su
re
:I
st
he

re
a
Di
gi
ta
lI
nt
eg
ra
te
d
Ca

re
Re

co
rd

pi
lo
tc
ur
re
nt
ly
un

de
rw

ay
?

4.
Pr
op

os
ed

M
ea
su
re
:N

um
be

ro
fP

er
so
na

lH
ea
lth

Bu
dg
et
sp

er
10

0,
00

0
po

pu
la
tio

n

5.
Pr
op

os
ed

M
ea
su
re
:U

se
an

d
pr
ev
al
en

ce
of

M
ul
ti
Di
sc
ip
lin

ar
y/
In
te
gr
at
ed

Ca
re

Te
am

s

A
pp

en
di

x 
2 

- L
ee

ds
 B

C
F 

20
16

/1
7 

Q
3 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
Te

m
pl

at
e

Page 95



Selected Health and Well Being Board:

30,148

Please provide a brief narrative on overall progress, reflecting on performance in Q3 16/17. A recommendation would be to offer a narrative around the
stocktake themes as below:
Highlights and successes
What would you consider to be your most significant area of success, or development since the last quarter? What has contributed to this improvement?
Challenges and concerns
Does the information on National Conditions and Supporting metrics point to any issues or areas of improvement? Are there any new anticipated
challenges for the coming quarter?
Potential actions and support
What actions could be taken and what support could be offered to address performance challenges and capitalise on successes for subsequent quarters?

Leeds

It is worth noting that although performance against dementia diagnosis is just below the city wide target of 76.9%, Leeds South and East CCG is above the
target and 4th nationally. Work is ongoing to explore what more can be done to improve rates, although Leeds performs well overall in comparison to
other cities. Performance against the NEA target remains a challenge. As stated last quarter, action has been taken to address this; latest developments
include the implementation of an Integrated Discharge Service (IDS), which includes the development of a ‘trusted assessor’ function and additional
investment of £600k into community health, social care and voluntary sector services, working as part of a hospital based team. The CCGs in Leeds via the
A& E plan and System Resilience Assurance Board have made additional community bed capacity available to support winter pressures. Leeds continues to
contribute to the West Yorkshire Accelerator Zone work in care homes, we would note that workforce remains a challenge in the Acute and Community
sectors which impacts on patient flow. Lessons have been learned and changes to practice have already resulted in positive developments for example
linking workforce deployment to patient flow across Leeds communities. Longer term commissioning investment has been secured to improve and enhance
community intermediate care inpatient capacity, in readiness for next winter. Plans will increase capacity from 179 beds to 231 beds (factoring in
demographic growth up to 2019/20). Approximately 75% of the beds would be retained for Intermediate Care and 25% for a new transfer to assess model.
The capacity will meet existing demand as well as meeting the needs of:
• additional patients currently waiting at home who can’t access a CIC bed due to lack of capacity (equivalent to 158 admissions avoided per year)
• at least 50 patients currently waiting in hospital for residential or nursing beds based on Medically Fit For Discharge Data; excludes patients waiting to go
home or for complex care equivalent to 12,500 hospital bed days per year and 4500 excess bed day payments

Picking up on recent BCF themes, it is worthy of note that the 3 CCGs in Leeds commission social prescribing services. An event in celebration of this work
was held on 14th February 2017 and opened by the Chair of the Health and Well Being Board. The evaluation will be fed into a wider redesign of voluntary
and community sector services in 2018 as part of the Leeds chapter of the STP. These longer term investments will form a key part of our BCF plan in
17/19.

Narrative

Remaining Characters

Appendix 2 - Leeds BCF 2016/17 Q3 Reporting Template

Page 96



Q
4
20

16
/1
7

He
al
th

an
d
W
el
lB

ei
ng

Bo
ar
d

co
m
pl
et
ed

by
:

E
M
ai
l:

Co
nt
ac
tN

um
be

r:

W
ho

ha
ss

ig
ne

d
of
ft
he

re
po

rt
on

be
ha

lf
of

th
e
He

al
th

an
d
W
el
lB

ei
ng

Bo
ar
d:

1.
Co

ve
r

2.
Bu

dg
et

Ar
ra
ng

em
en

ts
3.
N
at
io
na

lC
on

di
tio

ns
4.
I&
E

5.
Su
pp

or
tin

g
M
et
ric

s
6.
Ye

ar
En

d
Fe
ed

ba
ck

7.
Ad

di
tio

na
lM

ea
su
re
s

8.
N
ar
ra
tiv

e
1

N
o.

of
qu

es
tio

ns
an

sw
er
ed

5 1 24 19 13

Co
ve
r

67

Le
ed

s

Le
sle

y
N
ew

lo
ve

le
sle

y.
ne

w
lo
ve
@
nh

s.
ne

t

01
13

84
31

62
7

Go
rd
on

Si
nc
la
ir

Q
ue

st
io
n
Co

m
pl
et
io
n

w
he

n
al
lq
ue

st
io
ns

ha
ve

be
en

an
sw

er
ed

an
d
th
e
va
lid

at
io
n
bo

xe
sb

el
ow

ha
ve

tu
rn
ed

gr
ee
n
yo
u
sh
ou

ld
se
nd

th
e
te
m
pl
at
e
to

en
gl
an

d.
be

tt
er
ca
re
su
pp

or
t@

nh
s.
ne

ts
av
in
g
th
e
fil
e
as

'N
am

e
HW

B'
fo
re

xa
m
pl
e
'C
ou

nt
y
Du

rh
am

HW
B'

11

A
pp

en
di

x 
3 

- L
ee

ds
 B

C
F 

20
16

/1
7 

Q
4 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
Te

m
pl

at
e

Page 97



Se
le
ct
ed

He
al
th

an
d
W
el
lB

ei
ng

Bo
ar
d:

Ha
ve

th
e
fu
nd

sb
ee
n
po

ol
ed

vi
a
a
s.
75

po
ol
ed

bu
dg
et
?

Ye
s

If
it
ha
d
no

tb
ee
n
pr
ev
io
us
ly
st
at
ed

th
at

th
e
fu
nd

sh
ad

be
en

po
ol
ed

ca
n
yo
u
no

w
co
nf
irm

th
at

th
ey

ha
ve

no
w
?

If
th
e
an
sw

er
to

th
e
ab
ov
e
is
'N
o'
pl
ea
se

in
di
ca
te

w
he

n
th
is
w
ill
ha
pp

en
(D
D/
M
M
/Y
YY
Y)

Fo
ot
no

te
s:

Le
ed

s

Bu
dg
et

Ar
ra
ng
em

en
ts

So
ur
ce
:F
or

th
e
S.
75

po
ol
ed

bu
dg
et

qu
es
tio

n,
w
hi
ch

is
pr
e
po

pu
la
te
d,
th
e
da
ta

is
fr
om

a
pr
ev
io
us

qu
ar
te
rly

co
lle
ct
io
n
re
tu
rn
ed

by
th
e
HW

B.

A
pp

en
di

x 
3 

- L
ee

ds
 B

C
F 

20
16

/1
7 

Q
4 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
Te

m
pl

at
e

Page 98



Se
le
ct
ed

He
al
th

an
d
W
el
lB

ei
ng

Bo
ar
d:

Le
ed

s

Fu
rt
he

rd
et
ai
ls
on

th
e
co
nd

iti
on

sa
re

sp
ec
ifi
ed

be
lo
w
.

Co
nd

iti
on

Q
1
Su
bm

is
si
on

Re
sp
on

se
Q
2
Su
bm

is
si
on

Re
sp
on

se
Q
3
Su
bm

is
si
on

Re
sp
on

se
Pl
ea
se

Se
le
ct
(Y
es

or
N
o)

1)
Pl
an
st
o
be

jo
in
tly

ag
re
ed

Ye
s

Ye
s

Ye
s

Ye
s

2)
M
ai
nt
ai
n
pr
ov
isi
on

of
so
ci
al
ca
re

se
rv
ic
es

Ye
s

Ye
s

Ye
s

Ye
s

3)
In
re
sp
ec
to

f7
Da

y
Se
rv
ic
es

pl
ea
se

co
nf
irm

:
i)
Ag

re
em

en
tf
or

th
e
de

liv
er
y
of

7
da
y
se
rv
ic
es

ac
ro
ss
he

al
th

an
d
so
ci
al
ca
re

to
pr
ev
en

tu
nn

ec
es
sa
ry

no
n
el
ec
tiv

e
ad
m
iss
io
ns

to
ac
ut
e
se
tt
in
gs

an
d
to

fa
ci
lit
at
e

tr
an
sf
er

to
al
te
rn
at
iv
e
ca
re

se
tt
in
gs

w
he

n
cl
in
ic
al
ly
ap
pr
op

ria
te

N
o

In
Pr
og
re
ss

N
o

In
Pr
og
re
ss

N
o

In
Pr
og
re
ss

Ye
s

he
al
th

se
tt
in
gs

av
ai
la
bl
e
se
ve
n
da
ys

a
w
ee
k
to

en
su
re

th
at

th
e
ne

xt
st
ep

si
n
th
e

pa
tie

nt
’s
ca
re

pa
th
w
ay
,a
sd

et
er
m
in
ed

by
th
e
da
ily

co
ns
ul
ta
nt

le
d
re
vi
ew

,c
an

be
ta
ke
n
(S
ta
nd

ar
d
9)
?

N
o

In
Pr
og
re
ss

N
o

In
Pr
og
re
ss

N
o

In
Pr
og
re
ss

Ye
s

4)
In
re
sp
ec
to

fD
at
a
Sh
ar
in
g

pl
ea
se

co
nf
irm

:

i)
Is
th
e
N
HS

N
um

be
rb

ei
ng

us
ed

as
th
e
co
ns
ist
en

ti
de

nt
ifi
er

fo
rh

ea
lth

an
d
so
ci
al

ca
re

se
rv
ic
es
?

Ye
s

Ye
s

Ye
s

Ye
s

ii)
Ar
e
yo
u
pu

rs
ui
ng

O
pe

n
AP

Is
(ie

sy
st
em

th
at

sp
ea
k
to

ea
ch

ot
he

r)
?

Ye
s

Ye
s

Ye
s

Ye
s

iii
)A

re
th
e
ap
pr
op

ria
te

In
fo
rm

at
io
n
Go

ve
rn
an
ce

co
nt
ro
ls
in
pl
ac
e
fo
ri
nf
or
m
at
io
n

sh
ar
in
g
in
lin
e
w
ith

th
e
re
vi
se
d
Ca
ld
ic
ot
tP

rin
ci
pl
es

an
d
gu
id
an
ce
?

Ye
s

Ye
s

Ye
s

Ye
s

iv
)H

av
e
yo
u
en

su
re
d
th
at

pe
op

le
ha
ve

cl
ar
ity

ab
ou

th
ow

da
ta

ab
ou

tt
he

m
is
us
ed

,
w
ho

m
ay

ha
ve

ac
ce
ss
an
d
ho

w
th
ey

ca
n
ex
er
ci
se

th
ei
rl
eg
al
rig

ht
s?

Ye
s

Ye
s

Ye
s

Ye
s

5)
En
su
re

a
jo
in
ta

pp
ro
ac
h
to

as
se
ss
m
en

ts
an
d
ca
re

pl
an
ni
ng

an
d
en

su
re

th
at
,w

he
re

fu
nd

in
g
is
us
ed

fo
ri
nt
eg
ra
te
d
pa
ck
ag
es

of
ca
re
,t
he

re
w
ill
be

an
ac
co
un

ta
bl
e

pr
of
es
sio

na
l

Ye
s

Ye
s

Ye
s

Ye
s

6)
Ag

re
em

en
to

n
th
e
co
ns
eq

ue
nt
ia
li
m
pa
ct
of

th
e
ch
an
ge
so

n
th
e
pr
ov
id
er
st
ha
ta

re
pr
ed

ic
te
d
to

be
su
bs
ta
nt
ia
lly

af
fe
ct
ed

by
th
e
pl
an
s

Ye
s

Ye
s

Ye
s

Ye
s

7)
Ag

re
em

en
tt
o
in
ve
st
in
N
HS

co
m
m
iss
io
ne

d
ou

t
of

ho
sp
ita

ls
er
vi
ce
s

Ye
s

Ye
s

Ye
s

Ye
s

8)
Ag

re
em

en
to

n
a
lo
ca
lt
ar
ge
tf
or

De
la
ye
d
Tr
an
sf
er
so

fC
ar
e
(D
TO

C)
an
d
de

ve
lo
p
a

jo
in
tl
oc
al
ac
tio

n
pl
an

Ye
s

Ye
s

Ye
s

Ye
s

N
at
io
na
lC
on

di
tio

ns

If
th
e
an

sw
er

is
'N
o'
,p

le
as
e
pr
ov
id
e
an

ex
pl
an

at
io
n
as

to
w
hy

th
e
co
nd

iti
on

w
as

no
tm

et
w
ith

in
th
e
ye
ar

(in
lin

e
w
ith

si
gn
ed

of
fp

la
n)

an
d
ho

w
th
is
is
be

in
g
ad

dr
es
se
d?

Th
e
Sp
en

di
ng

Ro
un

d
es
ta
bl
ish

ed
six

na
tio

na
lc
on

di
tio

ns
fo
ra

cc
es
st
o
th
e
Fu
nd

.
Pl
ea
se

co
nf
irm

by
se
le
ct
in
g
'Y
es
',
'N
o'
or

'N
o

In
Pr
og
re
ss
'a
ga
in
st
th
e
re
le
va
nt

co
nd

iti
on

as
to

w
he

th
er

th
es
e
ha
ve

be
en

m
et
,a
sp

er
yo
ur

fin
al
BC

F
pl
an
.

If
'N
o'
or

'N
o

In
Pr
og
re
ss
'i
ss
el
ec
te
d
fo
ra

ny
of

th
e
co
nd

iti
on

sp
le
as
e
in
cl
ud

e
an

ex
pl
an
at
io
n
as

to
w
hy

th
e
co
nd

iti
on

w
as

no
tm

et
w
ith

in
th
e
ye
ar

(in
lin
e
w
ith

sig
ne

d
of
fp

la
n)

an
d
ho

w
th
is
is
be

in
g
ad
dr
es
se
d?

A
pp

en
di

x 
3 

- L
ee

ds
 B

C
F 

20
16

/1
7 

Q
4 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
Te

m
pl

at
e

Page 99



N
at
io
na

lc
on

di
tio

ns
de

ta
ile
d
de

fin
iti
on

s

1)
Pl
an

st
o
be

jo
in
tly

ag
re
ed

2)
M
ai
nt
ai
n
pr
ov
is
io
n
of

so
ci
al
ca
re

se
rv
ic
es

3)
Ag

re
em

en
tf
or

th
e
de

liv
er
y
of

7
da

y
se
rv
ic
es

ac
ro
ss

he
al
th

an
d
so
ci
al
ca
re

to

Th
e
Be

tt
er

Ca
re

Fu
nd

Pl
an
,c
ov
er
in
g
a
m
in
im

um
of

th
e
po

ol
ed

fu
nd

sp
ec
ifi
ed

in
th
e
Sp
en

di
ng

Re
vi
ew

,a
nd

po
te
nt
ia
lly

ex
te
nd

in
g
to

th
e
to
ta
lit
y
of

th
e
he

al
th

an
d
ca
re

sp
en

d
in
th
e
He

al
th

an
d
W
el
lb
ei
ng

Bo
ar
d
ar
ea
,s
ho

ul
d
be

sig
ne

d
of
fb

y
th
e
He

al
th

an
d
W
el
lb
ei
ng

Bo
ar
d
its
el
f,
an
d
by

th
e
co
ns
tit
ue

nt
Co

un
ci
ls
an
d
Cl
in
ic
al

Co
m
m
iss
io
ni
ng

Gr
ou

ps
.

In
ag
re
ei
ng

th
e
pl
an
,C
lin
ic
al
Co

m
m
iss
io
ni
ng

Gr
ou

ps
an
d
lo
ca
la
ut
ho

rit
ie
ss
ho

ul
d
en

ga
ge

w
ith

he
al
th

an
d
so
ci
al
ca
re

pr
ov
id
er
sl
ik
el
y
to

be
af
fe
ct
ed

by
th
e
us
e
of

th
e
fu
nd

in
or
de

rt
o
ac
hi
ev
e
th
e
be

st
ou

tc
om

es
fo
rl
oc
al
pe

op
le
.F
ur
th
er
m
or
e,
th
er
e
sh
ou

ld
be

jo
in
ta

gr
ee
m
en

ta
cr
os
sc

om
m
iss
io
ne

rs
an
d
pr
ov
id
er
sa

st
o
ho

w
th
e

Be
tt
er

Ca
re

Fu
nd

w
ill
co
nt
rib

ut
e
to

a
lo
ng
er

te
rm

st
ra
te
gi
c
pl
an
.T
hi
ss
ho

ul
d
in
cl
ud

e
an

as
se
ss
m
en

to
ff
ut
ur
e
ca
pa
ci
ty

an
d
w
or
kf
or
ce

re
qu

ire
m
en

ts
ac
ro
ss
th
e
sy
st
em

.T
he

im
pl
ic
at
io
ns

fo
rl
oc
al
pr
ov
id
er
ss
ho

ul
d
be

se
to

ut
cl
ea
rly

fo
rH

ea
lth

an
d
W
el
lb
ei
ng

Bo
ar
ds

so
th
at

th
ei
ra

gr
ee
m
en

tf
or

th
e
de

pl
oy
m
en

to
ft
he

fu
nd

in
cl
ud

es
re
co
gn
iti
on

of
th
e
se
rv
ic
e
ch
an
ge

co
ns
eq

ue
nc
es
.T
he

Di
sa
bl
ed

Fa
ci
lit
ie
sG

ra
nt

(D
FG

)w
ill
ag
ai
n
be

al
lo
ca
te
d
th
ro
ug
h
th
e
Be

tt
er

Ca
re

Fu
nd

.L
oc
al
ho

us
in
g
au
th
or
ity

re
pr
es
en

ta
tiv

es
sh
ou

ld
th
er
ef
or
e
be

in
vo
lv
ed

in
de

ve
lo
pi
ng

an
d
ag
re
ei
ng

th
e
pl
an
,i
n
or
de

rt
o
en

su
re

a
jo
in
ed

up
ap
pr
oa
ch

to
im

pr
ov
in
g
ou

tc
om

es
ac
ro
ss
he

al
th
,

so
ci
al
ca
re

an
d
ho

us
in
g.

Th
e
BC

F
po

lic
y
fr
am

ew
or
k
fo
r2

01
6
17

an
d
BC

F
pl
an
ni
ng

gu
id
an
ce

se
ts
ou

te
ig
ht

na
tio

na
lc
on

di
tio

ns
fo
ra

cc
es
st
o
th
e
Fu
nd

:

Lo
ca
la
re
as

m
us
ti
nc
lu
de

an
ex
pl
an
at
io
n
of

ho
w
lo
ca
la
du

lt
so
ci
al
ca
re

se
rv
ic
es

w
ill
co
nt
in
ue

to
be

su
pp

or
te
d
w
ith

in
th
ei
rp

la
ns

in
a
m
an
ne

rc
on

sis
te
nt

w
ith

20
16

17
.

Th
e
de

fin
iti
on

of
su
pp

or
ts
ho

ul
d
be

ag
re
ed

lo
ca
lly
.A

sa
m
in
im

um
,i
ts
ho

ul
d
m
ai
nt
ai
n
in
re
al
te
rm

st
he

le
ve
l o
fp

ro
te
ct
io
n
as

pr
ov
id
ed

th
ro
ug
h
th
e
m
an
da
te
d
m
in
im

um
el
em

en
to

fl
oc
al
Be

tt
er

Ca
re

Fu
nd

ag
re
em

en
ts
of

20
15

16
.T
hi
sr
ef
le
ct
st
he

re
al
te
rm

si
nc
re
as
e
in
th
e
Be

tt
er

Ca
re

Fu
nd

.

In
se
tt
in
g
th
e
le
ve
lo
fp

ro
te
ct
io
n
fo
rs
oc
ia
lc
ar
e
lo
ca
lit
ie
ss
ho

ul
d
be

m
in
df
ul
to

en
su
re

th
at

an
y
ch
an
ge

do
es

no
td

es
ta
bi
lis
e
th
e
lo
ca
ls
oc
ia
la
nd

he
al
th

ca
re

sy
st
em

as
a
w
ho

le
.T
hi
sw

ill
be

as
se
ss
ed

co
m
pa
re
d
to

20
15

16
fig
ur
es

th
ro
ug
h
th
e
re
gi
on

al
as
su
ra
nc
e
pr
oc
es
s.

It
sh
ou

ld
al
so

be
co
ns
ist
en

tw
ith

20
12

De
pa
rt
m
en

to
fH

ea
lth

gu
id
an
ce

to
N
HS

En
gl
an
d
on

th
e
fu
nd

in
g
tr
an
sf
er

fr
om

th
e
N
HS

to
so
ci
al
ca
re

in
20

13
14

:

ht
tp
s:
//
w
w
w
.g
ov
.u
k/
go
ve
rn
m
en

t/
up

lo
ad
s/
sy
st
em

/u
pl
oa
ds
/a
tt
ac
hm

en
t_
da
ta
/f
ile
/2
13

22
3/
Fu
nd

in
g
tr
an
sf
er

fr
om

th
e
N
HS

to
so
ci
al

ca
re

in
20

13
14
.p
df

Lo
ca
la
re
as

ar
e
as
ke
d
to

co
nf
irm

ho
w
th
ei
rp

la
ns

w
ill
pr
ov
id
e
7
da
y
se
rv
ic
es

(t
hr
ou

gh
ou

tt
he

w
ee
k,
in
cl
ud

in
g
w
ee
ke
nd

s)
ac
ro
ss
co
m
m
un

ity
,p
rim

ar
y,
m
en

ta
lh
ea
lth

,a
nd

so
ci
al
ca
re

in
or
de

r:

•
To

pr
ev
en

tu
nn

ec
es
sa
ry

no
n
el
ec
tiv

e
ad
m
iss
io
ns

(p
hy
sic

al
an
d
m
en

ta
lh
ea
lth

)t
hr
ou

gh
pr
ov
isi
on

of
an

ag
re
ed

le
ve
lo
fi
nf
ra
st
ru
ct
ur
e
ac
ro
ss
ou

to
fh

os
pi
ta
ls
er
vi
ce
s7

da
ys

a
w
ee
k;

•
To

su
pp

or
tt
he

tim
el
y
di
sc
ha
rg
e
of

pa
tie

nt
s,
fr
om

ac
ut
e
ph

ys
ic
al
an
d
m
en

ta
lh
ea
lth

se
tt
in
gs
,o
n
ev
er
y
da
y
of

th
e
w
ee
k,
w
he

re
it
is
cl
in
ic
al
ly
ap
pr
op

ria
te

to
do

so
,a
vo
id
in
g
un

ne
ce
ss
ar
y
de

la
ye
d
di
sc
ha
rg
es

of
ca
re
.I
ft
he

y
ar
e
no

ta
bl
e
to

pr
ov
id
e
su
ch

pl
an
s,
th
ey

m
us
te

xp
la
in
w
hy
.

Th
e
10

cl
in
ic
al
st
an
da
rd
sd

ev
el
op

ed
by

th
e
N
HS

Se
rv
ic
es
,S
ev
en

Da
ys

a
W
ee
k
Fo
ru
m

re
pr
es
en

t,
as

a
w
ho

le
,b
es
tp

ra
ct
ic
e
fo
rq

ua
lit
y
ca
re

on
ev
er
y
da
y
of

th
e
w
ee
k
an
d
pr
ov
id
e
a
us
ef
ul
re
fe
re
nc
e
fo
rc
om

m
iss
io
ne

rs
(h
tt
ps
:/
/w

w
w
.e
ng
la
nd

.n
hs
.u
k/
w
p
co
nt
en

t/
up

lo
ad
s/
20

13
/1
2/
cl
in
ic
al

st
an
da
rd
s1
.p
df

).
By

20
20

al
lh
os
pi
ta
li
n
pa
tie

nt
sa

dm
itt
ed

th
ro
ug
h
ur
ge
nt

an
d
em

er
ge
nc
y
ro
ut
es

in
En
gl
an
d
w
ill
ha
ve

ac
ce
ss
to

se
rv
ic
es

w
hi
ch

co
m
pl
y
w
ith

at
le
as
t4

of
th
es
e
st
an
da
rd
so

n
ev
er
y
da
y
of

th
e
w
ee
k,
na
m
el
y
St
an
da
rd
s2

,5
,6

an
d
8.
Fo
rt
he

Be
tt
er

Ca
re

Fu
nd

,p
ar
tic
ul
ar

co
ns
id
er
at
io
n
sh
ou

ld
be

gi
ve
n
to

w
he

th
er

pr
og
re
ss
is
be

in
g

m
ad
e
ag
ai
ns
tS

ta
nd

ar
d
9.
Th
is
st
an
da
rd

hi
gh
lig
ht
st
he

ro
le
of

su
pp

or
ts
er
vi
ce
si
n
th
e
pr
ov
isi
on

of
th
e
ne

xt
st
ep

si
n
a
pe

rs
on

’s
ca
re

pa
th
w
ay

fo
llo
w
in
g
ad
m
iss
io
n
to

ho
sp
ita

l,
as

de
te
rm

in
ed

by
th
e
da
ily

co
ns
ul
ta
nt

le
d
re
vi
ew

,a
nd

th
e
im

po
rt
an
ce

of
ef
fe
ct
iv
e
re
la
tio

ns
hi
ps

be
tw

ee
n
m
ed

ic
al
an
d
ot
he

rh
ea
lth

an
d
so
ci
al
ca
re

te
am

s.

A
pp

en
di

x 
3 

- L
ee

ds
 B

C
F 

20
16

/1
7 

Q
4 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
Te

m
pl

at
e

Page 100



4)
Be

tt
er

da
ta

sh
ar
in
g
be

tw
ee
n
he

al
th

an
d
so
ci
al
ca
re
,b

as
ed

on
th
e
N
HS

nu
m
be

r

5)
En

su
re

a
jo
in
ta

pp
ro
ac
h
to

as
se
ss
m
en

ts
an

d
ca
re

pl
an

ni
ng

an
d
en

su
re

th
at
,

6)
Ag

re
em

en
to

n
th
e
co
ns
eq

ue
nt
ia
li
m
pa

ct
of

th
e
ch
an

ge
so

n
th
e
pr
ov
id
er
st
ha

t

7)
Ag

re
em

en
tt
o
in
ve
st
in
N
HS

co
m
m
is
si
on

ed
ou

to
fh

os
pi
ta
ls
er
vi
ce
s,
w
hi
ch

m
ay

Th
is
sh
ou

ld
be

ac
hi
ev
ed

in
on

e
of

th
e
fo
llo
w
in
g
w
ay
s:

To
fu
nd

N
HS

co
m
m
iss
io
ne

d
ou

t
of

ho
sp
ita

ls
er
vi
ce
s,
w
hi
ch

m
ay

in
cl
ud

e
a
w
id
e
ra
ng
e
of

se
rv
ic
es

in
cl
ud

in
g
so
ci
al
ca
re
,a
sp

ar
to

ft
he

ir
ag
re
ed

Be
tt
er

Ca
re

Fu
nd

pl
an
;o

r

Lo
ca
la
re
as

ca
n
ch
oo

se
to

pu
ta

n
ap
pr
op

ria
te

pr
op

or
tio

n
of

th
ei
rs
ha
re

of
th
e
£1

bn
in
to

a
lo
ca
lr
isk

sh
ar
in
g
ag
re
em

en
ta

sp
ar
t o

fc
on

tin
ge
nc
y
pl
an
ni
ng

in
th
e
ev
en

to
fe

xc
es
sa

ct
iv
ity

,w
ith

th
e
ba
la
nc
e
sp
en

to
n
N
HS

co
m
m
iss
io
ne

d
ou

t
of

ho
sp
ita

ls
er
vi
ce
s,
w
hi
ch

m
ay

in
cl
ud

e
a
w
id
e
ra
ng
e
of

se
rv
ic
es

in
cl
ud

in
g
so
ci
al
ca
re

(lo
ca
l

ar
ea
ss
ho

ul
d
se
ek
,a
sa

m
in
im

um
,t
o
m
ai
nt
ai
n
pr
ov
isi
on

of
N
HS

co
m
m
iss
io
ne

d
ou

to
fh

os
pi
ta
ls
er
vi
ce
si
n
a
m
an
ne

rc
on

sis
te
nt

w
ith

15
16

);

Th
is
co
nd

iti
on

re
pl
ac
es

th
e
Pa
ym

en
tf
or

Pe
rf
or
m
an
ce

sc
he

m
e
in
cl
ud

ed
in
th
e
20

15
16

Be
tt
er

Ca
re

Fu
nd

fr
am

ew
or
k.

Th
e
im

pa
ct
of

lo
ca
lp
la
ns

sh
ou

ld
be

ag
re
ed

w
ith

re
le
va
nt

he
al
th

an
d
so
ci
al
ca
re

pr
ov
id
er
s.
As
su
ra
nc
e
w
ill
al
so

be
so
ug
ht

on
pu

bl
ic
an
d
pa
tie

nt
an
d
se
rv
ic
e
us
er

en
ga
ge
m
en

ti
n
th
is
pl
an
ni
ng
,a
sw

el
la
sp

la
ns

fo
rp

ol
iti
ca
lb
uy

in
.T
hi
ss
ho

ul
d
co
m
pl
em

en
tt
he

pl
an
ni
ng

gu
id
an
ce

iss
ue

d
to

N
HS

or
ga
ni
sa
tio

ns
.

Th
er
e
is
ag
re
em

en
tt
ha
tt
he

re
is
m
uc
h
m
or
e
to

be
do

ne
to

en
su
re

m
en

ta
la
nd

ph
ys
ic
al
he

al
th

ar
e
co
ns
id
er
ed

eq
ua
la
nd

be
tt
er

in
te
gr
at
ed

w
ith

on
e
an
ot
he

r,
as

w
el
la
sw

ith
ot
he

rs
er
vi
ce
s s
uc
h
as

so
ci
al
ca
re
.P
la
ns

sh
ou

ld
th
er
ef
or
e
gi
ve

du
e
re
ga
rd

to
th
is.

Lo
ca
la
re
as

sh
ou

ld
ag
re
e
ho

w
th
ey

w
ill
us
e
th
ei
rs
ha
re

of
th
e
£1

bi
lli
on

th
at

ha
d
pr
ev
io
us
ly
be

en
us
ed

to
cr
ea
te

th
e
pa
ym

en
tf
or

pe
rf
or
m
an
ce

fu
nd

.

Lo
ca
la
re
as

sh
ou

ld
id
en

tif
y
w
hi
ch

pr
op

or
tio

n
of

th
ei
rp

op
ul
at
io
n
w
ill
be

re
ce
iv
in
g
ca
se

m
an
ag
em

en
ta

nd
na
m
ed

ca
re

co
or
di
na
to
r,
an
d
w
hi
ch

pr
op

or
tio

ns
w
ill
be

re
ce
iv
in
g
se
lf
m
an
ag
em

en
th

el
p

fo
llo
w
in
g
th
e
pr
in
ci
pl
es

of
pe

rs
on

ce
nt
re
d
ca
re

pl
an
ni
ng
.D

em
en

tia
se
rv
ic
es

w
ill
be

a
pa
rt
ic
ul
ar
ly
im

po
rt
an
tp

rio
rit
y
fo
rb

et
te
r

in
te
gr
at
ed

he
al
th

an
d
so
ci
al
ca
re

se
rv
ic
es
,s
up

po
rt
ed

by
ca
re

co
or
di
na
to
rs
,f
or

ex
am

pl
e
de

m
en

tia
ad
vi
so
rs
.

Th
e
ap
pr
op

ria
te

an
d
la
w
fu
ls
ha
rin

g
of

da
ta

in
th
e
be

st
in
te
re
st
so

fp
eo

pl
e
w
ho

us
e
ca
re

an
d
su
pp

or
ti
se

ss
en

tia
lt
o
th
e
pr
ov
isi
on

of
sa
fe
,s
ea
m
le
ss
ca
re
.T
he

us
e
of

th
e
N
HS

nu
m
be

ra
sa

co
ns
ist
en

ti
de

nt
ifi
er

is
an

im
po

rt
an
te

le
m
en

to
ft
hi
s,
as

is
pr
og
re
ss
to
w
ar
ds

sy
st
em

sa
nd

pr
oc
es
se
st
ha
ta

llo
w
th
e
sa
fe

an
d
tim

el
y
sh
ar
in
g
of

in
fo
rm

at
io
n.
It
is
al
so

vi
ta
lt
ha
tt
he

rig
ht

cu
ltu

re
s,
be

ha
vi
ou

rs
an
d
le
ad
er
sh
ip
ar
e
de

m
on

st
ra
te
d
lo
ca
lly
,f
os
te
rin

g
a
cu
ltu

re
of

se
cu
re
,l
aw

fu
la
nd

ap
pr
op

ria
te

sh
ar
in
g
of

da
ta

to
su
pp

or
tb

et
te
rc
ar
e.

Lo
ca
la
re
as

sh
ou

ld
:

•
co
nf
irm

th
at

th
ey

ar
e
us
in
g
th
e
N
HS

N
um

be
ra

st
he

co
ns
ist
en

ti
de

nt
ifi
er

fo
rh

ea
lth

an
d
ca
re

se
rv
ic
es
,a
nd

if
th
ey

ar
e
no

t,
w
he

n
th
ey

pl
an

to
;

•
co
nf
irm

th
at

th
ey

ar
e
pu

rs
ui
ng

in
te
ro
pe

ra
bl
e
Ap

pl
ic
at
io
n
Pr
og
ra
m
m
in
g
In
te
rf
ac
es

(A
PI
s)
(i.
e.
sy
st
em

st
ha
ts
pe

ak
to

ea
ch

ot
he

r)
w
ith

th
e
ne

ce
ss
ar
y
se
cu
rit
y
an
d
co
nt
ro
ls
(h
tt
ps
:/
/w

w
w
.e
ng
la
nd

.n
hs
.u
k/
w
p
co
nt
en

t/
up

lo
ad
s/
20

14
/0
5/
op

en
ap
ip

ol
ic
y.
pd

f;
an
d

•
en

su
re

th
ey

ha
ve

th
e
ap
pr
op

ria
te

In
fo
rm

at
io
n
Go

ve
rn
an
ce

co
nt
ro
ls
in
pl
ac
e
fo
ri
nf
or
m
at
io
n
sh
ar
in
g
in
lin
e
w
ith

th
e
re
vi
se
d
Ca
ld
ic
ot
tp

rin
ci
pl
es

an
d
gu
id
an
ce

m
ad
e
av
ai
la
bl
e
by

th
e
In
fo
rm

at
io
n
Go

ve
rn
an
ce

Al
lia
nc
e
(IG

A)
,a
nd

if
no

t,
w
he

n
th
ey

pl
an

fo
ri
tt
o
be

in
pl
ac
e.

•
en

su
re

th
at

pe
op

le
ha
ve

cl
ar
ity

ab
ou

th
ow

da
ta

ab
ou

tt
he

m
is
us
ed

,w
ho

m
ay

ha
ve

ac
ce
ss
an
d
ho

w
th
ey

ca
n
ex
er
ci
se

th
ei
rl
eg
al
rig

ht
s.
In
lin
e
w
ith

th
e
re
co
m
m
en

da
tio

ns
fr
om

th
e
N
at
io
na
lD

at
a
Gu

ar
di
an

re
vi
ew

.

Th
e
In
fo
rm

at
io
n
Go

ve
rn
an
ce

Al
lia
nc
e
(IG

A)
is
a
gr
ou

p
of

na
tio

na
lh
ea
lth

an
d
ca
re

or
ga
ni
sa
tio

ns
(in

cl
ud

in
g
th
e
De

pa
rt
m
en

to
fH

ea
lth

,N
HS

En
gl
an
d,
Pu

bl
ic
He

al
th

En
gl
an
d
an
d
th
e
He

al
th

an
d
So
ci
al
Ca
re

In
fo
rm

at
io
n
Ce

nt
re
)w

or
ki
ng

to
ge
th
er

to
pr
ov
id
e
a
jo
in
ed

up
an
d
co
ns
ist
en

ta
pp

ro
ac
h
to

in
fo
rm

at
io
n
go
ve
rn
an
ce

an
d

pr
ov
id
e
ac
ce
ss
to

a
ce
nt
ra
lr
ep

os
ito

ry
gu
id
an
ce

on
da
ta

ac
ce
ss
iss
ue

sf
or

th
e
he

al
th

an
d
ca
re

sy
st
em

.S
ee

ht
tp
:/
/s
ys
te
m
s.
hs
ci
c.
go
v.
uk
/in

fo
go
v/
ig
a

A
pp

en
di

x 
3 

- L
ee

ds
 B

C
F 

20
16

/1
7 

Q
4 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
Te

m
pl

at
e

Page 101



8)
Ag

re
em

en
to

n
lo
ca
la
ct
io
n
pl
an

to
re
du

ce
de

la
ye
d
tr
an

sf
er
so

fc
ar
e
(D
TO

C)

Fo
ot
no

te
s:

So
ur
ce
:F
or

ea
ch

of
th
e
co
nd

iti
on

qu
es
tio

ns
w
hi
ch

ar
e
pr
e
po

pu
la
te
d,
th
e
da
ta

is
fr
om

th
e
qu

ar
te
rly

da
ta

co
lle
ct
io
ns

pr
ev
io
us
ly
re
tu
rn
ed

by
th
e
HW

B.

Gi
ve
n
th
e
un

ac
ce
pt
ab
le
hi
gh

le
ve
ls
of

DT
O
C
cu
rr
en

tly
,t
he

Go
ve
rn
m
en

ti
se

xp
lo
rin

g
w
ha
tf
ur
th
er

ac
tio

n
sh
ou

ld
be

ta
ke
n
to

ad
dr
es
st
he

iss
ue

.

As
pa
rt
of

th
is
w
or
k,
un

de
rt
he

Be
tt
er

Ca
re

Fu
nd

,e
ac
h
lo
ca
la
re
a
is
to

de
ve
lo
p
a
lo
ca
la
ct
io
n
pl
an

fo
rm

an
ag
in
g
DT

O
C,
in
cl
ud

in
g
a
lo
ca
lly

ag
re
ed

ta
rg
et
.

Al
ll
oc
al
ar
ea
sn

ee
d
to

es
ta
bl
ish

th
ei
ro

w
n
st
re
tc
hi
ng

lo
ca
lD

TO
C
ta
rg
et

ag
re
ed

be
tw

ee
n
th
e
CC

G,
Lo
ca
lA

ut
ho

rit
y
an
d
re
le
va
nt

ac
ut
e
an
d
co
m
m
un

ity
tr
us
ts
.T
hi
st
ar
ge
ts
ho

ul
d
be

re
fle

ct
ed

in
CC

G
op

er
at
io
na
lp
la
ns
.T
he

m
et
ric

fo
rt
he

ta
rg
et

sh
ou

ld
be

th
e
sa
m
e
as

th
e
na
tio

na
lp
er
fo
rm

an
ce

m
et
ric

(a
ve
ra
ge

de
la
ye
d
tr
an
sf
er
so

f
ca
re

(d
el
ay
ed

da
ys
)p

er
10

0,
00

0
po

pu
la
tio

n
(a
tt
rib

ut
ab
le
to

ei
th
er

N
HS

,s
oc
ia
lc
ar
e
or

bo
th
)p

er
m
on

th
.

As
pa
rt
of

th
is
pl
an
,w

e
w
an
tl
oc
al
ar
ea
st
o
co
ns
id
er

th
e
us
e
of

lo
ca
lr
isk

sh
ar
in
g
ag
re
em

en
ts
w
ith

re
sp
ec
tt
o
DT

O
C,
w
ith

cl
ea
rr
ef
er
en

ce
to

ex
ist
in
g
gu
id
an
ce

an
d
fle

xi
bi
lit
ie
s.
Th
is
w
ill
be

pa
rt
ic
ul
ar
ly
re
le
va
nt

in
ar
ea
sw

he
re

le
ve
ls
of

DT
O
C
ar
e
hi
gh

an
d
ris
in
g.

In
ag
re
ei
ng

th
e
pl
an
,C
lin
ic
al
Co

m
m
iss
io
ni
ng

Gr
ou

ps
an
d
lo
ca
la
ut
ho

rit
ie
ss
ho

ul
d
en

ga
ge

w
ith

th
e
re
le
va
nt

ac
ut
e
an
d
co
m
m
un

ity
tr
us
ts
an
d
be

ab
le
to

de
m
on

st
ra
te

th
at

th
e
pl
an

ha
sb

ee
n
ag
re
ed

w
ith

th
e
pr
ov
id
er
sg

iv
en

th
e
ne

ed
fo
rc
lo
se

jo
in
tw

or
ki
ng

on
th
e
DT

O
C
iss
ue

.

W
e
w
ou

ld
ex
pe

ct
pl
an
st
o:

•
Se
to

ut
cl
ea
rl
in
es

of
re
sp
on

sib
ili
ty
,a
cc
ou

nt
ab
ili
tie

s,
an
d
m
ea
su
re
so

fa
ss
ur
an
ce

an
d
m
on

ito
rin

g;
•
Ta
ke

ac
co
un

to
fn

at
io
na
lg
ui
da
nc
e,
pa
rt
ic
ul
ar
ly
th
e
N
HS

Hi
gh

Im
pa
ct
In
te
rv
en

tio
ns

fo
rU

rg
en

ta
nd

Em
er
ge
nc
y
Ca
re
,t
he

N
HS

En
gl
an
d
M
on

th
ly
De

la
ye
d
Tr
an
sf
er
so

fC
ar
e
Si
tu
at
io
n
Re

po
rt
sD

ef
in
iti
on

an
d
Gu

id
an
ce
,a
nd

be
st
pr
ac
tic
e
w
ith

re
ga
rd
st
o
re
du

ci
ng

DT
O
C
fr
om

LG
A
an
d
AD

AS
S;

•
De

m
on

st
ra
te

ho
w
ac
tiv

iti
es

ac
ro
ss
th
e
w
ho

le
pa
tie

nt
pa
th
w
ay

ca
n
su
pp

or
ti
m
pr
ov
ed

pa
tie

nt
flo

w
an
d
DT

O
C
pe

rf
or
m
an
ce
, s
pe

ci
fic
al
ly
ar
ou

nd
ad
m
iss
io
ns

av
oi
da
nc
e;

•
De

m
on

st
ra
te

co
ns
id
er
at
io
n
to

ho
w
al
la
va
ila
bl
e
co
m
m
un

ity
ca
pa
ci
ty

w
ith

in
lo
ca
lg
eo

gr
ap
hi
es

ca
n
be

ef
fe
ct
iv
el
y
ut
ili
se
d
to

su
pp

or
ts
af
e
an
d
ef
fe
ct
iv
e
di
sc
ha
rg
e,
w
ith

a
sh
ar
ed

ap
pr
oa
ch

to
m
on

ito
rin

g
th
is
ca
pa
ci
ty
;

•
De

m
on

st
ra
te

ho
w
CC

Gs
an
d
Lo
ca
lA

ut
ho

rit
ie
sa

re
w
or
ki
ng

co
lla
bo

ra
tiv

el
y
to

su
pp

or
ts
us
ta
in
ab
le
lo
ca
lp
ro
vi
de

rm
ar
ke
ts
,b
ui
ld
th
e
rig

ht
ca
pa
ci
ty

fo
rt
he

ne
ed

so
ft
he

lo
ca
lp
op

ul
at
io
n,
an
d
su
pp

or
tt
he

he
al
th

an
d
ca
re

w
or
kf
or
ce

id
ea
lly

th
ro
ug
h
jo
in
tc
om

m
iss
io
ni
ng

an
d
w
or
kf
or
ce

st
ra
te
gi
es
;

•
De

m
on

st
ra
te

en
ga
ge
m
en

tw
ith

th
e
in
de

pe
nd

en
ta

nd
vo
lu
nt
ar
y
se
ct
or

pr
ov
id
er
s.

A
pp

en
di

x 
3 

- L
ee

ds
 B

C
F 

20
16

/1
7 

Q
4 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
Te

m
pl

at
e

Page 102



Selected Health and Well Being Board:

Income

Previously returned data:

Q1 2016/17 Q2 2016/17 Q3 2016/17 Q4 2016/17 Annual Total Pooled Fund

Plan £13,980,000 £13,980,000 £13,990,000 £14,008,588 £55,958,588 £55,958,588

Forecast £13,980,000 £13,980,000 £13,990,000 £14,008,588 £55,958,588

Actual* £13,980,000 £13,980,000 £13,990,000

Q4 2016/17 Amended Data:

Q1 2016/17 Q2 2016/17 Q3 2016/17 Q4 2016/17 Annual Total Pooled Fund

Plan £13,980,000 £13,980,000 £13,990,000 £14,008,588 £55,958,588 £55,958,588

Forecast £13,980,000 £13,980,000 £13,990,000 £14,008,588 £55,958,588

Actual* £13,980,000 £13,980,000 £13,990,000 £14,008,588 £55,958,588

Please comment if there is a difference between the forecasted
/ actual annual totals and the pooled fund

Plan, forecast, and actual figures for total income into, and total expenditure from, the fund for each quarter to year end (in both cases the year
end figures should equal the total pooled fund)

In line with plan

Leeds

Please provide, plan, forecast and actual of total income into the
fund for each quarter to year end (the year figures should equal
the total pooled fund)

Please provide , plan , forecast, and actual of total income into
the fund for each quarter to year end (the year figures should
equal the total pooled fund)

Appendix 3 - Leeds BCF 2016/17 Q4 Reporting Template

Page 103



Expenditure

Previously returned data:

Q1 2016/17 Q2 2016/17 Q3 2016/17 Q4 2016/17 Annual Total Pooled Fund

Plan £13,989,500 £13,989,500 £13,989,500 £13,989,500 £55,958,000 £55,958,000

Forecast £13,989,500 £13,989,500 £13,989,500 £13,989,500 £55,958,000

Actual* £13,276,508 £13,729,514 £14,600,500

Q4 2016/17 Amended Data:

Q1 2016/17 Q2 2016/17 Q3 2016/17 Q4 2016/17 Annual Total Pooled Fund

Plan £13,989,500 £13,989,500 £13,989,500 £13,989,500 £55,958,000 £55,958,000

Forecast £13,989,500 £13,989,500 £13,989,500 £13,989,500 £55,958,000

Actual* £13,276,508 £13,729,514 £14,600,500 £14,351,478 £55,958,000

Please comment if there is a difference between the forecasted
/ actual annual totals and the pooled fund

Commentary on progress against financial plan:

Footnotes:
*Actual figures should be based on the best available information held by Health and Wellbeing Boards.
Source: For the pooled fund which is pre populated, the data is from a quarterly collection previously filled in by the HWB.

All completed by 31st March 2017

Catch up of payments of Disabilities facilities grant from Q1 & Q2

Please provide, plan, forecast and actual of total expenditure
from the fund for each quarter to year end (the year figures
should equal the total pooled fund)

Please provide , plan , forecast, and actual of total income into
the fund for each quarter to year end (the year figures should
equal the total pooled fund)

Appendix 3 - Leeds BCF 2016/17 Q4 Reporting Template

Page 104



Selected Health and Well Being Board:

Please provide an update on indicative progress against the metric?

Please provide an update on indicative progress against the metric?

Please provide an update on indicative progress against the metric?

Commentary on progress:

There has been a slight downward turn during the end of Q4 for over 65 dementia diagnosis resulting in
76.1% against a target of 76.9%. It is worthy of note however that the result for all ages is 76.5% against
the expected prevalence. This is up from March 2016 when it was 74.2%

No improvement in performance

National and locally defined metrics

Leeds

Non Elective Admissions Reduction in non elective admissions

Commentary on progress:

Non elective admissions have slightly reduced when compared to Q3. This is a relative improvement on
previous quarter but does not improve as against the BCF trajectory. Plans for addressing growth in NEAs
are currently being developed as part of the West Yorkshire STP and our local element 'The Leeds Plan'.

Commentary on progress:

As with NEAs we have seen a slight improvement as against the previous quarter but do not meet the BCF
ambition. We have succesfully implemented the Integrated Discharge Service which has reduced delays
with assessments to patients however we are still experiencing issues with delays in placement of into
community health services, home care and residential care. The implementation of new reablement

Delayed Transfers of Care Delayed Transfers of Care (delayed days) from hospital per 100,000 population (aged 18+)

Local performance metric as described in your approved BCF plan

Dementia Diagnosis Rate

No improvement in performance

No improvement in performance

Appendix 3 - Leeds BCF 2016/17 Q4 Reporting Template

Page 105



Please provide an update on indicative progress against the metric?

Please provide an update on indicative progress against the metric?

Please provide an update on indicative progress against the metric?

Footnotes:

For the local performance metric (which is pre populated), the data is from submission 4 planning returns previously submitted by the HWB.
For the local defined patient experience metric (which is pre populated), the data is from submission 4 planning returns previously submitted by the HWB, except in cases where HWBs provided a
definition of the metric for the first time within the Q1 16 17 template.

Admissions to residential care

Commentary on progress:

Reablement

Commentary on progress:

Rate of permanent admissions to residential care per 100,000 population (65+)

On track to meet target
The figures are 622.5 per 100,000 over 65 population

Proportion of older people (65 and over) who were still at home 91 days after discharge from hospital into
reablement / rehabilitation services

On track for improved performance, but not to meet full target
Quarter 4 figures show there to be 88% of people over 65 receiving short term support from hospital are
still at home 91 days later.

On track to meet target

If no local defined patient experience metric has been specified, please give details of the
local defined patient experience metric now being used.

Local defined patient experience metric as described in your approved BCF plan

Individuals accessing health and social care services through integrated health and social care teams will
be invited to complete the LTC6 questionaire post discharge. These questionaires will be used to generate
a patient satisfaction score based on a wieghted average for all questions completed. There is a target in
place to reach 50 completed questionaires per quarter for the service as a minimum.

Commentary on progress:

There have been 259 completed questionnaires returned in Q4

Appendix 3 - Leeds BCF 2016/17 Q4 Reporting Template

Page 106



Se
le
ct
ed

He
al
th

an
d
W
el
lB

ei
ng

Bo
ar
d:

St
at
em

en
t:

Re
sp
on

se
:

Co
m
m
en

ts
:P
le
as
e
de

ta
il
an
y
fu
rt
he

rs
up

po
rt
in
g
in
fo
rm

at
io
n
fo
re

ac
h
re
sp
on

se

1.
Th
e
ov
er
al
ld
el
iv
er
y
of

th
e
BC

F
ha
si
m
pr
ov
ed

jo
in
tw

or
ki
ng

be
tw

ee
n

he
al
th

an
d
so
ci
al
ca
re

in
ou

rl
oc
al
ity

Ag
re
e

Th
er
e
w
as

al
re
ad
y
a
w
el
le
st
ab
lis
he

d,
st
ro
ng

re
la
tio

ns
hi
p
be

tw
ee
n
he

al
th

an
d
so
ci
al
ca
re

in
Le
ed

s.
Th
e
BC

F
ha
sa

dd
ed

a
bi
tm

or
e
fo
cu
st
o
th
is
re
la
tio

ns
hi
p
bu

th
as

al
so

br
ou

gh
tw

ith
it
ad
di
tio

na
lb
ur
ea
uc
ra
cy
.

2.
O
ur

BC
F
sc
he

m
es

w
er
e
im

pl
em

en
te
d
as

pl
an
ne

d
in
20

16
/1
7

Ag
re
e

3.
Th
e
de

liv
er
y
of

ou
rB

CF
pl
an

in
20

16
/1
7
ha
d
a
po

sit
iv
e
im

pa
ct
on

th
e

in
te
gr
at
io
n
of

he
al
th

an
d
so
ci
al
ca
re

in
ou

rl
oc
al
ity

Di
sa
gr
ee

Th
er
e
w
as

al
re
ad
y
a
w
el
le
st
ab
lis
he

d
he

al
th

an
d
w
el
lb
ei
ng

st
ru
ct
ur
e
in
pl
ac
e
be

fo
re

BC
F
an
d
m
or
e
co
nf
us
io
n
ha
sn

ow
be

en
cr
ea
te
d
w
ith

a
m
ul
tip

lic
ity

of
pl
an
si
nc
lu
di
ng

BC
F,
A&

E
pl
an
,W

Y
an
d
Ha

rr
og
at
e
ST
P
an
d
ou

ro
w
n
Le
ed

sP
la
n.

4.
Th
e
de

liv
er
y
of

ou
rB

CF
pl
an

in
20

16
/1
7
ha
sc

on
tr
ib
ut
ed

po
sit
iv
el
y
to

m
an
ag
in
g
th
e
le
ve
ls
of

N
on

El
ec
tiv

e
Ad

m
iss
io
ns

St
ro
ng
ly
di
sa
gr
ee

De
sp
ite

ou
rb

es
te

ffo
rt
s,
ou

rB
CF

pl
an

ha
sn

ot
co
nt
rib

ut
ed

po
sit
iv
el
y
to

m
an
ag
in
g
N
EA

s.
Fu
rt
he

ra
na
ly
sis

on
th
is
is
st
ill

to
be

co
nd

uc
te
d
on

ce
th
e
fin

al
ye
ar

en
d
fig
ur
es

ar
e
kn
ow

n
bu

tc
ha
ng
es

in
co
di
ng

pr
ac
tic
e
in
th
e
Ac
ut
e
se
ct
or

ar
e
a

kn
ow

n
fa
ct
or
.

5.
Th
e
de

liv
er
y
of

ou
rB

CF
pl
an

in
20

16
/1
7
ha
sc

on
tr
ib
ut
ed

po
sit
iv
el
y
to

m
an
ag
in
g
th
e
le
ve
ls
of

De
la
ye
d
Tr
an
sf
er
so

fC
ar
e

Ag
re
e

Th
e
le
ve
ls
of

DT
oC

S
ha
ve

be
en

m
an
ag
ed

po
sit
iv
el
y
in
co
nj
uc
tio

n
w
ith

th
e
A&

E
de

liv
er
y
pl
an
.

6.
Th
e
de

liv
er
y
of

ou
rB

CF
pl
an

in
20

16
/1
7
ha
sc

on
tr
ib
ut
ed

po
sit
iv
el
y
to

m
an
ag
in
g
th
e
pr
op

or
tio

n
of

ol
de

rp
eo

pl
e
(a
ge
d
65

an
d
ov
er
)w

ho
w
er
e

st
ill
at

ho
m
e
91

da
ys

af
te
rd

isc
ha
rg
e
fr
om

ho
sp
ita

li
nt
o

re
ab
le
m
en

t/
re
ha
bi
lit
at
io
n
se
rv
ic
es

Ag
re
e

7.
Th
e
de

liv
er
y
of

ou
rB

CF
pl
an

in
20

16
/1
7
ha
sc

on
tr
ib
ut
ed

po
sit
iv
el
y
to

m
an
ag
in
g
th
e
ra
te

of
re
sid

en
tia

la
nd

nu
rs
in
g
ca
re

ho
m
e
ad
m
iss
io
ns

fo
r

ol
de

rp
eo

pl
e
(a
ge
d
65

an
d
ov
er
)

Ag
re
e

Ye
ar

En
d
Fe
ed

ba
ck

on
th
e
Be

tt
er

Ca
re

Fu
nd

in
20

16
17

Pa
rt
1:
De

liv
er
y
of

th
e
Be

tt
er

Ca
re

Fu
nd

Pl
ea
se

us
e
th
e
be

lo
w
fo
rm

to
in
di
ca
te

w
ha
te

xt
en

ty
ou

ag
re
e
w
ith

th
e
fo
llo
w
in
g
st
at
em

en
ts
an
d
th
en

de
ta
il
an
y
fu
rt
he

rs
up

po
rt
in
g
in
fo
rm

at
io
n
in
th
e
co
rr
es
po

nd
in
g
co
m
m
en

tb
ox
es
.

Le
ed

sA
pp

en
di

x 
3 

- L
ee

ds
 B

C
F 

20
16

/1
7 

Q
4 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
Te

m
pl

at
e

Page 107



8.
W
ha
th

av
e
be

en
yo
ur

gr
ea
te
st
su
cc
es
se
si
n
de

liv
er
in
g
yo
ur

BC
F
pl
an

fo
r2

01
6
17

?

Su
cc
es
s1

Su
cc
es
s2

Su
cc
es
s3

9.
W
ha
th

av
e
be

en
yo
ur

gr
ea
te
st
ch
al
le
ng
es

in
de

liv
er
in
g
yo
ur

BC
F
pl
an

fo
r2

01
6
17

?

Ch
al
le
ng
e
1

Ch
al
le
ng
e
2

Ch
al
le
ng
e
3

Fo
ot
no

te
s:

1.
Sh
ar
ed

vi
sio

n
an
d
co
m
m
itm

en
t

2.
Sh
ar
ed

le
ad
er
sh
ip
an
d
go
ve
rn
an
ce

3.
Co

lla
bo

ra
tiv

e
w
or
ki
ng

re
la
tio

ns
hi
ps

4.
In
te
gr
at
ed

w
or
kf
or
ce

pl
an
ni
ng

5.
Ev
id
en

ci
ng

im
pa
ct
an
d
m
ea
su
rin

g
su
cc
es
s

6.
De

liv
er
in
g
se
rv
ic
es

ac
ro
ss
in
te
rf
ac
es

7.
Di
gi
ta
li
nt
er
op

er
ab
ili
ty

an
d
sh
ar
in
g
da
ta

8.
Jo
in
tc
on

tr
ac
ts
an
d
pa
ym

en
tm

ec
ha
ni
sm

s
9.
Sh
ar
in
g
ris
ks

an
d
be

ne
fit
s

10
.M

an
ag
in
g
ch
an
ge

O
th
er

Pl
ea
se

se
le
ct
re
sp
on

se
ca
te
go
ry

7.
Di
gi
ta
li
nt
er
op

er
ab
ili
ty

an
d
sh
ar
in
g

da
ta

6.
De

liv
er
in
g
se
rv
ic
es

ac
ro
ss

in
te
rf
ac
esRe

sp
on

se
ca
te
go
ry
:

Q
ue

st
io
n
11

an
d
12

ar
e
fr
ee

te
xt
re
sp
on

se
s,
bu

ts
ho

ul
d
be

as
sig

ne
d
to

on
e
of

th
e
fo
llo
w
in
g
ca
te
go
rie

s(
as

us
ed

fo
rp

re
vi
ou

sB
CF

su
rv
ey
s)
:

Pl
ea
se

se
le
ct
re
sp
on

se
ca
te
go
ry

Re
sp
on

se
Pl
ea
se

de
ta
il
yo
ur

gr
ea
te
st
ch
al
le
ng
es

Re
sp
on

se
ca
te
go
ry
:

R
ed

uc
in

g 
N

E
A

s
6.
De

liv
er
in
g
se
rv
ic
es

ac
ro
ss

in
te
rf
ac
es

M
an

ag
in

g 
th

e 
im

pa
ct

 o
f N

E
A

s 
on

 th
e 

w
id

er
 s

ys
te

m
 fl

ow
6.
De

liv
er
in
g
se
rv
ic
es

ac
ro
ss

in
te
rf
ac
es

Re
sp
on

se
Pl
ea
se

de
ta
il
yo
ur

gr
ea
te
st
su
cc
es
se
s

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t o
f t

he
 L

ee
ds

 C
ar

e 
R

ec
or

d

Pa
rt
2:
Su
cc
es
se
sa

nd
Ch

al
le
ng
es

Pl
ea
se

us
e
th
e
be

lo
w
fo
rm

st
o
de

ta
il
up

to
3
of

yo
ur

gr
ea
te
st
su
cc
es
se
s,
up

to
3
of

yo
ur

gr
ea
te
st
ch
al
le
ng
es

an
d
th
en

ca
te
go
ris
e
ea
ch

su
cc
es
s/
ch
al
le
ng
e
ap
pr
op

ria
te
ly

Th
e 

C
om

m
un

ity
 In

te
rm

ed
ia

te
 C

ar
e 

be
d 

st
ra

te
gy

A
pp

en
di

x 
3 

- L
ee

ds
 B

C
F 

20
16

/1
7 

Q
4 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
Te

m
pl

at
e

Page 108



Se
le
ct
ed

He
al
th

an
d
W
el
lB

ei
ng

Bo
ar
d:

GP
Ho

sp
ita

l
So
ci
al
Ca
re

Co
m
m
un

ity
M
en

ta
lh
ea
lth

Sp
ec
ia
lis
ed

pa
lli
at
iv
e

N
HS

N
um

be
ri
su

se
d
as

th
e
co
ns
ist
en

ti
de

nt
ifi
er

on
al
lr
el
ev
an
t

co
rr
es
po

nd
en

ce
re
la
tin

g
to

th
e
pr
ov
isi
on

of
he

al
th

an
d
ca
re

se
rv
ic
es

to
an

in
di
vi
du

al
Ye
s

Ye
s

Ye
s

Ye
s

Ye
s

Ye
s

St
af
fi
n
th
is
se
tt
in
g
ca
n
re
tr
ie
ve

re
le
va
nt

in
fo
rm

at
io
n
ab
ou

ta
se
rv
ic
e
us
er
's

ca
re

fr
om

th
ei
rl
oc
al
sy
st
em

us
in
g
th
e
N
HS

N
um

be
r

Ye
s

Ye
s

Ye
s

Ye
s

Ye
s

Ye
s

Pl
ea
se

in
di
ca
te

ac
ro
ss
w
hi
ch

se
tt
in
gs

re
le
va
nt

se
rv
ice

us
er

in
fo
rm

at
io
n
is
cu
rr
en
tly

be
in
g
sh
ar
ed

di
gi
ta
lly

(v
ia
O
pe
n
AP

Is
or

in
te
rim

so
lu
tio

ns
)

To
GP

To
Ho

sp
ita

l
To

So
ci
al
Ca
re

To
Co

m
m
un

ity
To

M
en

ta
lh
ea
lth

To
Sp
ec
ia
lis
ed

pa
lli
at
iv
e

Fr
om

GP
Sh
ar
ed

vi
a
in
te
rim

so
lu
tio

n
Sh
ar
ed

vi
a
in
te
rim

so
lu
tio

n
Sh
ar
ed

vi
a
in
te
rim

so
lu
tio

n
Sh
ar
ed

vi
a
in
te
rim

so
lu
tio

n
Sh
ar
ed

vi
a
in
te
rim

so
lu
tio

n
Sh
ar
ed

vi
a
in
te
rim

so
lu
tio

n

Fr
om

Ho
sp
ita

l
Sh
ar
ed

vi
a
in
te
rim

so
lu
tio

n
Sh
ar
ed

vi
a
in
te
rim

so
lu
tio

n
Sh
ar
ed

vi
a
in
te
rim

so
lu
tio

n
Sh
ar
ed

vi
a
in
te
rim

so
lu
tio

n
Sh
ar
ed

vi
a
in
te
rim

so
lu
tio

n
Sh
ar
ed

vi
a
in
te
rim

so
lu
tio

n

Fr
om

So
ci
al
Ca
re

Sh
ar
ed

vi
a
in
te
rim

so
lu
tio

n
Sh
ar
ed

vi
a
in
te
rim

so
lu
tio

n
Sh
ar
ed

vi
a
in
te
rim

so
lu
tio

n
Sh
ar
ed

vi
a
in
te
rim

so
lu
tio

n
Sh
ar
ed

vi
a
in
te
rim

so
lu
tio

n
Sh
ar
ed

vi
a
in
te
rim

so
lu
tio

n

Fr
om

Co
m
m
un

ity
Sh
ar
ed

vi
a
in
te
rim

so
lu
tio

n
Sh
ar
ed

vi
a
in
te
rim

so
lu
tio

n
Sh
ar
ed

vi
a
in
te
rim

so
lu
tio

n
Sh
ar
ed

vi
a
in
te
rim

so
lu
tio

n
Sh
ar
ed

vi
a
in
te
rim

so
lu
tio

n
Sh
ar
ed

vi
a
in
te
rim

so
lu
tio

n

Fr
om

M
en

ta
lH

ea
lth

Sh
ar
ed

vi
a
in
te
rim

so
lu
tio

n
Sh
ar
ed

vi
a
in
te
rim

so
lu
tio

n
Sh
ar
ed

vi
a
in
te
rim

so
lu
tio

n
Sh
ar
ed

vi
a
in
te
rim

so
lu
tio

n
Sh
ar
ed

vi
a
in
te
rim

so
lu
tio

n
Sh
ar
ed

vi
a
in
te
rim

so
lu
tio

n

Fr
om

Sp
ec
ia
lis
ed

Pa
lli
at
iv
e

Sh
ar
ed

vi
a
in
te
rim

so
lu
tio

n
Sh
ar
ed

vi
a
in
te
rim

so
lu
tio

n
N
ot

cu
rr
en

tly
sh
ar
ed

di
gi
ta
lly

N
ot

cu
rr
en

tly
sh
ar
ed

di
gi
ta
lly

N
ot

cu
rr
en

tly
sh
ar
ed

di
gi
ta
lly

Sh
ar
ed

vi
a
in
te
rim

so
lu
tio

n

In
ea
ch

of
th
e
fo
llo
w
in
g
se
tt
in
gs
,p
le
as
e
in
di
ca
te

pr
og

re
ss
to
w
ar
ds

in
st
ill
at
io
n
of

O
pe
n
AP

Is
to

en
ab

le
in
fo
rm

at
io
n
to

be
sh
ar
ed

w
ith

ot
he
ro

rg
an

isa
tio

ns
GP

Ho
sp
ita

l
So
ci
al
Ca
re

Co
m
m
un

ity
M
en

ta
lh
ea
lth

Sp
ec
ia
lis
ed

pa
lli
at
iv
e

Pr
og
re
ss
st
at
us

In
de

ve
lo
pm

en
t

In
de

ve
lo
pm

en
t

U
na
va
ila
bl
e

U
na
va
ila
bl
e

U
na
va
ila
bl
e

U
na
va
ila
bl
e

Pr
oj
ec
te
d
'g
o
liv
e'
da
te

(d
d/
m
m
/y
y)

31
/0
8/
20

18
31

/0
8/
20

18
31

/0
8/
20

18
31

/0
8/
20

18
31

/0
8/
20

18
31

/0
8/
20

18

Ad
di
tio

na
lM

ea
su
re
s

Le
ed

s

1.
Pr
op

os
ed

M
et
ric

:U
se

of
N
HS

nu
m
be

ra
sp

rim
ar
y
id
en

tif
ie
ra

cr
os
sc

ar
e
se
tt
in
gs

2.
Pr
op

os
ed

M
et
ric

:A
va
ila
bi
lit
y
of

O
pe

n
AP

Is
ac
ro
ss

ca
re

se
tt
in
gs

A
pp

en
di

x 
3 

- L
ee

ds
 B

C
F 

20
16

/1
7 

Q
4 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
Te

m
pl

at
e

Page 109



Is
th
er
e
a
Di
gi
ta
lI
nt
eg
ra
te
d
Ca
re

Re
co
rd

pi
lo
tc
ur
re
nt
ly
un

de
rw

ay
in
yo
ur

He
al
th

an
d
W
el
lb
ei
ng

Bo
ar
d
ar
ea
?

N
o
pi
lo
tu

nd
er
w
ay

To
ta
ln
um

be
ro

fP
HB

si
n
pl
ac
e
at

th
e
en

d
of

th
e
qu

ar
te
r

11
5

Ra
te

pe
r1

00
,0
00

po
pu

la
tio

n
15

N
um

be
ro

fn
ew

PH
Bs

pu
ti
n
pl
ac
e
du

rin
g
th
e
qu

ar
te
r

23
N
um

be
ro

fe
xi
st
in
g
PH

Bs
st
op

pe
d
du

rin
g
th
e
qu

ar
te
r

2
O
fa

ll
re
sid

en
ts
us
in
g
PH

Bs
at

th
e
en

d
of

th
e
qu

ar
te
r,
w
ha
tp

ro
po

rt
io
n
ar
e

in
re
ce
ip
to

fN
HS

Co
nt
in
ui
ng

He
al
th
ca
re

(%
)

95
%

Po
pu

la
tio

n
(M

id
20

17
)

78
4,
45

9

Ar
e
in
te
gr
at
ed

ca
re

te
am

s(
an
y
te
am

co
m
pr
isi
ng

bo
th

he
al
th

an
d
so
ci
al

ca
re

st
af
f)
in
pl
ac
e
an
d
op

er
at
in
g
in
th
e
no

n
ac
ut
e
se
tt
in
g?

Ye
s

th
ro
ug
ho

ut
th
e

He
al
th

an
d
W
el
lb
ei
ng

Bo
ar
d
ar
ea

Ar
e
in
te
gr
at
ed

ca
re

te
am

s(
an
y
te
am

co
m
pr
isi
ng

bo
th

he
al
th

an
d
so
ci
al

ca
re

st
af
f)
in
pl
ac
e
an
d
op

er
at
in
g
in
th
e
ac
ut
e
se
tt
in
g?

Ye
s

th
ro
ug
ho

ut
th
e

He
al
th

an
d
W
el
lb
ei
ng

Bo
ar
d
ar
ea

Fo
ot
no

te
s:

3.
Pr
op

os
ed

M
et
ric

:I
st
he

re
a
Di
gi
ta
lI
nt
eg
ra
te
d
Ca

re
Re

co
rd

pi
lo
tc
ur
re
nt
ly
un

de
rw

ay
?

4.
Pr
op

os
ed

M
et
ric

:N
um

be
ro

fP
er
so
na

lH
ea
lth

Bu
dg
et
sp

er
10

0,
00

0
po

pu
la
tio

n

5.
Pr
op

os
ed

M
et
ric

:U
se

an
d
pr
ev
al
en

ce
of

M
ul
ti
Di
sc
ip
lin

ar
y/
In
te
gr
at
ed

Ca
re

Te
am

s

Po
pu

la
tio

n
pr
oj
ec
tio

ns
ar
e
ba
se
d
on

Su
bn

at
io
na
lP
op

ul
at
io
n
Pr
oj
ec
tio

ns
,I
nt
er
im

20
14

ba
se
d
(p
ub

lis
he

d
M
ay

20
16

).

Po
pu

la
tio

n
fig
ur
es

w
er
e
up

da
te
d
to

th
e
m
id

ye
ar

20
17

es
tim

at
es

as
w
e
m
ov
ed

in
to

th
e
ne

w
ca
le
nd

ar
ye
ar
.

ht
tp
:/
/w

w
w
.o
ns
.g
ov
.u
k/
pe

op
le
po

pu
la
tio

na
nd

co
m
m
un

ity
/p
op

ul
at
io
na
nd

m
ig
ra
tio

n/
po

pu
la
tio

np
ro
je
ct
io
ns
/d
at
as
et
s/
lo
ca
la
ut
ho

rit
ie
sin

en
gl
an
dz
1

A
pp

en
di

x 
3 

- L
ee

ds
 B

C
F 

20
16

/1
7 

Q
4 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
Te

m
pl

at
e

Page 110



Selected Health and Well Being Board:

30,401

Please provide a brief narrative on overall progress, reflecting on performance in Q4 16/17 and the year as a whole. A recommendation would be to offer a
narrative around the stocktake themes as below:
Highlights and successes
What would you consider to be your most significant area of success, or development since the last quarter? What has contributed to this improvement?
Challenges and concerns
Does the information on National Conditions and Supporting metrics point to any issues or areas of improvement? Are there any new anticipated
challenges for the coming quarter?
Potential actions and support
What actions could be taken and what support could be offered to address performance challenges and capitalise on successes for subsequent quarters?

Leeds

Further to returns made up to Q3, our most significant area of success during 2016 17 is the development of the Leeds Care Record. There are now over
4000 active users including GPs, Adult Social Care, Hospices, NHS 111 and Leeds Community Healthcare. Our Informatics Director has confirmed that a lot
of good feedback has been received from users showing how patients are benefitting from this integrated information. It is a good example of where
money has been invested and savings are being made recurrently.

Another significant area of success is our strategy around Community Beds. Longer term commissioning investment has been secured to improve and
enhance community bed based capacity, in readiness for next winter. Plans will increase capacity from 179 beds to 231 beds (factoring in demographic
growth up to 2019/20). Approximately 75% of the beds will be retained for Intermediate Care and 25% for a new transfer to assess model. The capacity
will meet existing demand as well as meeting the needs of:
• additional patients from the community who can’t access a Community Bed due to lack of capacity (equivalent to 158 admissions avoided per year)
• at least 50 patients currently waiting in hospital for residential or nursing beds based on Medically Fit For Discharge Data; excludes patients waiting to go
home or for complex care equivalent to 12,500 hospital bed days per year and 4500 excess bed day payments

A 'hospital to home' service has been maintained but has been integrated further into an Integrated Discharge Service within LTHT working with Discharge
Nurses, Therapists and hospital Social Workers. The service continues to evolve and ongoing development reports into the System Resilience Governance.

The biggest challenge we have faced is reducing non elective admissions and managing the impact of NEAs not reducing. Whilst a change in coding practice
in the Acute Sector has impacted on this, we also know that underlying growth is a contributing factor. Once the end of year figures are known, we intend
undertaking further analysis in order to fully understand this.

We would also like to mention that on tab 7 row 32 in respect of the Digital Integrated Care Record pilot, we have had to answer 'no pilot underway' even
though the Digital Integrated Care Record system is live but there was no option to put this.

Narrative

Remaining Characters

Appendix 3 - Leeds BCF 2016/17 Q4 Reporting Template

Page 111



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	8 Minutes
	9 Leeds Health and care Plan: Progressing a Conversation with citizens
	9a Leeds Health Care Plan Appx A
	9b Leeds Health Care Plan Appx B - Changing Leeds

	10 Leeds Health and Care Plan Quarterly Financial Reporting
	11 Being the Best City For Health Requires the Best Workforce
	12 For information: Better Care Fund Quarterly Reports
	12.1 BCF  Appendix 1 Q2 16-17
	12.2 BCF Appendix 2 Q3 16-17
	12.3 BCF Appendix 3 Q4 16-17 v2.1


